NOTICE OF MEETING

SPECIAL LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 28th July, 2021, 4.00 pm - MS Teams (watch it here)

Members: Councillors Sheila Peacock (Vice-Chair, in the Chair), Viv Ross, and
Yvonne Say.

Quorum: 3

1.

FILMING AT MEETINGS

Please note this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for live or
subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone attending
the meeting using any communication method. Members of the public
participating in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions,
making oral protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed,
recorded or reported on. By entering the ‘meeting room’, you are consenting
to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings.

The Chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any
individual, or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence.
URGENT BUSINESS

It being a special meeting of the Sub Committee, under Part Four, Section B,
Paragraph 17, of the Council’s Constitution, no other business shall be
considered at the meeting.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is
considered:

(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest
becomes apparent, and

(i) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must
withdraw from the meeting room.

Haringey


https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NmIzMjY3YmEtN2M4OC00NDdmLWFjM2EtM2EwOTVjNDY0OTc5%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226ddfa760-8cd5-44a8-8e48-d8ca487731c3%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22515ca3a4-dc98-4c16-9d83-85d643583e43%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d&btype=a&role=a

A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28
days of the disclosure.

Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of
Conduct.

5. SUMMARY OF PROCEDURE

The Chair will explain the procedure that the Committee will follow for the
hearing considered under the Gambling Act 2005.

6. APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE FOR AN ADULT GAMING
CENTRE AT ADMIRAL, 513 GREEN LANES, LONDON, N4 (PAGES 1 -
248)

To consider an application for a premises licence for an adult gaming centre.

Fiona Rae, Principal Committee Co-ordinator
Tel — 020 8489 3541
Email: fiona.rae@haringey.gov.uk

Fiona Alderman
Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer)
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ

Tuesday, 20 July 2021



Page 1 Agenda Item 6

Report for: Licensing Sub Committee 28" July 2021
Item number:
Title: Determination of Application for a Premises Licence for an Adult

Gaming Centre Licence for Luxury Leisure T/A Admiral, 513
Green Lanes, London N4

Report
authorised by : Director of Community and Environment.
Lead Officer: Daliah Barrett — Licensing Team Leader

Ward(s) affected: Green Lanes
Report for Key/
Non Key Decision: Non key

1. Describe the issue under consideration
The purpose of this report is to advise the Sub-Committee that an application
has been received for a Premises Licence, (Adult Gaming Centre) under the
Gambling Act 2005 (“the Act”). The application has drawn representations from
responsible authorities and interested parties, therefore a hearing is required.

2 Principles to be applied:
This application must be considered under the three licensing objectives:
e Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime
e Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and
e Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling.

2. Recommendations
The Sub-Committee is asked to determine whether to grant the application
for an Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence at 513 Green Lanes London N4
The application is submitted by Luxury Leisure .

A copy of the application for the premises licence and accompanying
documentation that the applicant submitted with their application is at App1l.

2.1  On considering an application for a premises licence (whether at a hearing
or not) a licensing authority shall
(A) Grant it or
(B) Reject it.

2.2 A Licensing Authority shall not determine an application for a premises
licence made in reliance on section 159(3)(b) until the relevant operating
licence has been issued in a form which authorises the applicant to carry
on the activity in respect of which the premises licence is sought.

|
Page 1 of 6 Harlngey
LONDON



3.

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.6

5.7

Page 2

Reasons for decision

In exercising their functions under this part a licensing authority shall aim to
permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as the authority think it-

(a) In accordance with the any relevant code of practice under section 24

(b) In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission under
section 25

(c) Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to paragraphs (a)
and (b); and

(d) In accordance with the statement published by the authority under section 349
(subject to paragraphs (a) to (c)

In determining whether to grant a premises licence a licensing authority may not
have regard to the expected demand for the facilities which it is proposed to
provide.

Alternative options considered
None

Background information

This report concerns an application made under section 159 of the Gambling
Act 2005 (the Act) by Luxury Leisure for a Premises Licence (Adult Gaming
Centre) at 513 Green Lanes, London N4.

An application for a premises licence may only be made by a person who:
e Holds an operating licence which authorises him to carry on the
activity in respect of which the premises licence is sought and

e Who has a right to occupy the premises to which the application
relates.

An Adult Gaming Centre (AGC) premises licence authorises a premises to be
used for making available Category B, C and D gaming machines. An AGC
premises licence may make available for use a number of Category B
machines not exceeding 20% of the total number of gaming machines that are
available at the premises and any number of Category C or D machines.

Category B machines should be restricted to sub category B3 or B4 machines
but not B3A machines.

Taken from the Gambling Commission Guidance to Local Authorities,
attached at Appendix 2 is the Summary of Machine Provisions by premises.

Attached at Appendix 3 is Part 9 from the Gambling Commission Guidance
to Local Authorities which concerns Premises Licence conditions.

Attached at Appendix 4 is Part 21 from the Gambling Commission Guidance
to Local Authorities which concerns Adult Gaming Centres and this also
includes the Mandatory conditions that would automatically be attached to an
Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence, if granted. Some types of gambling

|
Page 2 of 6 Harlngey
LONDON



5.8

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.1

Page 3

premises licence also have default conditions attached to them but there are
currently no default conditions specific to Adult Gaming Centres.

Attached at Appendix 5 is a copy of the Councils Statmemt of Gambling Policy
and the Local Area Profile which is made reference to by the applicant in their
risk assessment.

Relevant representations

A responsible authority (the Licensing Authority) & interested parties have made
representations on this application and copies are attached at Appendix 6.

An interested party is defined in the Gambling Act 2005 as someone who —
e lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the
authorised activities
¢ has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities
e represents persons in either of these two groups.

The applicant has been provided with a copy of the representations made and
both the applicant and those making representations have been made aware
of the date, time and details of joining the Sub Committee hearing.

The representations raise concerns about the following licensing objectives:

epreventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder,
beingassociated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime

eprotecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling

The Metropolitan Police made representation which is attached at App 6 but this
matter has now been withdrawn subject to agreement reached on the revised
conditions shown at App 6A. The applicants also reached out to the other
parties to inform of the agreed conditions with the and to ask if they would
consider their own original representation, theserepresentations remain
outstanding.

Legal implications

The Section 153 of the Gambling Act 2005, provides that in determining
applications the licensing authority shall aim to permit the use of the premises for
gambling in so far as it thinks it is—

(a) in accordance with any relevant code of practice under section 24,

(b) in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission
Under section 25,

(c) reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to paragraphs
(a) and (b)), and

(d) in accordance with the statement published by the authority under section
349 (subject to paragraphs (a) to (c)).

|
Page 3 of 6 Harlngey
LONDON



Page 4

7.2 A copy of the Gambling Commission’s sector specific Conditions and Codes of
Practice applicable to Adult Gaming Centres can be seen at Appendix 4.

7.3 The latest version of the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing
Authorities is available on line at :-
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/PDF/GLAS.pdf

Parts 1 (General), 9 (Premises licence conditions) and 21 (Adult Gaming
Centres) are relevant to this application.

7.4 A copy of the Council’'s Statement of Gambling Policy, published in accordance
with section 349 of the Gambing Act 2005 can be seen at Appendix 5.

8 Determination

8.1 Where a licensing authority grants or reject an application for a premises licence,
they shall as soon as is reasonably practicable give notice to —
e The applicant

e The Gambling Commission
e Any person who made representations about the application
e The Chief Officer of Police for the area

e Her Majesty’s Commissioners of Customs and Excise

8.2 If the application is granted, this notice —
(a) must be in the prescribed form,

(b) if the licensing authority have attached a condition to the licence under
section 169(1)(a) or excluded under section 169(1)(b) a condition that
would otherwise have attached by virtue of section 168, must give the
authority's reasons, and

(c) if representations were made about the application under section 161,
must give the authority's response to the representations.

8.3 If the application is rejected, this notice —
(a) must be in the prescribed form, and

(b) must give the authority's reasons for rejecting the application.

Where a licensing authority rejects an application for a premises licence, the
applicant may appeal.

8.4 Where a licensing authority grant an application for a premises licence, either of
the following may appeal —
(a) a person who made representations in relation to the application
(b) the applicant

8.5 Appeals must be instituted in the Magistrates Court for the area within 21 days

|
Page 4 of 6 Harlngey
LONDON


https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/PDF/GLA5.pdf

Page 5

beginning with the day on which the appellant receives notice of the decision
against which the appeal is brought.

9. FOR DECISION
9.1 The Sub-Committee must consider and determine the application.

9.2 The effect of the decision
The decision of the Sub-Committee may be subject to appeal and/or Judicial
Review

9.3 Risks
An appeal against a decision of the Sub-Committee or a Judicial Review of
the application process may present financial risks to the Council with regard
to any award of costs against it.

10. EQUALITIES IMPACT

10.1 The arrangements for the Licensing Hearings seek to ensure that all applicants
and other interested parties receive a fair hearing and that the process is
accessible to all groups within the community.

11. ENVIRONMENTAL AND DESIGN IMPACT

11.1 The effective implementation of the Gambling Act 2005 will contribute to an
improved environment for local residents and other stakeholders.

12 HUMAN RIGHTS IMPACT

12.1 The Human Rights 1998 (HRA) requires public bodies to ensure everything
they do is compatible with Convention Rights and makes it unlawful for a public
authority to act incompatibly with those Rights. Article 6 (A6) of the European
Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) is the right to a fair trial. The key
elements of this include:

= The right to a fair hearing;

= The right to a public hearing;

= The right to a hearing before an independent and impatrtial
tribunal,

» The right to a hearing within a reasonable time.

12.2 When hearing an application, the proceedings of a non-judicial body such as
the Licensing Sub Committee, as opposed to an actual Court, need not meet
the full requirements of A6 where there is a right of appeal from the Licensing
Sub Committee to a Court that does meet the full A6 standards and can
consider all aspects of the case (even if that does not include a full re-hearing
of the facts).

12.3 While it is good practice to make a hearing before the Licensing Sub
Committee as A6 compliant as possible, it will not be a breach of the HRA if it
is not. Further, the hearing of all applications is subject to the principles of
Natural Justice and the requirement for decisions to be ‘Wednesbury
reasonable’.

|
Page 5 of 6 Harlngey
LONDON



Page 6

13. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION/DATA PROTECTION CONSIDERATIONS

13.1 Protocols agreed in relation to Licensing Hearings are within the Council’s
Constitution and will be accessible as part of the Council’'s Publication Scheme
maintained under the Freedom of Information Act.

CONTACT OFFICER: Daliah Barrett , Licensing Team Leader .

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

App 1 Application Forms & risk assesment

App 2 is the Summary of Machine Provisions by premises.

App 3 is Part 9 from the Gambling Commission Guidance to Local Authorities which
concerns Premises Licence conditions.

App 4 Part 21 from the Gambling Commission Guidance

App 5 Council’s Statement of Gambling Policy & Local risk assessment

App 6 Relevant representations

App 6A Responsible Authority representations

|
Page 6 of 6 HarlrISE,
LONDON



Page 7

Appendix 1 — Application and Accompanying
Information



Page 8

LUXURY
qZ‘LHSURE

NOVOMATI C GROUFP

14" April 2021

Haringey Council Our Ref: EJS/TCR/GAO05 — New AGC
Licensing Team

Level 1 North

River Park House By e-mail only:-
225 High Road licensing@haringey.qov.uk
London cc: Daliah.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk
N22 8HQ

Dear Sirs

Re: Gambling Act 2005 (“the Act”)
Application for an Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence (‘AGC’) for
Admiral, 513 Green Lanes, Haringey, London, N4 1AN
Applicant — Luxury Leisure

| write further to our email exchanges.

As you know Talarius Limited, sister company of Luxury Leisure, has long operated the AGCs
at Admiral, 9 High Road, Wood Green, London, N22 6BH, Admiral, 117 High Road, Wood
Green, London, N22 6BB and Admiral, 475 and 475A (Gold Room) High Road, Tottenham,
London, N17 6QA.

We now wish to apply for a premises licence to operate an AGC at 513 Green Lanes, Haringey,
London, N4 1AN (the “Premises”) and enclose an application. As you know, the site was
previously operated by Betfred as licensed betting premises. AGCs are different to betting
premises — they are low stake venues and, as you appreciate, have never operated Fixed Odds
Betting Terminals about which particular concern is expressed in the Authority’s Statement of
Principles (“SoP”).

While the planning regime is separate to that of licensing, | confirm that we have been granted
planning permission for the change of use of the Premises to AGC.

You have confirmed that you are happy to receive this application by email.

Talarius Limited and Luxury Leisure are the largest operator of AGCs and FECs in the UK. We
are long established and now part of the global Novomatic Group of companies. We have an
historic record of effective and responsible management throughout Great Britain, including
across London. We are founder members of the industry trade association BACTA, where | am
past Chairman of the AGC division the current Chairman of its Social Responsibility committee.

Company number 02448035.
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Queensway, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, Tyne & Wear, NE11 OBL. Tel. 0191 497 8200.



Page 9

We have a particular focus on the importance of protecting the vulnerable and have a good
relationship with GambleAware, to whom we make substantial annual contributions towards
research, education and the treatment of gambling harm.

We place a high premium on excellent staff training which is refreshed regularly and the grant
to Luxury Leisure of its operating licence evidences the Gambling Commission’s satisfaction
with its integrity, competence, finances and operating model. All required personal management
licences (including but not limited to those for every director, regional manager and area
manager, as well as for our Head of Compliance) are in place and maintained centrally.

We have been audited by the internationally recognised expert body, Global Gambling
Guidance Group (G4) and are proud to have been the first land-based UK operator to have
gained its accreditation for Responsible Gambling.

As with all of our other 238 AGCs, the operation of the Premises will be fully compliant with
applicable legislation including the relevant mandatory and default conditions set out in the
Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and Default Conditions) Regulations 2007 .

Our operations at the Premises will reinforce the licensing objectives and in particular in the
following ways: -

1. Prevent gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime
or disorder or being used to support crime

a) A Local Risk Assessment (enclosed) has been prepared for the site using local
knowledge, the Local Profile prepared by the Authority, the details provided in the
Statement of Licensing Principles for Gambling and an additional third party
mapping tool.

b) The Premises will have a fully up to date CCTV system with records kept for an
appropriate length of time and signage to indicate the presence of the system. |
refer you to the details of the Local Risk Assessment.

C) Our operating model is that staff circulate throughout the venue floor and actively
supervise and interact with customers.

d) All our staff will be provided with local and emergency contact details for
emergency services and these will be displayed clearly in the office areas of the
Premises.

e) We will as appropriate consult with a Crime Reduction Officer within the local
police team and are happy to hold regular security reviews with them.

f) Our cash handling processes are detailed, safe and secure and all staff are trained
in recognising individuals who might be under the influence of drink or drugs.



Page 10

g) We provide a safe system for payment of winnings. The majority of the machines
in the Premises will be “ticket in ticket out” (TITO), which is a system that gives
tickets on winning, which can be redeemed for cash at the customer’s
convenience and time of choosing.

h) The Premises will have adequate lighting inside and out and fit out will allow clear
lines of sight.

)] Staff will be provided with portable alarm activators.

Ensure that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way

As you are aware, adherence to this licensing objective is primarily a matter for the
Gambling Commission and the operator. The Gambling Commission granted Luxury
Leisure an operating licence for the relevant activities as soon as the regime was
implemented in 2007. Nonetheless, | confirm that as above, the layout and lighting will
ensure clean lines of sight and trained staff will actively circulate and supervise the venue.

Furthermore, wherever we trade in the country, we operate in an open and transparent
way, with hands on management by trained and experienced staff, with high levels of
senior management in the form of Area and Regional managers overseen by Operation
Directors and our Compliance teams.

Protect children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by
gambling

a) | refer to the LRA prepared with the data detailed above.

b) As with all of our national AGC operations we will operate a Think 25 policy at the
Premises. Training on this policy will be given to all members of staff and
refreshed regularly.

C) Plainly, alcohol is forbidden on the premises and we will not allow those under the
influence of alcohol or drugs in the venue.

d) We take issues of vulnerability to problem gambling very seriously and | note the
reference in the SoP to the Gamcare annual statistics for 2016/17 (page 11). As
you will appreciate, the Gamcare Helpline Annual statistics for 2019/20 record that
during that year, the numbers of callers to the helpline who played gaming
machines in arcades was 3% - far lower than the percentage for betting shops and
vastly less than for online. That is not to suggest any complacency or acceptance
of problem gambling on our part and customer interaction remains core to our
operations. Our staff will be trained in relation to customer interaction and records
of customer interactions will be maintained. Our staff are trained in recognising
customers who may be experiencing difficulties or stress and are able to signpost
individuals to external support services as part of such an interaction. | deal
further with training generally as a separate item below.



Page 11

e) As we do at all of our AGC sites in accordance with our operating licence
conditions, we will offer self-exclusion to customers who experience difficulties
with gambling. We are members of a multi-operator self-exclusion scheme for
AGCs administered by BACTA. At the end of any self-exclusion period, the self-
exclusion will remain in place for a further 6 months unless the customer takes
positive action in order to gamble again. Furthermore, our policies go beyond the
requirements of our licence conditions in that following the expiry of the further 6-
month period, the customer will be given one day to cool off before being allowed
to access gambling facilities, regardless of when they choose to gamble again (ie
not just within the 6-month period following the end of the self-exclusion period as
set out in the LCCP). In any event, when the customer makes a request to return
to gambling, a meeting will first be held with a trained member of staff before re-
admittance is agreed and again, this will apply regardless of when the customer
seeks to return to gamble.

f) We retain the services of a recognized third party independent test purchasing
organisation, Serve Legal, to conduct unannounced test purchases at all of our
age restricted sites and this will apply to the Premises. The results are reported
to the relevant local authority and to the Gambling Commission. We have a higher
‘pass rate” than the industry average (and indeed higher than for other age
restricted products) and any issues are investigated promptly and dealt with.

g) Appropriate amounts of problem gambling leaflets and posters will be available on
the Premises, both within the gaming areas and for collection in more discreet
locations, such as the toilet areas.

h) Any promotional material will not encourage the use of the premises by children
or young people. This will be an AGC and we have no interest in attracting anyone
other than adults to our AGC sites.

i) We are proud to subscribe to the Gamblewise tool which uses beacon technology
to allow the customers to set alerts and reminders if they want to limit their time
spent or visits to us. This is made available by us to our customers free of charge.

) While no children will be permitted access to the Premises and it is not our
experience that children are attracted to AGCs, we will provide training to venue
staff that specifically deals with Child Sexual Exploitation.

In terms of training generally, our staff are provided with detailed training on induction and this
is refreshed at regular intervals. Training covers a wide range of areas including legislation, the
and LCCP and in particular matters of social responsibility (such as categories and numbers of
gaming machines; stakes and prizes; age verification procedures; identification of and
interaction with vulnerable persons; and signposting). It is provided both face to face and
through our bespoke online training academy.

In compliance with applicable Gambling Commission machine technical standards, the details
of return to player percentages are provided for each game.



Page 12

Finally, amongst the notices on the Premises and in compliance with legislation, there will be
notices displayed in a prominent place at the entrances to the Premises stating that no persons
under the age of 18 will be permitted to enter and that the consumption of alcohol will not be
permitted on the Premises at any time.

COVID 19 Secure

In addition to the above details, we are of course in unusual times and are currently not permitted
to open AGCs. Nonetheless, we have since the outset of the pandemic had in place a detailed
Covid19 risk assessment for each of our individual venues for use when they have been, and
will be, permitted to open and those are in accordance with current government guidelines and
BACTA Guidance; all staff have undergone bespoke training and each of our venues have been
rearranged to enhance social distancing. Hand sanitisers are in place at the entrance and in the
venues; customers have their temperature checked on entry and are refused entry if it is above
the acceptable level; staff wear face masks and face masks are offered to customers; machines
and touch points are cleaned at frequent intervals; portable Perspex screens are placed
between machines where appropriate and machines can be put out of use depending on
customers’ movements; customers’ details are obtained before entry; and full signage is
displayed. Measures will obviously be updated as regulations and guidance change.

| trust that the above will provide you with the information you require to process the application,
but if anything further is required, please let me know.

On the basis of the above, | accordingly enclose:-
e an application form;
e Social Responsibility Policies and Procedure documents;

e a drawing referenced HAR_001. You will see that the drawing is coloured to show the
boundary of the premises marked red and the gaming machine area marked green. We
draw your attention to the notes on the drawing; and

e a Local Risk Assessment for the site. As you will note, it has been prepared as if we were
trading at the Premises.

You have agreed that we can make payment remotely. Would you please contact us on receipt
of this application so we can make payment by telephone? Tracey Rose can be contacted on
07778 4999 33.

| confirm that within 7 days of the date on which the application is made the Responsible
Authorities (details of which have been kindly confirmed by your licensing officers) will be served
with notice of the application in statutory form. The requisite press notice will be published in
the Enfield & Haringey Independent within 10 working days, starting on the day after the date
the application is made. The requisite site notice will, from the date on which the application is
made, be displayed for 28 consecutive days, again in accordance with regulations.



Page 13

We will contact you in early course to discuss the application in more detail and to answer any
outstanding questions. Once the consultation period has run its course we will need to liaise
with you with regard to the date of issue of the licence to allow for the relevant internal fit out
works.

In the meantime, please acknowledge receipt of the application and confirm that it is in order.

Yours faithfully

Elizabeth Speed

Group General Counsel
Novomatic UK

for Luxury Leisure
Mobile+44 (0) 7808 571 588
espeed@novomatic.co.uk

Enclosures



Page 14

Application for a premises licence
under the Gambling Act 2005 (standard form)

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

If you are completing this form by hand, please write legibly in block capitals using ink. Use
additional sheets if necessary (marked with the number of the relevant question). You may wish
to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

Where the application is—
e Inrespect of a vessel, or

e To convert an authorisation granted under the Betting, Gaming and Lotteries Act 1963 or
the Gaming Act 1968,

the application should be made on the relevant form for that type of premises or application.

Part 1 — Type of premises licence applied for

Regional Casino [] Large Casino [] Small Casino []
Bingo [] Adult Gaming Centre [X Family Entertainment Centre
Betting (Track) [] Betting (Other) []

Do you hold a provisional statement in respect of the premises? Yes [ ] No [X

If the answer is “yes”, please give the unique reference number for the provisional statement (as
set out at the top of the first page of the statement):

Part 2 — Applicant Details

If you are an individual, please fill in Section A. If the application is being made on behalf of an
organisation (such as a company or partnership), please fill in Section B.

Section A
Individual applicant

1. Title: Mr ] Mrs [] Miss [_] Ms [_] Dr [_] Other (please specify)

2. Surname: Other name(s):
[Use the names given in the applicant’s operating licence or, if the applicant does not hold an

operating licence, as given in any application for an operating licence]

3. Applicant’s address (home or business — [delete as appropriate]):

Postcode:
4(a) The number of the applicant’s operating licence (as set out in the operating licence):

4(b) If the applicant does not hold an operating licence but is in the process of applying for one,
give the date on which the application was made:




Page 15

5. Tick the box if the application is being made by more than one person. []

[Where there are further applicants, the information required in questions 1 to 4 should be
included on additional sheets attached to this form, and those sheets should be clearly marked
“Details of further applicants”.]

Section B
Application on behalf of an organisation

6. Name of applicant business or organisation:
LUXURY LEISURE

[Use the names given in the applicant’s operating licence or, if the applicant does not hold an
operating licence, as given in any application for an operating licence.]

7. The applicant’s registered or principal address:

FIFTH AVENUE PLAZA
QUEENSWAY

TEAM VALLEY TRADING ESTATE
GATESHEAD

TYNE AND WEAR

Postcode: NE11 OBL

8(a) The number of the applicant’s operating licence (as given in the operating licence):

000-001876-N-103087-022

8(b) If the applicant does not hold an operating licence but is in the process of applying for one,
give the date on which the application was made:

9. Tick the box if the application is being made by more than one organisation. []

[Where there are further applicants, the information required in questions 6 to 8 should be
included on additional sheets attached to this form, and those sheets should be clearly marked
“Details of further applicants”.]

Part 3 — Premises Details

10. Proposed trading name to be used at the premises (if known):

ADMIRAL

11. Address of the premises (or, if none, give a description of the premises and their location):
513 GREEN LANES

HARINGEY

LONDON

Postcode: N4 1AN

12. Telephone number at premises (if known): N/A




Page 16

13. If the premises are in only a part of a building, please describe the nature of the building (for
example, a shopping centre or office block). The description should include the number of floors
within the building and the floor(s) on which the premises are located.

THE PREMISES ARE LOCATED ON THE GROUND FLOOR OF A 3 STOREY
TERRACED BUILDING IN A STREET OF MIXED USES WITH SOME RESIDENTIAL
ABOVE.

14(a) Are the premises situated in more than one licensing authority area?

NO [delete as appropriate]

14(b). If the answer to question 14(a) is yes, please give the names of all the licensing authorities
within whose area the premises are partly located, other than the licensing authority to which
this application is made:

Part 4 — Times of operation

15(a). Do you want the licensing authority to exclude a default condition so that the premises
may be used for longer periods than would otherwise be the case? NO [delete as appropriate]
[Where the relevant kind of premises licence is not subject to any default conditions, the answer
to this question will be no.]

15(b). If the answer to question 15(a) is yes, please complete the table below to indicate the
times when you want the premises to be available for use under the premises licence.

Start Finish Details of any seasonal variation
Mon hh:mm hh:mm

Tue
Wed
Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun

16. If you wish to apply for a premises licence with a condition restricting gambling to specific
periods in a year, please state the periods below using calendar dates:




Page 17

Part 5 — Miscellaneous

17. Proposed commencement date for licence (leave blank if you want the licence to commence
as soon as it is issued): PLEASE SEE COVERING LETTER

18(a). Does the application relate to premises which are part of a track or other sporting venue
which already has a premises licence? NO [delete as appropriate]

18(b). If the answer to question 18(a) is yes, please confirm by ticking the box that an application
to vary the main track premises licence has been submitted with this application. [ ]

19(a). Do you hold any other premises licences that have been issued by this licensing
authority?

NO, BUT PLEASE SEE BELOW

19(b). If the answer to question 19(a) is yes, please provide full details:

THE APPLICANT’S SISTER COMPANY, TALARIUS LIMITED, HOLDS PREMISES
LICENCES UNDER THE GAMBLING ACT 2005 ISSUED BY THE LICENSING
AUTHORITY:

AGC PREMISES LICENCE REFERENCED LN/000008952
ADMIRAL, 9 HIGH ROAD, WOOD GREEN, LONDON, N22 6BH

AGC PREMISES LICENCE REFERENCED LN/000005697
ADMIRAL, 117 HIGH ROAD, WOOD GREEN, LONDON, N22 6BB

AGC PREMISES LICENCE REFERENCED LN/000005700
ADMIRAL, 475 HIGH ROAD, TOTTENHAM, LONDON, N17 6QA

AGC PREMISES LICENCE REFERENCED LN/000005699
ADMIRAL, 475A HIGH ROAD, TOTTENHAM, LONDON, N17 6QA (GOLD ROOM)

20. Please set out any other matters which you consider to be relevant to your application:

WE ARE A LONG-ESTABLISHED NATIONAL OPERATOR WITH VERY HIGH
STANDARDS OF OPERATION AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY.

Part 6 — Declarations and Checklist (Please tick

I/ We confirm that, to the best of my/ our knowledge, the information contained in
this application is true. I/ We understand that it is an offence under section 342 of
the Gambling Act 2005 to give information which is false or misleading in, or in
relation to, this application.

I/ We confirm that the applicant(s) have the right to occupy the premises.
Checklist:

o Payment of the appropriate fee has been made/is enclosed

e A plan of the premises is enclosed

¢ |/ we understand that if the above requirements are not complied with the
application may be rejected

¢ |/ we understand that it is now necessary to advertise the application and
give the appropriate notice to the responsible authorities

X XXX X X




Page 18

Part 7 — Signatures

21. Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent. If signing on
behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity:

Signature:

Print Name: ELIZABETH JANE SPEED
Date: 14™ APRIL 2021 Capacity: GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL

22. For joint applications, signature of 2nd applicant, or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other
authorised agent. If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity:

Signature:

Print Name:
Date: (dd/mml/yyyy) Capacity:

[Where there are more than two applicants, please use an additional sheet clearly marked
“Signature(s) of further applicant(s)”. The sheet should include all the information requested in
paragraphs 21 and 22.]

[Where the application is to be submitted in an electronic form, the signature should be
generated electronically and should be a copy of the person’s written signature.]

Part 8 — Contact Details

23(a) Please give the name of a person who can be contacted about the application:

ELIZABETH SPEED — GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL

23(b) Please give one or more telephone numbers at which the person identified in question
23(a) can be contacted:

07808 571 588

24. Postal address for correspondence associated with this application:

LUXURY LEISURE

FIFTH AVENUE PLAZA
QUEENSWAY

TEAM VALLEY TRADING ESTATE
GATESHEAD

TYNE AND WEAR

Postcode: NE11 OBL

25. If you are happy for correspondence in relation to your application to be sent via e-mail,
please give the e-mail address to which you would like correspondence to be sent:

espeed@novomatic.co.uk



mailto:espeed@novomatic.co.uk

Page 19

NEE|

Cy

J=

ENTRANCE

Red line denotes premises boundary

Green line denotes gaming machine
area

Layout of premises within gaming
machine areas and layout of ancillary
non-gambling areas are indicative only
and subject to change according to
operational requirements

0 1 2 3 4 5
1100 e

Scale inm
RECORD

pwe no: HAR_001

CLENT:  Admiral

PROJECT: 513 Green Lanes
HARINGEY
London
N4 1AN

TME  LICENSING PLAN

GAMB I-I NG ACT 2005 Luxury Leisure, Talarius & Ral, Ltd.
Fifth Avenue Plaza, Queensway
Team Valley Trading Estate
Gateshead, NE11 0BL
Revision: == CHECKED: +44 (0)191 497 8200 / WWW.ADMIRALSLOTS.CO.UK / WWW.NOVOMATICUK.COM

scAle: 1:100@A4 oae:  3/9/20




Haringey http://marketareatool.azurewebsites.net/Map/SiteLocationMap/408

L e v 9 North Harringay galde™® ™" a 1SoLY LapiToo
opishet Primary School -t = 7 West Green Fa e
f_ Q Primary School 3 2 ==
: wiand Rd :; A 2 2; ::
L AL _a ad ;‘vu‘,z‘?"ﬁ& Cxx § g
Fairland Park o = ad )
'Gameli A2 — 1T
Lendor . - Jam in a J: |TQ ; M—
Location Types ¥ .
pplies ‘w =z
rd RA Q e o ) nlr.!.',,,.‘% R \\
Selal ﬂ _'_ )
Eb%‘ Q ‘ astnuts Prim§’y School Q ; Ch
%5.‘ vﬁBS Transport i Hewitt R4 The Salisbury Ho &5 o M - =
T Hewitt Rd V | g o
caurTon L odanas p o | Q)
Jour Rd = 5 5 ChestnutCafe< Q
Imex Hornsey § geymour R 2 | o
geymour Rd /\ - =
salisbu ry Rd <.1"4‘,'1C ~ B
‘ Iceland Foo AL
x-TNT Depot @) e Q | Kimberley Garden
\ '»J:‘. uzL )
fe Aggregate Industries Q 9 ‘ pemberton Rd mrringdy Po 'fige o
' - < n <
\“ﬂ’% % Ferme Park Sidings = I— 9 -
\ = '-_;::u o e IV noseberry G2 :

| 1'?} % ’jf Antepl Q Roseberry Gardens g
_ r”: X
» Duc ket -9
ationers Park B ket RE Q () Autiand Gardens” 3
{ avendis " Q I
A . sraphope l’i.’ﬁf‘j“ﬂ'»‘
Med-Chem Fg )JV stanhope GU(EETE Arena Design Centre 9

Samuki Londone
«Go gle O’g < Jmireville R 7 Samsburyse

(https://maps.google. cor‘ﬁ/maps"ll 51.581746,-0. 101303&2-196&¥ m&hl=en- GB&g]r;us&mﬁm:hmpteapn@)tps IWWW. google com/maps/@51 5817457,-0.1013033,16z/data= '10m1'1e1'125@$b11[061=ﬁf%p0&

N =

v

,al Jus

lof 12 09/03/2021, 11:13



Haringey http://marketareatool.azurewebsites.net/Map/SiteLocationMap/408

Selected Location Types
¢ Banks

Name: Barclays Bank

Address: 67 Grand Parade, Green Lanes, London
Name: Turkish Bank (UK) Ltd

Address: 577-579 Green Lanes, London

¢ Betting shops

Name: Ladbrokes

-

Address: 1 Rutland Gardens, London 8
(9]
N
H

Name: Paddy Power

Address: 507 Green Lanes, London

Name: William Hill

Address: Mary Rose Mall, 14 Frobisher Rd, London

Name: William Hill

Address: 435 Green Lanes, London

Name: William Hill

20f12 09/03/2021, 11:13



Haringey

30f12

Address: 472,480 W Green Rd, London
Name: William Hill
Address: 297-301 W Green Rd, London

¢ Casino/AGC

Doctors Surgery

Name: House of Smiles

Address: 517 Green Lanes, London

Name: The OId Surgery

Address: 572 Green Lanes, London

Name: The Jennifer Home

Address: 17 Pemberton Road, London

Name: MEDI-PARK CLINIC

Address: 573 Green Lanes, London

Name: Just Health HGV PCV D4 MEDICALS HARRINGAY
Address: 573 Green Lanes, London

http://marketareatool.azurewebsites.net/Map/SiteLocationMap/408

Z2c obed

09/03/2021, 11:13



Haringey

4 of 12

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Patel DrV N D

572 Green Lanes, London

Dr. Teoman Sirri

Not located at this adress, 336 Saint Ann's Road, Harringay, London

Sos Footcare

401 Green Lanes, London

@ Drug and Alcohol Treatment facilities

¢ Hostels

¢ Nurseries

Name: Little Jewels Pre-school

Address: St Pauls Church Centre, Cavendish Rd, London
Name: Woodlands Park Nursery School & Children Centre
Address: 74-76 Woodlands Park Rd, London

Name: Brown Bears Nursery - Green Lanes

Address: 582 Green Lanes, London

Name: Busy Bunnies

http://marketareatool.azurewebsites.net/Map/SiteLocationMap/408

ez abed

09/03/2021, 11:13



Haringey http://marketareatool.azurewebsites.net/Map/SiteLocationMap/408

Address: Wightman Rd, London

Pawn Shops

Name: Cash Converters

Address: Unit 4, Tottenham, 480, W Green Rd, London
Name: Safir Jewellers

Address: 447 Green Lanes, London

¢ Payday Loan Shops

-
- &

¢ Place of worship o

Name: Glenwood Road Kingdom Hall of Jehovah's Witnesses ﬁ

Address: 5a Glenwood Road, London

Name: Mustard Seed Chapel International, NSG Branch

Address: 628 Green Lanes, London

Name: The Parish Church of St. Paul Harringay

Address: Wightman Road, London

Name: Harringay United Church

Address: Green Lanes, Harringay, London

50f12 09/03/2021, 11:13



Haringey

6 of 12

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Eagle Nursery Ltd Within Haringey United Church

Junction of Alison Road & Green Lanes, Corner of, Harringay, London

Saint Augustine's of Canterbury Church (Roman Catholic)

51 Mattison Road, London

Lighthouse Seventh-day Adventist Church

88B Cavendish Road, London

Holy Spirit Conference - Freedom - MCL Church

Wightman Road, London

¢ Pubs and Bars

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

The Salisbury Hotel

1 Grand Parade, Green Lanes, London

Brouhaha

501 Green Lanes, London

Bun & Bar

553 Green Lanes, London

http://marketareatool.azurewebsites.net/Map/SiteLocationMap/408

Gz abed

09/03/2021, 11:13



Haringey

7 of 12

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Beans & Barley

Etcetera Workshop, Green Lanes, London

Diyarbakir Restaurant

69 Grand Parade, Green Lanes, London

Jam in a Jar

599A Green Lanes, London

The Old Ale Emporium

405 Green Lanes, London

LimitedLDN

5 Grand Parade, Green Lanes, London

Brou's Cellar London

499 Green Lanes, London

Bun & Bar Dalston

11 Stoke Newington Road, London

Green Lanes Cafe & Bar

7, Salisbury Promenade, Green Lanes, London

http://marketareatool.azurewebsites.net/Map/SiteLocationMap/408

9z abed

09/03/2021, 11:13



Haringey

8of 12

Name: Ora Cafe & Bar

Address: 581 Green Lanes, London

Name: The Langham Club

Address: 600 Green Lanes, London

Name: Abraco

Address: 60 Grand Parade, Green Lanes, London
School

Name: Woodlands Park Nursery School & Children Centre

Address: 74-76 Woodlands Park Road, London

Name: South Haringay Infant School & The Ladder Children's Centre

Address: Pemberton Road, London

Name: South Haringey Infant School

Address: Pemberton Road, London

Name: music teacher

Address: 37 Duckett Road, London

http://marketareatool.azurewebsites.net/Map/SiteLocationMap/408

/.2 abed

09/03/2021, 11:13



Haringey

90f12

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Nat Yelverton Music Tuition

186B Wightman Road, London

South Harringay Junior School

Mattison Road, London

Saint John Vianney Roman Catholic Primary School

Stanley Road, London

South Harringay Infant & Nursery School

110 Pemberton Road, London

Brown Bears Nursery - Green Lanes

582 Green Lanes, London

Demirdégmez Turkish Clarinet School

582-584 Green Lanes, London

Firat Altay - Piano Music Tuition

33 Stanhope Gardens, London

Guitar Lessons Haringey

34B Ritches Road, London

http://marketareatool.azurewebsites.net/Map/SiteLocationMap/408

gz obed

09/03/2021, 11:13



Haringey http://marketareatool.azurewebsites.net/Map/SiteLocationMap/408

Name: Little Jewels Pre-school

Address: Saint Pauls Church Centre, Cavendish Road, London

Transport nodes

Name: St Ann's Road
Address: United Kingdom
Name: Mattison Road
Address: United Kingdom
-
Name: St Ann's Road (Stop HH) 8
Address: United Kingdom g
o
Name: Mattison Road (Stop HN)
Address: United Kingdom
Name: Harringay Road (Stop HL)
Address: United Kingdom
Name: St Ann's Road (Stop HK)
Address: United Kingdom

10 0of 12 09/03/2021, 11:13



Haringey

11 of 12

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Mattison Road (Stop HG)

United Kingdom

Beresford Road

United Kingdom

Beresford Road (Stop HJ)

United Kingdom

Beresford Road (Stop HZ)

United Kingdom

Warwick Gardens (Stop HP)

United Kingdom

Warwick Gardens

United Kingdom

Warwick Gardens (Stop HX)

Saint Ann's Road, London

Harringay Green Lanes Station (Stop HM)

United Kingdom

http://marketareatool.azurewebsites.net/Map/SiteLocationMap/408

o€ abed

09/03/2021, 11:13



Haringey http://marketareatool.azurewebsites.net/Map/SiteLocationMap/408

Name: Harringay Green Lanes Station

Address: United Kingdom

T¢ abed

12 of 12 09/03/2021, 11:13



Page 32

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE
GAMBLING ACT 2005

Notice is hereby given that:
Luxury Leisure
of the following address:

Fifth Avenue Plaza
Queensway

Team Valley Trading Estate
Gateshead

Tyne and Wear

NE11 0BL

is applying for an Adult Gaming Centre premises licence under Section 159 of the Gambling
Act 2005.

The application relates to the following premises:

Admiral
513 Green Lanes

Haringey
London
N4 1AN

The application has been made to:

Haringey Council
Licensing Team
Level 1 North
River Park House
225 High Road
London

N22 8HQ

Information about the application is available from the licensing authority, including the
arrangements for viewing the details of the application.

Any of the following persons may make representations in writing to the licensing authority
about the application:

* A person who lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by
the authorised activities;

¢ A person who has business interests that might be affected by the authorised
activities

¢ A person who represents someone In any of the above two categories
Any representations must be made by the following date:
11/05/2021

It is an offence under section 342 of the Gambling Act 2005 if a person, without

reasonable excuse, gives to a licensing authority for a purpose connected with that
Act Information which Is false or misleading.

Notcn - % & Prase




13

| CASHFOR.
Oyt B
ANY l:llllmlll_

07415
902316

e

07415
902316

4

ch The crane ij\ﬁt 5

\

o




NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR A
wucmmm

prpm—— I ————— =
Nolice 18 hermoy given that —

111082021
lhmmmmmdnwumnmm
reasonable

to ‘authority for with that
P mﬂv--lm @ purpose connected




N LU);U RY

NOVOMAT I C GROUP

Local Risk Assessment — Gambling Act 2005 Licensing Objectives

Premises
Premises Name: Admiral
Premises Address: 513 Green Lanes, Haringey
Premises Post Code: N4 1AN
Premises Licence
Number:
Category of Premises: AGC

Company
Operating Company: Luxury Leisure
Operating Licence LL — 1876
Number:

Assessment Writer

Name of Person Writing this Assessment: Shaun Hooper

Position within Company or Name of Authorised Regional Operations Director
Agent:

Date of this Assessment March 2021

Date that Original Assessment was Written March 2021

Gg abed



LUXURY
.y N\LEISURE
bacta ?O TALARIUS

NOVOMAT I C GROUP

Gambling Act 2005 — The Licensing Objectives

The Gambling Act 2005 sets out the three licensing objectives (LO), which are:

GLOBAL GAMBLING GUIDANCE GROUTP

(A) Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime;

(B) Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and

(C) Protecting children and other vulnerable people from being harmed or exploited by gambling.

This document seeks to assess the risk to these objectives that our operation may pose and where necessary what measures we have put in

place to mitigate that risk.

Independent Accreditation

9¢ abed

Luxury Leisure Talarius have attained the prestigious Global Gaming Guidance Group (G4) accreditation. This is only awarded after a rigorous
audit of the company’s responsible gambling measures. Furthermore, the company have to be reassessed every 2 years in order for it to be

maintained.



LUXURY

7
ﬂ? GLOBAL GAMBLING GUIDANCE GROUTP

)
bacta @@ TALARIUS

NOVOMAT I C GROUP

Local Area and Site Profile

The AGC is located in the town centre on the high street and sits amongst other national high street retailers as well as some local shops.
There are high street banks nearby which have ATM facilities. There are a number of other licensed betting offices in the immediate vicinity but
spread along the high street and throughout the vicinity, they are not clustered in one part of the town centre. There is another AGC operated
by a competitor in the immediate vicinity. There are a number of premises licensed for the sale and consumption of alcohol within the 500
metre radius used in the compilation of this assessment but none in the immediate vicinity of the premises.

Whilst there are no schools for children of secondary school age nearby, there is South Harringay Junior and Infant school nearby and the
mapping provided by the local authority in its local area profile shows a number of gambling premises in proximity to the school (8).

There is a bus stop 5 meters from the venue on the same side of the street. Harringay mainline train station is not within the 500 metre radius
but is a 15-minute walk from the premises.

There are no addiction support facilities nearby.

The venue has a single entrance/exit at street level to the front, a double doorway leading directly into the gaming area which is rectangular in
shape. The meet and greet station is located prominently towards the front of the store giving a clear line of sight and command of the
entrance. The Venue will offer machines of category D, C and B3 with stakes ranging from 10p to a maximum £2. The venue does not offer VIP
or loyalty schemes.

The Local Area Profile provided by the local authority identifies the borough as being one of the most deprived in the UK, 13" out of 326 and
the 4" most deprived in London. The area in which the venue operates has relatively high levels of crime with 1932 crimes recorded in
February 2021, the most prevalent being violence against the person 569, vehicle offences 383 and theft (other than robbery and burglary) 353.
The venue is not located in the east of the borough, highlighted in its local area profile as its most problematic area with regards to crime.
Neither does the local area profile highlight the venue as being in a high betting shop crime area in the maps it provides.

Our regulatory return data in other comparable north London venues does not reflect any specific problems associated with consumer
complaints, the need to call police for assistance or attempts by children and young persons to enter the premises.

The venue trades 7 days per week. Mon-Sun 09:00-23.00.

/€ abed



\ LU);U RY

NOVOMAT I C GROUP

The local authority statement of principles (SOP) in relation to the Gambling Act 2005 has been considered in the completion of this
assessment. The statement does not offer specific guidance on the geographic extent to be considered when completing this assessment but
does contain a helpful local area profile.

The SOP recognises the significant requirements of the LCCP placed on operators to promote safer gambling and to prevent harm by
supporting customers through implementing mandatory measures such as self-exclusion and signposting to sources of help. The local
authority explicitly state that it is concerned for the health and well being of its residents and seeks to identify those at risk from gabling related

harm. It also sets out its expectations with regards Local Risk Assessments which is detailed and has been considered in the completion of
this assessment.

g¢ abed



N2
bacta

(i

LUXURY
NLEISURE
TALARIUS

NOVOMAT I C GROUP

ﬁ? GLOBAL GAMBLING GUIDANCE GROUTP

Risk Identification LO Level of Impact Risk Management Reviewed
Risk
Children entering site C Low Severe to business. Layout of premises considered in staff numbers March 2021
unnoticed. Severe to child. and deployment. A minimum of 2 staff are
rostered on duty at any one time. Breaks and
shift changes are planned to take account of
Children enter site with C Low Severe to business. school closing times to ensure there is always March 2021
adult. Moderate to child. supervision of the gaming area.
Staff deployed to specific zones for which they
C Low Severe to business. have responsibility. March 2021
Children enter site and Severe to child. Machine layout takes into consideration lines of
play before being noticed. site to the entrance.
The meet and greet station is positioned to give
Children enter site and C Low Severe to business. line of sight to the entrance. March 2021
play V\éhefde age is Severe to child. CCTV cameras positioned to cover all parts of
misjudged. . o
Age verification is not C Low Severe to business. th(‘-:'.premlsej's but1speC|f|caIIy the entrance, March 2021
sought. Severe to child. A ‘live-monitored’ hold-up alarm system has
been installed to provide additional security and
: : assist staff manage the premises.
Young person wearing face | C Low Severe to bu§|ness. The company operate a ‘Think 25’ policy in March 2021
covering is not challenged Severe to child. . ) . .
for verification of age. which all staff are trained at induction and they
Children knowingly C Low Severe to business. receive regular refresh training. March 2021
allowed to play. Severe to child. All staff are trained in social responsibility as
Those made vulnerable C Low Severe to business. part of their Inductlop gnd are provided with March 2021
through abuse of drugs Severe to regular refresher training.
and/or alcohol having customer. Posters and displays of acceptable identification
access to gambling. on site for staff.
Those considered to be
vulnerable, having access
to gambling. (We adopt a

6¢ abed



2
bacta

mpomann

LUXURY
NLEISURE

=
GLOBAL GAMBLING GUIDANCE GROUTP

?O TALARIUS

NOVOMAT I C

GROUP

broad definition of - Clear ‘Over 18’ signage is displayed, visible
vulnerable’ to include but from outside and also in the entrance to the
not limited to those .
suffering from mental premlses._ _ )
illness, recently bereaved, - Luxury Leisure/Talarius use independent test
suffering from long-term or purchasing operations. All venues are tested at
terminal iliness, difficulty least twice in a rolling 12-month period.
communicating, learning _ )
disability, substance - Our staff are trained to look for the signs of CSE
misuse or addiction, using a CSE training module on our Admiral
breal|<do|wtr_1 of %'_059 ©) Academy training platform.
personal relationsnips etc _ P . .
Child sexual exploitation Low Severe to business. The venue is Ir_]Sta”ed‘ with IBea_CO? teChno_l()gY March 2021
(CSE) - Sexual abuse Severe to child or able to work with the ‘Gamblewise’ app which is
where a child or young young person. free for our customers to download and use to
person 'T ftordc?dtor assist them manage their time spent gambling.
manipulated into . o .
inappropriate sexual - _Strmggnt disciplinary proc.e.dur_es for fgllures
activities, often n exchange identified through age verification testing.
for alcohol, drugs, gifts or - Social Responsibility returns data reviewed
attention. Although through submissions from Area Managers to
children and young Nai IC ! M
persons are not permitted a 'Onjd omp |ar'1c.e. anager. _
into AGC premises, it is - All social responsibility returns data subject to a
possible that a customer quarterly compliance review.
could target or be targeted - Staff log all attempts to enter by young persons
by nearby children or .
young persons as they on the appropriate log.
enter or leave our venue. - Staff have been trained to ask a customer to
lower a face covering if necessary, this has the
effect of allowing staff to adjudge the apparent
age of all customers and if necessary challenge
for verification by the presentation of ID.
Failure to provide Low Severe to business March 2021
information to players on Severe to customer
responsible gambling.

0t abed



N2
bacta

(i

LUXURY

NLEISURE
TALARIUS

GLOBAL GAMBLING GUIDANCE GROUTP

NOVOMAT I C GROUP
- Aresponsible Gambling message is displayed
at all positions where gaming is possible through
Failure to provide Low Severe to business. posters, leaflets and stickers on machines. March 2021
information in a suitable Severe to - Poster/Leaflet designs to incorporate QR codes
format. customer. for GAMCARE, Playnice.org and Gambleaware
contact information.
- Responsible Gambling information stickers on
all machines.
- Compliance Audit function performed by Area
Manager and also through regional field auditors
and security managers.
- Luxury Leisure Talarius have attained the Global
Gaming Guidance Group (G4) accreditation for
our responsible gambling measures.
Failure to recognise signs Low Severe to business - Additional aspects to training incorporating March 2021
of problem gambling. Severe to customer guidance on identifying problem gambling,
procedure for interaction and sources of help.
- Clear policy to detail the procedure for
Failure to interact with Low Severe to business. interaction and level of staff that can ‘intervene’. | March 2021
customer displaying signs Severe to - New ‘Stay in control leaflets’ with QR codes to
of problem gambling. customer. .
Screens erected as part of Low Severe to business. Playnice.org and GAMCARE and Gambleaware. March 2021
measures to be ‘COVID Severe to - All recorded SR data subject to a quarterly
Secure’ preventing staff customer. compliance review by senior management.
from being able to - Staff have been trained to ask a customer to
effectively monitor players . ]
in relation to Age lower a face covering if necessary This has the
Verification, customer effect of allowing staff to adjudge the apparent
interaction and self- age of all customers and if necessary challenge
exclusion.

T abed



LUXURY
NLEISURE
TALARIUS

NOVOMAT I C GROUP

=
GLOBAL GAMBLING GUIDANCE GROUTP

bacta (7

Failure to sign-post Low Severe to business. for verification by the presentation of ID and also | March 2021
customer to help and Severe to to identify if a customer attempting to enter is
support. customer.

self-excluded.

Screens are available to create a barrier when

2M social distancing is not practicable but are

not floor to ceiling and are not deep enough so

as to enclose a machine position, they simply

divide it from the adjacent machines. Staff can

continue to monitor their customers.

The screens are portable, on their own foot, and

therefore can be moved by staff so as not to

create enclosed machine positions in a venue.

Low Severe to business. Staff training incorporates policy and procedure | March 2021

Failure to properly Severe to for self-exclusion
administer self-exclusion. customer. Sj April 2016 L Lei [Talarius h
Failure to impose Low Severe to business. Ince Apri uxury Leisure aa'rlus ave' March 2021
exclusion in locality and in Severe to operated one or both of the AGC national multi-
same types of customer. operator self-exclusion schemes (MOSES),
establishments. offered through BACTA and IHL.

Digital cameras or suitable tablet devices are

provided at all sites to take an image of
Customer breaches of self- Low Severe to business. customers wishing to self-exclude so that the March 2021
exclusion. fj‘s’tegfn;? exclusion can be effectively enforced.

' The location of the site in relation to the

customer’s home address and any regular
Customer breaches self- Unknown Moderate to routes to work for example will be considered if March 2021
exclusion by using another business. the customer requests a wider exclusion.
to gamble on their behalf. Severe to .

customer. All SR returns data subject to a quarterly
compliance review.

2 abed



LUXURY

NLEISURE

?O TALARIUS

NOVOMAT I C

GROUP

GLOBAL GAMBLING GUIDANCE GROUTP

All staff trained to regularly check the MOSES
gallery relating to their venue to ensure
information shared from other local operators

relating to self-excluded customers is monitored.

Money Laundering
(Dye stained notes and
Criminal spend).

Low

Low — Severe

The company have a Money Laundering
Reporting Officer (MLRO).

Staff training at induction and refresh training.
Luxury Leisure/Talarius have a corporate AML
Risk Assessment and policies and procedures
relating to AML.

£1000 limit on automated transactions using
TITO. Any greater amounts require the
intervention of a staff member.

Technical parameters on note acceptors
designed to reject poor quality notes. (Often
notes obtained by way of robbery are perished).
Manufacturer activity alerts from machines on
independent networks (primarily SG and
Inspired).

TITO tickets not transferable between sites.
Change machines set up so that notes cannot
be changed ‘up’.

Comprehensive CCTV coverage in all sites.
Partnerships with local police where appropriate
to identify and discourage criminal spend.

March 2021

Commission of criminal
offences to fund problem
gambling

Low

Low — Severe

Stringent policy and procedures in place to
identify and intervene with customers who may
be vulnerable to harm through problem
gambling. See above under Information to

March 2021

¢ abed



\ LU);U RY

NOVOMAT I C GROUP

players, Customer Interaction and Self-

Exclusion.
Anti-social behaviour A Low Low — Severe - Access control measures either through door March 2021
associated with late night supervision or physical controls, utilised at night
operation where appropriate.
- Policy of non-players refused entry or asked to
leave.
- Refreshments offered only to players and known
customers.
Poor security increasing A Low Low — Severe - A’live-monitored’ hold-up alarm system is used March 2021
vulnerability to robbery or so that monitoring station staff can communicate

theft. with and support shop staff through CCTV and

two way audio using mics and speakers
mounted in the ceiling.

- All staff have personal attack ‘hold-up’ alarms
and there are some strategically placed static
alarms also.

- The premises are fitted with an intruder alarm
which can also be live monitored from the
monitoring station, meaning alarm activations
are verified, using sight and sound, by the
monitoring station thus reducing the number of
false alarms to police.

- Extensive CCTV coverage with recording of
approx. 30 days of footage.

- Strict key storage procedure.

- Time lock and/or time delay safes utilised.

- Drop safe used for banking.

- Staff personal floats limited to £200.

10

17 abed



mpomann

2
bacta

LUXURY

NLEISURE

?O TALARIUS

NOVOMAT I C

GROUP

=
GLOBAL GAMBLING GUIDANCE GROUTP

Advertising Standards and
Marketing

Low

Low — Moderate

All advertising and marketing by the Company
complies with standards set by the Committee of
Advertising Practice (CAP) and the Broadcast
Committee of Advertising Practice (BCAP). We
ensure that our marketing communications,
advertisements, and invitations to purchase
(within the meaning of the Consumer Protection
from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008), including
‘free bet’ offers, do not amount to or involve
misleading actions or misleading omissions
within the meaning of those regulations. We
adopt the general principles that our advertising
is:

legal, decent, honest and truthful

Prepared with a sense of responsibility to
consumers and to society

Respectful to the principles of fair competition
generally accepted in business

Not intended to bring advertising into disrepute.

Specifically we ensure that:

Advertising contains nothing that is likely to lead
people to adopt styles of gambling that are
unwise

Advertisements and promotions are socially
responsible and do not encourage excessive
gambling

Care is taken not to exploit the young, the
immature or those who are mentally or socially
vulnerable

Advertising is not directed at people under the
age of 18 years through the selection of media,
style of presentation, content or context in which
they appear. No medium is used to advertise
gambling if more than 20% of its audience is
under 18 years old

March 2021

11

Gy obed



)
\

H

LUXURY

NLEISURE

?O TALARIUS

NOVOMAT I C

GROUP

GLOBAL GAMBLING GUIDANCE GROUTP

Persons shown gambling are not, nor do they
appear to be, under 25 years of age

There is honesty at all times with regard to the
chances of winning, the likelihood of a big win,
and the odds or payout ratio that applies to the
gambling on offer

Advertising and promotional material carries a
reference for the need to keep gambling under
control

It is never suggested or implied that gambling is
a means of getting out of financial difficulty.
Advertising and marketing material should not
appear on any primary web page/screen or
micro-site that provides advice or information on
responsible gambling.

Marketing decisions are controlled by the central
marketing department and a system is in place
for local managers to apply for marketing
initiatives that are approved by the Head of
Marketing to ensure they are legal, honest and
compliant with the Gambling Act/License
Conditions & Codes of Practice.

Failure to display Terms Low Low — Moderate - Terms and Conditions displayed prominently March 2021
and Conditions within the premises.
Failure to deal with Low Low — Moderate - Machines only acquired from licensed suppliers. | March 2021

customers making
complaints about the
outcome of gambling

Additional machine compliance checks
completed by a technician when installing new
machines.

Machine maintenance carried out by qualified
technician.

Clear service complaint protocol to deal with
machine or game performance related customer
complaints.

12

o abed



LUXURY

)
\

H

acta ?O TALARIUS

NOVOMAT I C GROUP

- Customer complaints policy and procedure.

- Complaints policy and procedure displayed
prominently in each site.

- Complaint forms available at each site.

- Luxury Leisure head office complaints telephone
line.

- Novomatic UK group complaints channel.

- Registered with an ADR entity — BACTA.

Requirement to Comply

All non-remote casino, adult gaming centre, bingo, family entertainment centre, betting and remote betting intermediary (trading room only)
licences, except non-remote general betting (limited) and betting intermediary licences

Effective as at 6 April 2016
Social responsibility code provision 10.1.1

1. Licensees must assess the local risks to the licensing objectives posed by the provision of gambling facilities at each of their
premises, and have policies, procedures and control measures to mitigate those risks. In making risk assessments, licensees must
take into account relevant matters identified in the licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy.

2. Licensees must review (and update as necessary) their local risk assessments.
a. to take account of significant changes in local circumstances, including those identified in a licensing authority’s statement of
licensing policy;
b. when there are significant changes at a licensee’s premises that may affect their mitigation of local risks;
c. when applying for a variation of a premises licence; and
d. in any case, undertake a local risk assessment when applying for a new premises licence.

Ordinary code provision 10.1.2

13

LEISURE n
GLOBAL GAMBLING GUIDANCE GROUP

)1 abed



LUXURY

~ ) LEISURE n -
b GLOBAL GAMBLING GUIDANCE GROUP

bacta ?O TALARIUS

NOVOMAT I C GROUP

1. Licensees should share their risk assessment with licensing authorities when applying for a premises licence or applying for a
variation to existing licensed premises, or otherwise on request.

14

8 abed



LUXE@ge 49

=\ \LEISURE

bacta @ AURIS

®
bl b BeGambleAware.org

Soclal Responsibility
Policies and Procedure
Documents

Gambling Act 2005
Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice

Luxury Leisure / Talarius Version 3
Effective from March 2020

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200

GAMCARE



L age 50

=, *P\LEISURE

baCta @ ~LARIUS

®
i e BeGambleAware org AMCARE

THE LICENSING OBJECTIVES

This white Social Responsibility Folder and its contents are provided to make sure that we all strive to
meet the 3 Licensing Objectives of the Gambling Act 2005.

1. Prevent gambling from becoming a
source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or
being used to support crime.

2. Ensuring that gambling is conducted
In a fair and open way.

3. Protecting children and other

vulnerable persons from being harmed
or exploited from gambling

GAMBLING ACT 2005

Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020



' LUX @ge 51

\LEISURE
7@ TALARIUS

Index of Policy and Procedure Documents

BeGambleﬁmware.cnrg®

GAMCARE

Section No | Section Title Version Number
Section 1 Principal Concepts V2 October 2019
Section 2 Access to Gambling by Children and Young Persons V2 October 2019
Access to Gambling by Children and Young Persons Log V1 June 2019
Section 3 Customer Interaction V2 October 2019
Customer Interaction Log Level One Log V2 October 2019
Section 4 Information on how to Gamble Responsibly and Help for Problem V1 June 2019
Gamblers
Section 5 Stay in Control leaflet V2 October 2019
Stay in Control Multilingual Leaflet V2 October 2019
Section 6 Self-Exclusion V3 March 2020
Self-Exclusion Log V2 October 2019
Self-Exclusion IPSOS MORI Evaluation Information Sheet and FAQs | V1 October 2019
Section 7 Fair and Open Practice & Complaint and Dispute Resolution V2 October 2019
Fair and Open Practice & Complaint and Dispute Resolution Log V2 October 2019
Fair and Open Practice & Complaint and Dispute Resolution V1 June 2019
Complaint Form
Fair and Open Practice & Complaint and Dispute Resolution Terms | V2 October 2019
& Conditions
Section 8 Customer Incidents Requiring Police Assistance Log V1 June 2019
Section 9 Money Laundering V1 June 2019
Money Laundering Log V1 June 2019
Section 10 Local Gambling Risk Assessments V1 June 2019
Section 11 Access to Premises by the Gambling Commission’s Enforcement V2 October 2019
Officers
Section 12 Employment of Children and Young Persons V1 June 2019
Section 13 Advertising Standards and Marketing V1 June 2019
Section 14 Staff Training Summary V1 June 2019
Section 15 Memo’s and Amendments

The contents of this folder must not be edited, modified or altered in any way, unless authorised by Head Office.
Failure to follow this instruction, will lead to disciplinary proceedings.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200




, L. age 52

" \ §

bacta @

--------------- BeGambleAware.org AMCARE
Section 1

Principal Concepts
Statement
Whilst Gaming in an Admiral venue is intended to be a fun and enjoyable leisure experience, we believe it is our
responsibility to our customers to ensure that they are protected from the harms associated with problem
gambling. To this end we employ a range of measures to prevent our customers suffering from gambling related
harms and also signpost those whose gambling is having an adverse impact on other aspects of their life, to the
best sources of help.

The Company also recognises its responsibility and obligation to comply with the Licensing Objectives of the
Gambling Act 2005 and the Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice. Social responsibility awareness is an
important aspect of our day-to-day operating practice, and monitoring of policies and procedures is regularly
reviewed and subject to change as part of our ongoing risk assessment.

Licensing Objectives

1. Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or disorder or
being used to support crime.

2. Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way.

3. Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling.

Policy and Procedures

We put into effect policies and procedures intended to promote socially responsible gambling that includes
making an annual financial contribution for education and research into the prevention and treatment of
gambling-related harm, the development of harm prevention measures and the treatment of those with gambling
related disorders.

We operate an on-going training program for staff to ensure awareness and compliance of our social
responsibility and other statutory requirements. Individual written policies and procedures are in place and
adhered to in respect of:

(@) Access to Gambling by Children and Young Persons

(b) Customer Interaction

(© Self-Exclusion

(d) Fair and Open Practice and Dispute Resolution

(e) Money Laundering Suspicious Monetary Transactions and Cash Handling

4) Local Risk Assessments

(9) Information on how to Gamble Responsibly and Help for Problem Gamblers
(h) Access to Premises by the Gambling Commission’s Enforcement Officers
0] Employment of Children and Young Persons

()] Advertising Standards and Marketing

We operate our business with integrity, due care and diligence with necessary systems in place to combat
crime and disorder. Written policies and procedures are in place concerning the handling of cash and cash
equivalents designed to minimise the risk of crime, such as money laundering and the avoidance of illicit credit.

Customer complaints are managed transparently and fairly, and where complaints related to the outcome of
gambling are not resolved to the satisfaction of both parties, we will refer the complainant to an approved
alternative dispute resolution (ADR) entity.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



LUX %ge 53

NLEISURE

—
bacta €@ RIS

®
et meterint BeGambleAware.org GAMCARE

Gaming machines comply with the Gambling Commission’s technical standards by displaying the applicable
maximum stake and monetary prize levels, and the chances of winning. Gambling general terms and conditions
are displayed.

We do not provide credit in connection with gambling nor participate in, arrange, permit or knowingly facilitate
the giving of credit in connection with gambling.

We seek to prevent systematic or organised money lending between customers on the premises and staff are
trained to be alert to such practice and to report any instances of substantial money lending to the Duty Manager
should they become aware of such instances.

It is prohibited to consume alcohol on our premises.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



N L/ LEF.)’E%%'S >
bacta @ LARIUS

®
et meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE

Section 2
Access to Gambling by Children and Young Persons

It is illegal for any person who is under 18 years of age to be permitted entry to an
Adult Gaming Centre or Adult Gaming Area.
Statement
The Company recognises its responsibility and obligation to comply with the Licensing Objectives of the
Gambling Act 2005 and the Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice. Social responsibility awareness is an
important aspect of our day-to-day operating practice, and monitoring of policies and procedures is regularly
reviewed and subject to change as part of our ongoing assessment of risk.

How

We operate a stringent ‘THINK 25’ policy. Any visitor entering our AGCs, where a member of staff believes their
age to be 25 or under, must be challenged and asked to provide ID as verification of their age. This policy is
supported by our employment of an independent third party who conducts test purchasing visits to our venues
in order to ensure that the policy is being implemented and therefore compliance with our license conditions.
These tests are conducted twice in a 12 month rolling period and can take place at any time and with NO prior
notice. (Testing process on page 3).

Policy and Procedures

v' Clear and prominent signage is placed at the entrance(s) to our Adult Gaming Centre(s) and adult area(s)
stating that persons under the age of 18 years are prohibited from entering and that the Company will not
permit entry.

v' The structure and layout of our gambling premises take account of our obligations to prevent access to
gambling by children and young persons.

v" Our policies and procedures also seek to ensure that our facilities do not appeal to children and young
persons through marketing and advertising material in the windows.

v" Any person known to be under 18 years of age or who is unable to verify that they are over 18 years of age
is refused entry.

v" Any person who admits to being under the age of 18 is refused entry.

v" Any person who appears to be under 25 years old and has not previously provided satisfactory proof that
they are over 18 years old, is asked to provide appropriate identification as soon as they come to the attention
of staff. Members of staff are trained to ‘THINK 25°, engage with all customers as soon as they enter a venue
and require valid ID from those who appear to be under the age of 25.

v' It is a matter of gross misconduct to allow entry to our Adult Gaming Centre(s) or Adult gaming Area(s)
(knowingly or otherwise) to a person who appears to be under 25 and who cannot provide satisfactory proof
of age, which may lead to dismissal. This includes test purchase operatives.

v' It is a matter of gross misconduct for a member of staff to knowingly allow entry by any person who is

under the age of 18 years to our Adult Gaming Centre(s) or Adult Gaming Area(s), which may lead to
dismissal. This includes children in the company of an adult such as babies in prams or buggies etc.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



y LUXE@ge 55

=, \LEISURE

bacta @ LARIUS

®
et meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE

v" Proof of age documents must contain a photograph from which the individual can be identified; state the
individual’s date of birth; be valid, and legible. It should bear no visible signs of tampering or reproduction.
Acceptable forms of identification include those that carry the PASS logo (e.g. Citizencard); a driving licence
(including a provisional licence) with photograph, a passport and military identification cards (these must be
carefully checked, under 18’s can carry military ID). European ID cards. Incidents involving suspected
forged documents will be recorded and reported.

v" Where there is doubt about a person’s age and they cannot produce an acceptable form of ID to prove they
are 18 years or over, they are advised that they will not be permitted to enter until such time as they provide
such proof.

v' They will be given a ‘proof of age card’ application form or offered an explanation on how to apply for a card.

v Should the person then refuse to leave, they are advised that the age restriction is a legal requirement, the
Manager or most senior member of staff on duty is informed and the person asked to leave. If the person
still refuses to leave, then a non-emergency call to the police is made explaining the circumstances (person
believed to be under age, refusing to leave licensed premises)

v' Any attempts by those known to be under 18 or who cannot provide satisfactory proof age to enter the
premises or designated adult area(s) and gamble are brought to the attention of the Manager immediately
and recorded as an entry on a log retained on the premises for this purpose. Details of entry to include date,
time, identity of the individual if known - or detailed description if unknown — member of staff dealing, action
taken, the outcome and measures put in place to prevent a re-occurrence. Log to be countersigned by the
Manager.

v' Service is refused in all circumstances where any adult is accompanied by a child or young person.

v" The Company will consider a permanent ban from the premises of an adult who on more than one occasion
or who knowingly or recklessly brings a child into an AGC.

v" All gaming machines, other than category ‘D’ machines, are inscribed with a notice prohibiting play by
persons under the age of 18 years.

v If someone believed to be under 18 or who upon challenge cannot provide acceptable proof of age, must
have their stake only returned to them and be refused any prize they may have won, if in any doubt retain
all monies.

v Members of staff are trained as part of their induction process in the understanding of, and the strict
adherence to this policy and accompanying log, and required to sign to this effect retaining a copy for their
future reference; the original being retained on the employee’s personnel file. Staff training policy covers all
relevant prohibitions against inviting children or young persons to gamble or to enter gambling premises,
and refresher training is carried out at appropriate intervals.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



L BQe 56

NLEISURE

—
bacta €@ RIS

®
et meterint BeGambleAware.org GAMCARE

Test Purchase Process Chart

The Company employs an independent company to conduct Test Purchasing Operations as a means
of ensuring that its policies and procedures are effective at preventing under age gambling. One of
those policies is to ask for ID to verify the age of all those who appear to be 25 or under. This
process tests the effectiveness of that policy. The results of these test purchases must be disclosed
to the Gambling Commission and local authorities by our legal department at Head Office.

Venues will have a minimum of two (2) test purchase visits in a rolling 12-month period.
The visits are not announced in advance. The test purchase can be on any day a venue is open and at any time
during its opening hours.

The visitor will be aged between 18 and 20 and will not make themselves known to the venue,
Remember we are testing our Think 25 policy.

The visitor must be challenged before they put any money into a machine. There are two opportunities to
challenge for ID in order to pass the test:
1. On Entry — ID requested at point of entry.
2. Whilst Browsing — ID requested before a coin is entered into a machine in order to commence play.
To achieve this you must stop what you are doing when someone enters a venue and approach
that person to greet them and judge whether they appear to be 25 or under. If you are serving a
customer, you must politely explain that you will return in a moment.
If the visitor plays a machine or if no challenge is made within a very short period, the test purchase is
considered to have been a FAILED VISIT.

FAIL

AM to conduct an investigation into potential
misconduct.

CCTV footage to be reviewed by Area
Manager to identify staff members on duty and
to ensure the test was conducted fairly. The
CCTV will also form the basis for an
investigation meeting with staff responsible for
failing to challenge the visitor.

PASS - Well done

The conduct of the visit is still
verified by the Area Manager (or
can be delegated to a venue
Manager in some circumstances)
who will review the CCTV footage.
This allows us to ensure the visits
are conducted properly and fairly
and to ensure the pass is correct.

Investigation Meeting

The Investigating Manager will seek to
establish the circumstances of the visit and
identify any aggravating or mitigating factors
that contributed to the failed test purchase.

If the staff member(s) involved challenge the
fail on the basis that the visitor's appearance
was of someone over 25, the investigating
manager will inform the Compliance team who
will request the image of the visitor from Serve
Legal. The image is then viewed by a panel of
at least 5 senior managers who individually
judge whether a challenge should have been
made on the basis of the visitor's appearance.
The majority decision of the panel is taken as a
final judgement as to whether staff should have
challenged the visitor for ID to verify their age

Investigating Manager reports findings to HR
and Disciplinary Manager who makes a
decision about disciplinary action on the basis
of the evidence. Such action may involve
dismissal.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



GAMCARE

®

-aWwong ue|dxg
................................. @l WoJ} S|emu| 18Wwolsny

.................................................. yLIg 10 818
T MO S Uojedyuap) Jo adA

[ JoN [ saA ésasiwald ojul pamoje uosiod

‘swonQ urejdxg
................................. ] Woly S|eniu| Jawosna

.................................................. ypIg 1o S1eq]
o Mol S uonedyuap) o adA

[ ToN [ saA ¢sesiwald ojul pamoje uosiad

BeGambleAware.org

|WonQ ue|dxg
................................. @l WoJj S|emu| 18woisny

.................................................. g 10 918
oo oY S Uoledyusp Jo adA |

[ loN [] s8A ésasiwald OJul pamoj|e uosiad

Luxbidge 57
LEISURE
TALA‘R!JU.SV

\

@

-elo2nQ urejdxg
................................. (] Woly s|eniy| Iswoisngy

.................................................. yHIg 10 81eq]
oMol s uonedyuap) o adAl

[ JoN [_] seA &S@siwald ojul pamoje uosiod

p=32=4D
Ja8euey Ang

I Sunysanbaa
HEs
Jo Jaquapy

3WO2INQ PUE UOHY

uondussag

uoleoynuspl 104
payse sem uosiad Sunoh ay] aBels
1eyMm 1e Sulpnjoul Sa0UBISLUNDILY

awi]

a1eq

‘ON Je8US

JBOA

T ONID
biogremyaiquienag

M

bacta

oy v B e b v

[22951551 esga1 Jowo3sno, € o sasodind 1330 10§ papIodal oq AEUr SIS §] J2A0 BUIS] SE PILIaA PUE JFe)s Aq JUSNOS U33q SEY UONEDGIIAA S5E 2Iagm [
SA0UR)SU] THRlaT) 2[qUed o) s)dimane puE “eale SUNMES )NpE 10 aNU20 SUNDES [[NPE UE SIaJU2 ‘sIEak g1 JO 95E afj) Jopun aq 0] UMOUY ‘Tosiad € JEf) paysIjqeIsa ST 1T aagm pasn st So] ST{T 210N
3|quen o3 easy Julwep NPy Jo 343ua) Sulwen }Npy UE J133us 03 SUOsIad Sunop pue uaJp(iy) Aq sydwany - 2 _.._n_uouwu

8011981 JO SBPO) PUB SUCHIPUOT) 89USIIT

S00¢ L2V ONINMGWYD

‘NOILY201 41IS

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,

Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



N L/ LEF.)’E%%'S >8
bacta @ LARIUS

®
et meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE

Section 3
Customer Interaction in Relation to Identifying Customers who may be Susceptible to
Gambling Harm

Statement

The Company recognises its responsibility and obligation to uphold the Licensing Objectives of the Gambling
Act 2005 and to comply with the Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice. Social responsibility is an important
aspect of our day-to-day operating practice and our policies and procedures are regularly reviewed to ensure
we comply with our regulatory obligations. We work together with other operators to share experience and good
practice through membership of our trade association, BACTA.

Policy and Procedures

The Company makes use of all reasonable sources of information to ensure effective customer interaction and
decision-making in relation to identifying those at risk of or suffering from gambling related harm and recognises
the key role our staff play in the protections we offer to our customers.

The Gambling Commission formal guidance note under SR code 3.4.1 provides a framework, through outlining
its expectations of operators, so that they may fulfil their obligations with regards to customer interactions. The
company’s procedures relating to customer interactions are designed to be in keeping with the regulator’s
guidance.

Identify
In the AGC sector, where no membership or customer details (other than verification of age where it is not clear)

are required by the operator in order to play, the primary indicator likely to alert staff to customers potentially
suffering or at risk from suffering gambling related harm, is their behaviour and changes in it. This can be used
with observations about the amount of or changes in the amount of time they spend gambling. Such observations
may be used by staff in conjunction with knowledge of the machine category being played or any anecdotal
information known to staff about the habits of a customer in order to inform a judgement about whether they
should interact with that customer. We do not and cannot currently monitor a customer’s spend through our data
management system primarily because the data is anonymous.

If a member of staff has concerns that a customer’s behaviour may indicate problems related to their gambling,
the venue manager is to be informed at the earliest available opportunity. Indicative behaviour may include signs
of distress, agitation, aggression, intense mood swings, hysteria or remorse. All staff are trained to recognise
such behavioural indicators which may further manifest themselves in the following ways:

e Chasing losses

e Paranoia that games are fixed

e Complaining of money difficulties

e Arguing with staff over losses or repeatedly asking for promotions
¢ Rude or aggressive behaviour

e Frequently spends all the money they have brought with them

e Tries to borrow money from staff or customers

e Repeated trips to ATMs either in the venue or externally

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



 uxhage 59

=, \LEISURE

bacta @ LARIUS

®
------ bt meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE

e Repeated requests to withdraw cash via the venue PDQ
e Assaults on staff
e Damage to machines or other property

As a minimum such behaviours should be recorded as observations in the interaction log and the most senior
person on duty informed.

The Gambling Act requires that we safeguard the interests of the vulnerable as well as the young from being
harmed by gambling.

The vulnerable are not defined by the Act or the LCCP and the term must be interpreted in its widest
everyday meaning.

For example, someone could be considered to be vulnerable in the following ways:

e Suffered a recent bereavement

¢ Mental health problems

e Long-term or terminal iliness

¢ Dementia or brain injury

¢ Difficulty in communicating, for example reading or speaking on the phone
e Learning disability

¢ Relationship breakdown

e Addiction

This list is not exhaustive, and there are many other reasons why someone could be considered to
be vulnerable. Vulnerability may also be temporary.

All initial interactions must be recorded in the Customer Interaction Level One Log “NPGAO5B”.

Interact

An initial interaction could well be the Observation of behaviour over time. For instance, a member of
staff identifies a change in the behaviour of a regular customer. Having made this identification, they
then make a first entry on the Customer Interaction Level One Log “NPGAQOSB”. If the behaviour
continues then a second entry may be required to record that the change in behaviour was more than
fleeting. The venue manager should then consider whether to speak with the customer. A Customer
Interaction & Self Exclusion file “NPGAOS5C”, is then opened and the initial entry copied across before
the second observation is recorded.

Venue managers are designated persons for the purpose of customer interaction, and it is their
responsibility for making the decision as to whether further Action is needed, and it is appropriate or
necessary to speak with a customer. If there is any doubt, then an area manager or a member of staff
from the compliance department should be consulted on the telephone. All interactions should be
conducted in a timely fashion but with tact and in confidence where possible.

Notwithstanding any initial urgent action taken to deal with the customer’s behaviour by any member of staff, the
venue manager (or most senior member of staff on duty) is required to observe the individual and make a

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



, .Rage 60

=, \LEISURE

bacta @ LARIUS

®
------ bt meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE

judgement as to what the Outcome of the observation should be. If it is that a verbal interaction should take
place then this interaction should be curious, asking questions to understand the behaviour and whether it is
linked to gambling. If warranted, the staff member will offer the customer advice about the gambling
management tools that we can offer to assist them manage their time spent gambling. The staff member will
explain how Gamblewise works and offer them this service. This intervention is always accompanied by the
offer of information further signposting the customer to sources of help such as with the offer of a ‘Stay in Control’
leaflet containing details of sources of help and support. Furthermore, the duty manager may judge that it is
appropriate to explain the option of self-exclusion to the customer.

If the customer refuses such information and their behaviour is such that it could be considered disruptive, the
duty manager can refuse service and ask the customer to leave the venue or in more extreme circumstances
will deal with the situation as an incident of anti-social behaviour, using staff guard to support them or alternatively
calling the police.

Staff should not tolerate any form of abusive or anti-social behaviour during an interaction with a customer. If a
customer demands to self-exclude with immediate effect, then staff should always seek to facilitate this but need
to be cautious if dealing with someone whose behaviour has been hostile or aggressive. The staff member
should not put themselves at risk and should not therefore conduct a self-exclusion alone with an aggressive
customer.

This policy and procedure is consistent with, and implemented with due regard to the company’s duty in respect
of the health and safety of members of staff

Notwithstanding any other action that may have to be taken immediately to prevent an incident from worsening,
the duty manager will log all interactions in either the Level 1 or Level 2 log.

Evaluate

By maintaining individual logs for customers whose behaviour on more than one occasion has indicated to staff
that they may be displaying signs that their gambling is having an adverse effect on them, we are able to monitor
and evaluate the effectiveness of our controls. Each log is specific to the customer, meaning that all future
interactions at a venue relating to that customer are stored in a single record allowing us to understand the
impact of an interaction. This is further underpinned by the company’s compliance review framework whereby
all compliance returns data, including interactions are reviewed by a committee which includes the CEO and
COO as well as the regional directors and other stakeholders from the senior management team. The installation
of Gamblewise in November 2019 will provide further data with which to measure the effectiveness of, not only
this tool, but also the effectiveness of all the gambling management tools we offer.

Gamblewise

Gamblewise is a gambling management tool that we offer our customers for free. It is an app available for
customers to download onto their mobile phone and use to manage their time spent gambling. They can set
themselves limits as to where and when they wish to gamble. The app and the location of the phone will then
be used to remind them of their chosen limits and encourage them to plan and reflect on their time spent gambling
in our venues.

The Gamblewise system will also notify staff via a manager’s app on the venue tablet if someone enters a venue
at a time when they have previously chosen not to. This will then instigate an interaction. Customers will not be
asked to leave the venue but will be simply reminded by staff that they have set a limit on the app that they are
not adhering to. This verbal interaction should always be conducted tactfully and in private so as not to

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



. e 61
bacta @ AARIUS

®
et meterint BeGambleAware.org GAMCARE

embarrass the customer. It should also be accompanied by the offer of a Stay in Control leaflet or a reminder of
where they are located in the venue. Such interactions are to be recorded in the appropriate interaction log.

Staff/Training
All staff are trained at induction and then through regular refresh training modules and the completion of staff
training is recorded and monitored.

Staff members are not permitted to gamble (play machines) on our premises. If a member of staff is
believed to be suffering from gambling related harm, we must be supportive and offer the same advice
as we would to a customer. This should involve providing the staff colleague with contact details for
recognised problem gambling organisations and given a copy of the Stay in Control leaflet.

Colleagues should be encouraged to use the Company Health Assured scheme, they can be contacted
by Freephone 0800 0305182 or www.healthassuredeap.co.uk .

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,

Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200


http://www.healthassuredeap.co.uk/

Lagp 62

-~
bacta @ s @
BeGambleAware org GAMCARE

oy v B e b v

Customer Interaction Process
We must ensure we log all customer interactions, follow the simple steps below to ensure all
interactions are recorded.

Customer approaches Staff Member or Duty Staff Member or Duty Manager notices a change in a

Manager about their gambling concems. customers gambling habits (You may not have had a
conversation with the customer at this point).

Duty Manager should discuss the customers concemns, in private.
Issue a Stay in Controd leaflet and point out the references to sources of help.
Suggest they consider adopting one of our Gambling Management tools.

Record details of the interaction on
the Customer Interaction

Level One Log "MPGAOSE".

Is this the first Interaction with the customer?

Duty Manager has now interacted with the same customer for a second time, the Duty Manager must now fallow

these steps:
Open a new or the specific Customer Interaction & Self Exclusion file *NPGAQSC".
Transfer the details from the initial interaction from the Customer Interaction Level One log.
Discuss with the customer their concems relating to their gaming habits.

Talk through our gambling management tools. Explain how Gamblewise warks and encourage them to
download and try the app to assist them manage their ime spent gambling. Aliernatively ask them to
consider the following -

o Come in less often
Set a time limit
Play a different category of machine
Take time out

Where the customer has decided to take a Time Out from gaming, the Duty
Manager must ensure the customers mobile telephone number is
temporarily suspended from the marketing database.

Any further interactions with the customer must be recorded in the Customer's specific - Customer Interaction &
Self Exclusion file, we have to be mindful this customer may decide to Self-Exclude at some time in the future.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,

Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



N L

acta

oy v B e b v

Examples of the logs below:

LUX @ge 63

NLEISURE

7@ TALARIUS

BeGambleﬁmware.cnrg®

The venue colleague interacts with a customer, this interaction must be recorded in the following log:

4. Customer Interaction Level one log “NPGAQO5B” - This log must be used to record all initial customer

interactions.

To be completed when either a customer directly asks for help Wwith their gambling or when through observation or direct communication with a customer, a member of staff believes that the

SITE LOCATION:

BeGambleAware

GAMBLING ACT 2005

Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice

[Section 3 — Customer Interaction in Relation to Identifying Customers who may be Susceptible to Gambling Harm
Note: This log is used for all LEVEL ONE Intcractions.

customer is potentially displaying some sign or signs of suffering from gambling related harm. A Level One interaction may be an observation about a change in a customer’s normal behaviour.

An entry should also be made where a relative or friend of a customer has expressed concern for the gambling behaviour of that customer.

In keeping with the Gambling Commissions formal guidance o customer interaction, SR Code 3.4.1, staff should seelk to Identify customer who may be displaying signs of suffering from
gambling related harm_ They should Interact with the customer in a way appropriate to the identified behaviour and the customer themselves, offering support and sigaposting them to sources of

help. Staff should then evaluate the effect of what they have dene. This should be done through liaising with your Compliance department

If you have a .

cond Interaction with the same customer then you must move to the Level Two — Customer

& Self Excl File Pack and reco:

d that on this log

Date

Time

Identify
Overt signs of distress, anger,
frustration etc. Changes in behaviour,
playing for significantly longer, spending
more money etc

Interact
May range from just recording the
behaviour and then monitoring to

speaking to a customer and signposting

them to sources of help.

Evaluate
Record the cutcome of Interaction.
How was it received by the customer?
What did they say? How did they
behave afterwards?

Stay I, Control
Leaflet offered
Yes, or No

Duty Manager
informed
isignature)

If the venue colleague / manager interacts with the same customer for a second time, then the Customer
Interaction & Self Exclusion file “NPGAO5C” must be opened for a specific customer following a second
interaction.

[BEL S S el |

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

ith the Compa

olicy and procedure concerr

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,

Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel.

0191 497 8200

GAMCARE



®

L xage 64
LEISURE
TALARIU.SV

\

@

GAMCARE

BeGambleAware.org

oy v B e b v

- UOIEIRIU] J3Worsn), Bu
6 10T =90 T

20u0d aunpadod pue Adjod s Auedwo) aun yam vondunfuod ul pasn si 3o

TI(ESOVDIN

R SEpJEMIBLE SABYRY -d|ay Jo s32unos 03 Wwayl a1@ Asuow suow uipusds
paiago A3yl pip moH ghes Aayl pip 1eysn HunsoduBis pue sawolsna e 01 Supyeads “138uo) Apueaugis Joy Buhed
[31n12UZIS) 1apEa $J3Wo1snd Y1 Ag paAIS0al )i SBM MOH 0] SULIOIUOL U} PUE JNOINEYS3] “inojaeyaq Ul s3SUBYD 013 UOIIEIISNY
paLuou| |o11u83 *UOIIDEIBIU] JO IWO2IN0 3] pJo2ay 2y1 Suipsoaa1 3snl woly sBues Ay ‘Ja8ue ‘ssausip Jo sudis Yano awil | =1.q
125eue|y A1ng 7 Aeyg Jlenjea JIEI9IU] Anuapy

[T

O] 7T} WO JET} PI0J3J PUE YIE J [1] UOISN[IXT J[3§ 3 UODIEII)U] JaW0)SN]) — 0M ] [3A2] 31 O} 2A0TH ISOUH NoA UST) IS0 SIS 31 [ UOTDIEIIIU] PU0dag B a4y nok I

Juanardsp sowerdmwony mok i SwestEl] yENong suop 34 PINOYS S SWop 2AEY L3T) IEYM JO 109112 ST SIEN[EAS BRI PINOYS
g ~dien Jo saomos o) wety Sumsoduds pue poddns Surego ‘saAlesWEAl) IATICISND A1) PUE MOLARYRq PAUTUSpT 2y o) sjendordde fem e W rsmoisnD 21 I 10RIAT] pInoys Syl IRy paielal
Suquwes woxy Suuagns Jo suss Swilepdsip aq fBw oqm IAWmoIsnD SJNUIPT 0] Y298 PINOYS IJEIS 14 £ 2P0 WS HONIRISIN JATH0ISND BO S0UEPINE [EW0] sucissiwo;) Swiquen) 2w g Swmdasy uy

“J3W0IEND 18T O INoTAey2q Surqwes a1 J0f UI0U00 passardxa SEY JAWOIEND B JO PUSLI IO ANE[2S B 2I3TM PRI 20 OF[E PINoys ARuD wy

“OTAEYRG, [ETIION 5 J3MOISND & W 35UEnD B IN0qE BONEAISS)O UE 34 LB BOTIJEISIW SU(Q) [2A3T ¥ "WHEY palejas Sunques woy Swisgns Jo suls 1o uls swos Smieidap Aenused s
JSWOJEND ST JETR S2A21[2q JJEIS JO JAqaTH E JIW0ISN0 B Rk GONESUIIGOD J2aHp JO TONEAIISq0 [EN05 uaym 5o Suqwes nagy miw diey Jog syse Afoenp I2WO0JSND B Jagiis wanm pagejdwoo aq o]
“suonReINuy INO TIATT B o pasn sf So] ST 310N
uuey sunques o} ajqndaasns ag Aew oym s1awolsng SulAyuap] o} UONE|SY Ul UONIEIS]U| JBWOISN) — £ :o_—uwmu
33132044 J0 S3PO7 PUD SUCIPPUO] 3U3dNT

S00€ 1O ONITENVD ‘NOILYIOT 3L

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,

Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



bacta

LUX %ge 65

N\LEISURE
fc TALARIUS

NOVOMATIC GROUP

®
——— BeGambleAware.org
Customer Interaction and Self Exclusion File:
LUXURY
LEISURE
E’ C‘b TALARIUS
[ g ] S | EowbmaTIL BRnUrR
GAMCARE

GAMBLING ACT 2005

Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice

Customer Interaction in Relation to Identifying Customers who have a Gambling Disorder or the Potential of
Developing Difficulty with their Gambling

To be completed in circumstances when a customer has elther requested information on who to contact for help with a gambling
disorder, or where a member of staff considers it appropriate to interact with a customer who is showing signs of distress associated
with their gambling, or where it is suspected that a customer's gambling style is no longer under control.

It should also be recorded where interaction has been subsequently ruled out, where otherwise it would have taken place.

An entry should also be made where an approach has been made by a relative or friend of 3 customer considered by them to be
experencing difficulties with their gambling.

Site Location: Biggin Streat, Dover Name or Description of Customer:  Paul Robert’s
1 2 3 4 5 E 7 B
Date Circumstances including Refer Gambling Option Self- Motes Senior
B signs of distress, or where ta Management Selectad Exelusion including Manager
Tirme it is suspected that a GamCare Dptions 1,234 {optian 5} outoome Print
customer's gambling is no [¥/n) Discussed Explained
langer in contral (™) [¥im)
FPaul appeared to | Leaflet Yes Warits ¥es Nothing further at
be wvery frustrated | given o this tirme, told Paul
he was banging & Arnd ik he can falk to us

16077
11.20

sweaaring at m/c ol seuss o it arny tirme iF neadad
ed
Pl told wase his tgave | Explalned 4 Yes Paul hos dezloled te bakze 0
B 1o | spending ic getting out | amother | all optioms breaie. for 4 weeks. we will
g § of oontrol and meesls to | Lenflet § tille again before he starts 3
do sowthing about It | disoussed o plity agaln

NOTIFY ¥OUR AREA MANAGER
AREA MAMNAGER — ACTION TAKEN:
I was notified by Patricia of Pauls 2™ interaction, T was on site todoy (4™ Sep) and T speke to Poul following his
break, he soid he feels much better now. I told him to speak to any of us if he feels things are getting on top of

him and we will do our best to help or direct him to professional guidance, Capene: Area Manager

Guidance Notes

Calumn 1; Date and time of the interaction

Column 2: Circumstances ie. Who approached whom and why?
d you witness any signs of distress or have any couse for concern ?

Column 3; Did you strongly recommend your customer contact GamCare (or similar} for professional guidance?
Did you issue and discuss the content of the Stay In Control leaflet?

Column 4: Gambling Management Options - Did you discuss eptions with the customer e,
1. Comein less often
2. Set yourself a time limit
1, Play a different type of machine ie, B3 player, change to CAT C m/fc
4, Take time out

Column 5: Which option [If any) did the customer select (1, 2, 3 or 4)7

Column 6: Option 5, Did you explain the Self-Exclusion process?
Column 7: Record details of the interaction for referance (use additional paper if required & attach to back of this form)
Cinlumn B: Upon completion - print your name

Motes for referance:

If you have had more than 2 interactions with a customer abaut their gambling, then you must notify the Area Manager, they
will monitor the situation and if necessary move to speak with the customer during their next visit to site. They too will note any
action they have taken.

NPGADSC+11C/0 Amend Aug 19

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 497 8200

GAMCARE



N
bacta

oy v B e b v

L@@ 66

NLEISURE
'C TALARIUS

NOVOMATIC GROUP

LUXURY
.
BIAICITIA 0@ SRS
e Dl S T 0

SR Consc

Self-Exclusion Procedure - Checklist

Customer provided a recent ‘passport’ style/size photograph

If NO ~ take a photograph of the customer (legal requirement) and attach to form
Confirm customer has received and read a 'Stay In Control’ leaflet

If NO — address this now.

Confirm customer was referred to GamCare

If NO — address this now.

Identify the customers concerns (i.e. — spending too much money.)
Discuss options available to customer

1. Come in less often

2. Setyourself a time limit

3. Play a different type of machine ie. B3 player, change to CAT C m/c
4. Take time out

5. Self-Exclusion

Customers preferred option

If the option is 1 — 4 record on Customer Interaction log — end meeting
If the option is Self-Exclusion — complete Self-Exclusion form

For *a period of please enter either 6 or (up to) 12 months

Explain about exclusion from other operators in a radius of up to 1k
Issue customer with the ‘Self-Exclusion’ - Information for Customers (leaflet overleaf)
Inform customer to contact BACTA if required, to Exclude from other areas

If this is an IMMEDIATE EXCLUSION (if applicable) you must note at the foot of the page
which Senior Manager authorised it

Upon completion of form, both parties sign the Self-Exclusion Agreement form

Please note at foot of page the machine category(s)

Issue customer with a copy of the Self-Exclusion Agreement form

Escort customer off the premises

Ensure the customer is marked as ‘self-excluded’ on the Admiral Text Rewards software
Upload all details onto BACTA system

Notify relevant personnel and file all documents ~ in specified folders

NPGAOSC+11C/D

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 497 8200

BeGambleAware.org®

GAMCARE

YES/NO

YES/NO

YES/NO

YES/NO

YES/NO
YES/NO
YES/NO
YES/NO
YES/NO
YES/NO

YES/NO

YES/NO
YES/NO
YES/NO
YES/NO
YES/NO
YES/NO

YES/NO

Amend Aug 19

GAMCARE



e 67
pad g RO
bacta @ TALARIUS

oy v B e b v

® |
BeGambleAware org GAMCARE

LUXURY
AICITIA \LEISURE
E]..-. " TALARIUS
0 . FEvowaTie wvour T
Customer Information Leaflet

Please tear along perforated edge and hand to your customer

z|7|7
B LUXURX}HSURI CE

- pere s v |

Self-Exclusion
- Information for Customers

Casinos
SENSE is the casino self-exclusion scheme.
You can find out more about SENSE and
how to enrol In SENSE via the Playing Safe
website www.playingsafe.org.uk.

Betting Shops
To self-exclude from more than one shop
or a number of different companies in
your area, call 0800 294 2060.

Bingo
For more information on self-excluding
from bingo venues in the UK, please visit
the Bingo Association website
www.bingo-association.co.uk and select
the self-exclusion tab.

NPGADSC+11C/D Amend Aug 19

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 497 8200



LaRF 68

™ \LEISURE
bacta e BTl
® |
b it BeGambleAware org GAMCARE
LUXURY
\LEISURE
t' TALARIUS
GAMCARE
Self-Exclusion Review Procedure - Checklist
v Obtain a copy of the customers Self-Exclusion Agreement form, and check the start date and YES/NO
Exclusion period to ensure the customer has concluded their period of Self-Exclusion
v If NO — advise the customer when their Self-Exclusion period Is scheduled to conclude then discreetly
escort the customer from the premises
v If the customers Self-Exclusion period has concluded ask the customer what it is they wishtodo  YES/NO
v If the customer wishes to ‘Resume Business with Luxury Leisure’ you must establish that the YES/NO
Customer has got their gambling concerns under control, and you are satisfied with their reply
v Complete the top half of the Self-Exclusion Review form together YES/NO
v Review of Self-Exclusion agreement of — enter the date when the Self-Exclusion commenced YES/NO
Details will be found on the enclosed Self-Exclusion Agreement form
¥ In the box — enter the customers decision i.e, — Return to Gaming YES/NO
v The customer is required to complete this section of the form by signing and dating just below YES/NO
The box. The Senior Manager will witness this (print their name)
v You must explain to the customer they must leave the premises now to reflect on their decision  YES/NO
to resume gaming for a minimum of 24 hours before being permitted to return to the premises
v After a minimum of 24 hours has past the customer may return to the premises to conclude YES/NO
their Self-Exclusion Review procedure
v To enable you to conclude the Self-Exclusion review procedure you must establish with the YES/NO
customer if they still wish to resume access/gaming with us
v i NO - ask if the customer wishes to extend their Self-Exclusion period and document YES/NO
v If the customer wishes to Resume Access to the premises, and no longer wishes to be YES/NO
self-excluded from the site and other similar venues locally to which the agreement
applies; they must now read the final paragraph, and if they agree the must sign and date
the final section with the correct date
v Ask the customer if they wish for their email/texting account to be reinstated YES/NO
v Inform the customer that we may discreetly ask if everything is ok during the next few weeks YES/NO
v Issue the customer with a copy of the completed Self-Exclusion Review form and permit them YES/NO
entry to the premises
v Enter details onto Self-Exclusion log YES/NO
v Discreetly inform all personnel YES/NO
v If Self-Exclusion is for more than one site - enter details onto BACTA system YES/NO
v File all documents - in specified folder YES/NO

NPGAOSCH1IC/D Amend Aug 19

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 497 8200



LUXE@ge 69

3 \
acta €@ TARIUS
vt BeGambleAware.org

LUXURY

Lo @ EHT

0 T

GAMCARE
Customer Interaction Log
Site Location: ..o Name or Description of Customer: .. i e s
¥ ¥
«| 2§ o| 3
2 =
5 H]
: :
i | &2
=2 =2
3 3
5 &
irg_ i
HiE {581
‘E-i-u" i-i-u"
B B
o B3R o EE%
3 & § 54 §
g g
¥ ¥
e} : il :
T EHE E . gggi E
‘. ‘.
§3 §3
.. B
JHE JHE
HE HE
¥T iz
o Ea- - £
EEEE EEEE
% =g 45 =g
™ Ei\‘:s # * .Eiu‘:.-i Z
HE : fiit :
i : HH :
fiz 1 L H 1
] ]
- ﬁwE § - E“E §
3 3

NPGAISCHICID Amerd Aug 19

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 497 8200



70
T T ‘%%gggs
bacta @ [ALARIUS

® |
e Bt BeGambleAware.org GAMCARE
LUXURY
LEISURE /
C‘b TALARIUS -

GAMCARE

Adult Gaming Centre (“AGC”) Local Area Self-Exclusion Agreement
This is a legol ogreement. Please read it carefully.

T ettt st e e e e d At A 1 41ttt [the "Operator” or “you")
| wish to self-exclude with immediate effect from gambling at:
[ The AGC situated at ..o
O All AGC's owned by the Operator within a radius of 250,/500,/750/1000 metres [delete as appropriate] of the AGC.
O Al AGC's within the Scheme situated within a radius of 250,/500/750,/1000 metres [delete os appropriote] of the AGC.

The Scheme means a self-exclusion notification scheme administered by bacta Self Exclusion Services Limited ("BSESL") in
co-operation with the Operator and other AGC's that hawve joined the Scheme. When we refer to “we" or “our” we mean BSESL
and the Operator.

Terms of the Scheme and Data Protection Notice

My self-exclusion will last for ... months [minimum & months, madmum 12 months] [the "Exclusion Period®, or as
subsequently extended by me).

I canmot cancel or change my self-exclusion request before the expiry of the Exclusion Period. At the expiry of the Exdusion
Period my self-exclusion will automatically renew for a further six month period unless | notify you that | no longer wish to be
excluded by filling in and returning to the Operator a reinstatement form. | agree that a reinstatement will only take effect at
the end of the current Exclusion Period, not before, and then only after the expiry of a 24 hour cooling off period starting from
when | make a positive decision to gamble again.

While you gemerally have the right to be “forgotten” under data protection and privacy laws, you agree that you will mot
exercise your right to hawe your personal data deleted by the participating AGC's and BSESL during the Exclusion Period as this
would defeat the purpose of the Scheme. At the end of the Exclusion Period you have the right to require us to delete your
personal data.

| acknowledge that for the Scheme to be effective you have to be able to identify me and have to notify all the participating
AGC's im the above mentioned area of my self-exclusion. To do this | agree that:

* | will provide you with a clear recent photograph of me, and such other forms of identification that you may require
including a recent utility bill bearing my name and address and that if my appearance changes significantly during the
Exclusion Period | will provide an updated photograph.

* You will submit details of my self-exclusion agreement and any personal data that | provide to a database maintained by
BSESL (which will include allowing BSESL to share this with other operators of similar schemes in my area).

= My personal details and photograph will be kept, shared and used by BSESL (and other scheme operators) and participating
local AGC's, not just you, to enforce the Scheme. You will share this information between BSESL (and other scheme
operators) and local AGC's to manage and implement the Scheme.

* Tooperate the Scheme effectively my photograph will be displayed and communicated discreetly among the relevant staff
members of each AGC.

| acknowledge that you and other AGC's in the Scheme will try to identify me but that you cannot guarantee that you would
always be able to do so. That means if | do gain access to AGC premises neither you mor your employees nor agents will be
responsible for anything | do while on those premises. | agree that, if | enter an AGC during the Exclusion Period, | will be
required to leave the premises and that | will be removed by the use of reasonable force if necessary if | refuse to leave. | agree
that you may refuse entry by me to the AGC premises.

I hawve been directed to the following counselling and sUpPOrt SEMVIDES oo ceee

We would like to assess the effectiveness of this Scheme therefore, with your permission only (which you can withdraw at any
time], may we pass on your contact details to an agency Instructed by us to do so -

[ | agree to being contacted
O | Do Mot wish to be contacted

wowscicn QTN TTCEY) e A 19

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 497 8200



LUX ﬂge 71

<A N\LEISURE
bacta @ T/LARIUS
T BeGambleAware org GAMCARE

LUXURY
EREuE @ TALARIS

We will be responsible for ensuring that your personal data is processed lawfully. You agree that your personal data (which
may also include health details, namely potential gambling issues) may be used by BSESL, the Operator and participating AGC's
for the purposes of administering the Scheme for the period stated below. You can contact us as follows:

GAMCARE

BSESL: bacta, 29-30 Ely Place, London. EC1N &6TD
E mail: theresa@bacta.org.uk
Telephone: 02077306444

Operator: Luxury beisure § Talarius Data Protection Officer and can be contacted as follows:
Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 DBL
e-mail: gdpri@wouryleisure co.uk and
telephone: 0191 497 8200

We may retain a reference copy of the details of your self-exclusion for up to two years after the end of the Exclusion Period,
though you may at any time after the end of that Exclusion Period ask for your personal data to be deleted. 'We will also keep
arecord of any complaints and attempts by you to access any AGC's while your self-exclusion is in force; and will share this with
other AGC’s and the Gambling Commission upon request. If you agreed to be contacted by our research agency then we may
also keep any information that you provided for up to two years and will not share that information with anyone else in a way
which can identify you.

If there are any errors in the information we hawve please let us know and we will comect it.

You have the right to refer any concerns or complaints about our handling of your personal data to the Information
Commissioner's Office in the United Kingdom.

| recognise and agree that during the Exclusion Period, whilst you will take all reasonable steps to refuse admittance or
otherwise prevent me from gambling on the premises, it is my responsibility to ensure that | do not enter any of the relevant
AGCs, or gamble on the premises, or ask anyone to gamble on my behalf,

By signing this Form | agree to the above,

MAME: s DB i

(peinst)

BT L L= T PO R NPOTSRN = = | 1| TS

Signed by customer: .., Dated: .. PHOTOGRAPH
Duty Manager's Mame: o semmeeen SUHL W e

|primt] [mrint)

L =T PSSO Dated: e e

Ace, Suspended: YES / NO / Mon Applicable MJC Type: ..

Note for Customar: If you would like further advice or assistance, you may like to rnn-':ldr'r mntarrmg rhr
confidential Mational Gambling Halpline, operatad by Gamare on OR0Z 8020 133,

NPGAOSC#11C/D STAGE 2 ge 2 of 2 Amend Aug 19

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,

Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 497 8200



.Fage 72
=y N\LEISURE
bacta €@ TAARIUS

i e BeGambleAware.org GAMCARE

LUXURY
LEISURE

E!:.;_ @ 2Linius -

SELF-EXCLUSION REVIEW

Company:

Site Name: L S S

Site Address:

JUURUURTR - |4 6+ = |~ SRS
Customer Mame (print):
Customer Date of Birth:

Customer Address: ... S et e e et U PP PY

LPostCode:. e

Review the self-exclusion agreement of: ... | Confirm stort dote of Self-Exclusion)

LT o T - ST

LT SO PRROUNOON |11 s 131 (14 | Date of FEVIBW ! e ecessee s

WTENBESE! 1ot simrsas crssss e sesssmans e ssnsesssnsenseeee| SENIOF Wanager) Date of FEVIEW! ..o eeiens
(print)

Request to resume access to premises following a Self-Exclusion.

| confirm that | voluntarily no longer wish to be self-excluded from this site and other venues in the locality to
which the agreement applies; that all options have been explained to me by the Company, and that | have
experienced a cooling off period of at least 24 hours,

BT T OSSP | 1211« 31114 | Date resumed: ....ccorvecremremrsmssenes
WITNESSEU! (i iimiini s s s simmsms s smssssen | SENIOT Manager) Date resumed: ...,
(print})

CUSTOMER WISHES FOR THEIR EMAIL/TEXTING ACCOUNT TO BE RE-INSTATED: YES [/ NO (delete as required)

NPGADSC+11C/D STAGE 3 Amend Aug 19

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 497 8200



- y LUXE@ge 73

bacta @ s
--------------- BeGambleAware.org AMCARE
Section 4
Information on how to Gamble Responsibly and help for Gamblers with
problems

Statement

The Company recognises its responsibility and obligation to comply with the Licensing Objectives of the
Gambling Act 2005 and the Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice. Social responsibility awareness is an
important aspect of our day-to-day operating practice, and monitoring of policies and procedures is regularly
reviewed and subject to change as part of our ongoing risk assessment.

Stay in control advice

Without breaching the principle that customers are responsible for their own gambling, the nature of the activity
suggests that they should be reminded of the need to exercise caution. Accordingly, signage in the form of an
appropriate number of posters or other appropriate means is displayed on our premises:

v' Giving clear guidance that in order to keep gambling a fun social activity the customer needs to ‘stay in
control’.

Drawing attention to further information, such as leaflets that are available on the premises.

Indicating sources of help such as the National Gambling Helpline operated by GamCare.

Large enough and written in language so as to be easily seen and understood.

Prominently displayed.

Maintained in a clean and tidy condition, preferably within a glass fronted frame.

AN NI N NN

Advertising sources of help

At the core of exercising a duty of care is the principle of assisting customers who may wish to express concern

about their gambling. This tenet is drawn to the attention of customers on our premises in the following ways:

v" The prominent display of ‘Responsible Gambling’ or ‘Stay in Control’ information.

v' There are holders or racks containing leaflets in appropriate places that emphasise the need to keep
gambling under control and where to seek help should anyone be concerned about their own or a family
member’s gambling. These leaflets are available to be taken away from the premises without the necessity
of having to ask for them.

v' The leaflets are available at all times for customers to take discreetly without having to ask a member of staff,
and are located in the gambling area either near to exit doors, ATMs or toilets. We endeavour to maintain an
effective stock control system to ensure that such leaflets are always available to supply. Signposting
Information may also be made available through the use of links for online or smart technology.

v Details of GamCare, giving the National Helpline telephone number is inscribed on all appropriate categories
of gaming machines.

Protecting those who seek assistance

Responding to someone who admits to having a problem with their gambling is a delicate matter that has to be

timely and needs to be approached sensitively. It is our policy that:

v rules and procedures relating to a policy of responding to problem gamblers are clearly formulated and
incorporated into our day-to-day operation;

v at least one member of staff who has been trained to deal with situations that might require a response is on
duty at any one time, or available without undue delay;

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



~ LERE 74
bacta €@ RIS

®
et meterint BeGambleAware.org GAMCARE

v a positive response including communicating sources of help and the possibility of self-exclusion is offered
to any customer who admits to having lost control of their gambling;

v’ the facility of a self-exclusion policy for customers who wish to voluntarily self-exclude themselves from these
premises, and other premises offering the same style of gambling in the locality, that stipulates a minimum
exclusion period of six months and a maximum of 12 months - with a further 24-hour ‘cooling off’ period
thereafter;

v" we draw to the attention of relatives who express concern about a family member’s gambling the options
available to that person should they wish to address the extent of their gambling;

v members of staff do not collude with customers when asked to lie on their behalf, and

v' where services are marketed in one or more foreign languages, we make available information on how to
gamble responsibly, access to help, guides to the playing of any game, and a summary of the contractual
terms on which gambling is offered in that, or those, foreign languages.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



>y, Lux age 75

o \LEISURE

2/
acta ?O TALARIUS

oy vt B ™

BeGambleAware.org@

Section 5
Stay in Control

S LA whenever vou puay macrines SOMEONE WHO THINKS THEY MIGHT HAVE A GAMBLING PROBLEM
] [ 'S ALWAYS WISE TO REMEMBER THAT SHOULD ASK THEMSELVES IF

Gambling is a fun and exciting form of entertainment They lose time from education or work or other commitments
which provides an enjoyable experience. because of gambling

Playing slot machines is an attractive way of taking a risk as long as They gamble to get money to pay debts or solve financial difficulties.
the risk taking is kept under control

After losing they feel they must return as soon as possible to

The great majority of people who play slot machines or gamble in other win back losses.

ways enjoy the experience without any problems but a very small number
lose control of what they are doing
C Yy 9 They gamble until their last pound has gone.

For these players gambling ceases to be fun.
They borrow to finance their gambling
Their life can be dominated by gambling.
They are reluctant to use ‘gambling money' for normal expenditure.
Problem gamblers will continue playing whether winning or losing
They will use their own and other people’s money in order to keep : _— ——
; 1 hey have ever commi sider ) e c
playing. As gambling takes over their life. Many other things can b ”:1 ¢ ‘;“" co S‘ tted 0;0”5' ered committing an lilegal act
n order to finance their gam ;
suffer; family life, their job and other interests. WIS gamonng

They have ever considered self-destructive behaviour as

GAMBLING BECOMES A PROBLEM WHEN YOU : a result of their gambhng_

Gambile until all your money has gone

Borrow or steal money to continue gambling

For free support To }eam more about
Gamble to change your losses,

counseling, | the social ublity

and o learn r .1(‘:'"1.' code of th acle and
Neglect other interests, Family and friends to gamble. preblem gambling our group of
companies visit
gamcare.org.uk playnice.org.uk
WHENEVER YOU PLAY MACHINES
IT1S ALWAYS WISE TO REMEMBER THAT :

You are buying entertainment, not investing your money.

IF YOU ARE IN DIFFICULTY WITH YOUR GAMBLING OR
You should only spend money you can afford to lose ' gmméﬁ&lﬁm‘gmmo LETOHaLh

In advance of playing you should set strict limits on how much you will spend

Problems will arise if playing machines becomes the most impaortant
part of your life

for information, advice and practical help
Playing should take up only a relatively small amount of your life and interest, egarding the sockal mpact of gambling

Playing within your means is likely to be fun and exciting The naticnal helpline is answored by trained staff. They can affer counselling
ers, family members and 1o friends of a gaenbler

. 2 ‘ Indo eQard counseling for peoblem gamt adable on request
Spending outside your means is likely to create problems for you and others, e ERE

You shouldn't play to escape from worries or pressure

Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,

Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Esfate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 4597 8200




76
=, 7‘ LEEU%E

baCta @ /LARIUS

®
e eemete BeGambleAware.org AMCARE

STAYIN

IS PROBLEM GAMBLING AFFECTING YOU,

i

ZACHOWA)

Cry problermatyczne Wi hazanciowe cotyerg chbie
D twoach nagbol

GARDEZ LE

Lo ot compuls? vous affecte-1 4, vous mis

BLEIBEN SIE IN

Haben 39 ocder ain anpehdniger ein spieiprotiem?

MANTENGA EL

AIODA b afex

HE TEPAWTE /

ol Wt Hn,q BAM SO
1AM 4\(( ™

NEZAUDEJIET
ON

Pt b

3ANA3ETE

BPOSORMERT XAMPT 10w A

=
il
-
.
e
=
=
= "
-
=

National Gambling Helpline

www.admiralslots.co.uk/support

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,

Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Esfate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 4597 8200



‘ e’/
acta @ [ALARIUS

®
et meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE

Section 6
Self-Exclusion

Statement

The Company recognises its responsibility and obligation to comply with the Licensing Objectives of the
Gambling Act 2005 and the Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice. Social responsibility awareness is an
important aspect of our day-to-day operating practice, and monitoring of policies and procedures is regularly
reviewed and subject to change as part of our ongoing risk assessment.

Policy and Procedures

Whilst most customers are able to enjoy and control their gambling, this Company recognises its duty of care to
those who cannot. Accordingly, we provide a self-exclusion process for those customers who seek to prevent
their own access to our premises and others in the locality offering a similar style of gambling as defined by the
premises licence.

v When a customer has requested that they be refused entry to our premises, the customer and the duty
manager will formally acknowledge and document the request on a self-exclusion request form, or directly
on the web based AGC national self-exclusion scheme. This will be preceded by a meaningful discussion
about the terms and conditions applicable to the scheme and will include other options available to assist a
person potentially suffering from gambling related harm, including being signposted to counselling and
support services. A copy of the terms and conditions will be signed by the excluder as acknowledgement of
understanding and consent. Customers are given the opportunity of discussing self-exclusion in private
where possible.

v' Has the customer considered any of the gambling management tool options we offer in the first instance
rather than move straight to Self-Exclusion.

v’ Itis our policy for area managers (appointed person), as a suitably trained and experienced member of
staff, to conduct the self-exclusion meeting as long as the customer is willing to have a meeting with them.
This is designed to ensure the process is robustly exercised and that the customer is signposted to sources
of help and so that we can understand whether we could have helped earlier. It is not designed to delay
the process and it is clearly within our policy that a customer can self-exclude immediately.

v" Photo identification and signature of the excluder is required for self-exclusion agreements except
where an alternative means of identification is at least as effective. Photographs should be taken
using the tablet device. The image of the person should be of the shoulders upwards to include a
clear picture of the face with a plain background where possible.

v If the customer is not known to staff in any way or there is any doubt about the identity of someone
requesting to self-exclude, suitable photographic identification is required before the self-exclusion
can be processed.

v' The Appointed Person will offer the exclusion for a minimum duration of not less than six months,
nor more than twelve months; the customer thereafter may request to extend the length of the self-
exclusion for one or more further periods of at least six months, reliant on the Company’s ability to
manage longer agreements. The Company will not allow the excluder admittance to the premises

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



m BRE 75
bacta @ LARIUS

®
------ bt meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE

during the term of the self-exclusion agreement, and will have in place procedures for preventing
self-excluded individuals from gambling during the period of the self-exclusion agreement including
taking into account the internal structure and layout of the premises

v It is made clear to the customer that they may not revoke the self-exclusion during the agreed
period and that if found either in the gambling area or attempting to gamble they will be asked to
leave. Members of staff are trained to be alert to self-excluded individuals attempting to breach
agreements and instances of them enlisting another person to gamble on their behalf. It is a
requirement that staff

regularly pay heed to self-exclusion agreement forms that are currently active (particularly
photographs) in order to stay alert to the identity of those excluded in the locality of the premises.

v Self-excluders have the opportunity of also excluding from other premises owned by the Company
without necessarily having to enter areas licenced for gambling. Where the self-exclusion
agreement is extended to other Company’s premises we will consider any specific requests made
by a customer in setting the bounds of the exclusion area.

v" The Company will offer customers with whom it enters into a self-exclusion agreement in respect of facilities
for any kind of gambling it offers at our licensed gambling premises, the ability to exclude from facilities for
the same kind of gambling offered in the locality by any other holder of an operating license to whom this
provision applies, by participating in one or more available multi-operator self-exclusion schemes. In addition,
the Company is participating in the possible development of a multi-operator self-exclusion scheme that will
apply to all styles of gambling.

v' Those self-excluded will be removed from any marketing databases held by this Company within
two days of receiving the completed self-exclusion form, but we will take all reasonable steps to
prevent details being knowingly sent as soon as practicable.

v Does the customer gamble in other establishments such as Bingo or Betting Shops? — you should
sign post the customer to self-exclude in those gambling sectors as well.

v' At the end of the self-exclusion period, the exclusion will remain in place for a further six months, unless
the customer takes positive action in order to gamble again.

v" The Company retains self-exclusion records for the length of the agreement plus a further 6 months,
after this point the exclusion details and customers image are removed from the MOSES system
and all manual records destroyed. However, where we have banned a customer for three or more
self-exclusions or otherwise because we believe it to be in their best interests for up to 10 years.

v At the end of the exclusion period, the Duty Manager and customer will, together, review the terms
of agreement either by telephone or in person. The review process is recorded on a self-exclusion
review form.

v" Where a customer chooses not to extend the self-exclusion and makes a positive request to begin
gambling again, the customer is offered a 24-hour ‘cooling off’ period before being allowed access
to the gambling facilities.

v/ Customers are given the opportunity to discuss self-exclusion in private where possible.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



LUXE@ge 79

=, \LEISURE

bacta @ ARIUS

®
et meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE

v" Members of staff are trained both on induction and refresher sessions thereafter in the
understanding of, and the strict adherence to this policy and accompanying log, and required to
sign to this effect retaining a copy for their future reference. The original is retained on the

employee’s personnel file.

v' We should not tolerate any form of anti-social behaviour during an interaction/exclusion
conversation with a customer. If a customer wishes to self-exclude with immediate effect but is
displaying outwardly aggressive behaviour this could conclude with a staff member alone with them
in a room, potentially placing them in a vulnerable position. Under these circumstances it is
acceptable to advise the customer that we are happy to comply with their request but are unable to
do so if they continue to be aggressive. Advise that they would need to return for a meeting at a
later stage which we would be happy to book for them. This then gives the option for 2 members of
staff to be present if concerns are that the individual was not just having an “isolated bad day” and
could be arisk to their safety.

v" Where a customer has excluded for a third time we will issue a lifetime exclusion ban on Social
Responsibility grounds.

A self-exclusion log is maintained on the premises for recording detail of those currently excluded in
addition to records stored digitally.

Venue to record MOSES details in the table below:
MOSES User Name :

MOSES Password:

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,

Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



L age 80

-
bacta @ s @
T BeGambleAware.org GAMCARE

Self-Exclusion Process Chart

Customer approaches Staff Member or Duty Manager about their gambling concems.

Duty Manager should take the customer to one side and discuss the customers concerms.
Izsue a Stay in Control leafiet & talk it throwgh.
Ask them - have they considered any of our Gambling Management {ools in the first instance.
Always recomimend the customer contacts Gamcare or a similar organisation for professional guidance.

Does the customer require anything further af this time? Record details of the interaciion on

the ‘Customer Interaction Log’ (see
section 3 Customer Interaction)

Customer wighes to self-exclude. The duty manager supporting the customer offers them the opportunity to
speak with the company appointed person, usually the Area Manager.

k!

The customer wishes fo attend i
a support meeting with the AM Contact No -
appoinied person. Buddy &AM Contact No -
The meeting should be at a fime ROM Comtact No -

to suit the customer and does not ~
need to be held at a venue. Buddy ROM Contact No

The request to self-exclude should not be delayed in order to hold a support meeting should the customer wish
to self-exclude immediately.
Howewver, to ensure the customer receives the best advice and is signposted fo sources of help, the “Appointed
Person’ should offer to speak with the customer over the phone to advise of the options available to them.
The duty manager should then process the self-exclusion.

At the end of the interaction does the customer wish to zelf-

i e ?
— Record details of the interaction on the

‘Customer Interaction & Self Exclusion
file.

Process below applies for both Immediate or Appointed Persons Meetings with the customer:

You and the customer must complete and sign the Self Exclusion formn, the weh hased portal must be
completed whilst customer is 2fill in the venue az you will need to take their photo via the tablet before
concluding the meeting.

{Where WIFI haz faifled il take the picture wia MOSES a2 the image will be stored in the fablef device gallery, the exciusion
car then be added to MOSES once the WIF! izzue haz been fived].
ou must ask the customer whether or not they visit any of our gambling premises in the locality as they will
also be excluded from these premises. If there is a competitor or another gambling premises not in the AGC
sector within the locality, you should suggest an exclusion from these premizes alzo by signposting the
customer fo those premises.

Enzure Customer Mobile Telephone Number withdrawn from Marketing databaze.

Record on the Self Exclusion request form that this was an Immediate Exclusion and was authorised by your
‘Appointed Person'.

The customer must be escorted off the premises.

Record detailz on the ‘Self-Exclugion Log’ and notify all relevant personnel.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,

Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



LUX %ge 81

NLEISURE

—
bacta €@ RIS

®
et meterint BeGambleAware.org GAMCARE

Duty Manager Please Note:
You are authorised (having confirmed with the Appointed Person) to offer an immediate exclusion period of six to twelve months unless
your customer specifies otherwise. Once the meeting has concluded, notify your Area Manager.

If the customer wishes to self-exclude for from a greater radius than the system allows or has any requests that the current system cannot
cater for then you should seek advice from the Compliance team.

Return from Self-Exclusion Process Chart

Customer approaches Staff Member or Duty Manager about retuming fo gambling
after their Self Exclusion Period.

Has the minimum fime they were excluded for been completed?

N Remind them of the end date of the:
o exclusion and ensure they leave.

Advise them of the 24 Hour Cooling off period and make
an appointment for them to retumn to complete the retumn to
gambling process the next day.

You and the customer must complete and sign all relevant return to gambling documents
before concluding the meeting. Ensuring via the weh hased portal the customer is refurmned to gambling.

+  Offer the customer the opporiunity of a phased retumn to gambling by using one of the available
Gambling Management Tools to ensure their gambling behavior does not cause gambling related
harmes.

o Talk through our gambling management tools, would one of these work for the customer?
= Play a different category of machine
= Seta time Emit
= Come in less ofien

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



Lagf 82

LEISURE

WO TALARIUS

\

_—

2
bacta

®

SAMCARE

BeGambleAware.org

" uolsnxg-yag, Bulwsouoa aunpaooid pue Aonjod s Auedwon aul yim uonaunfuco u) pasn s Boj sy

HO sleg (sleleq (sJereq fa L] S3SON
ajeq Buijoos, u pakojdag ajques JETE ] ajeq pasLoyIny | pajanpuod woy aweN
Bunuesg g _.__u_m_._mux sainseap aanejuanald | o) sidweny | o) sydwsiy uelg Bunaap Bunaay Jagquiny 13Wolsng
awnsay | jo ajeqg 1Snx3 yoealg 35 | :yoealg 35 | UOISNOXT | UOISN|OX3 | UOISN|IX3 J9y 38

"@0IASp }9|gE} 2L} U0 papliodal Ajejelpaluil] 8q JSNW UoISN[oXa auy ‘sjsenbay UoISNDx] Jjas (| pJodal A|lenuell o} pasn &q 0} bo| siy] 8joN

32119B14 JO SBPOD) PUB SUOIPUOT) 30U
S002 LOV ONIMaGWYD

607 uoisn|ax3-Jj8s 9 uonIes

‘NOILV207 3LIS

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,

Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



o e 83
bacta @ [ALARIUS

®
et meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE

Section 7
Fair and Open Practice & Complaint and Dispute Resolution

Statement

The Company strives to provide a best in class experience for our customers, underpinned by the highest
standards of environment, product and customer service. When this occasionally is not to the satisfaction of our
customers we then make every effort to resolve any issue in a fair, transparent and timely fashion. In line with
ordinary code provision 6.1.1 of the License Conditions and Codes of Practice the Company has a thorough and
robust policy and procedure for dealing with complaints and disputes.

Definition
A complaint is defined as ‘an expression of dissatisfaction, whether spoken or written, about any aspect of the
way the licensee conducts their licensed activities. For example, a complaint:

- About the outcome of a gambling transaction

- About the way a gambling transaction has been managed

- That concerns the way the license holder carries out its business in relation to the three licensing

objectives

Customers may also complain about commercial matters, such as the quality of our facilities but these are not
overseen by the Gambling Commission nor covered by the LCCP.

Complaints Procedure

Despite our efforts to provide a high quality experience, dissatisfied customers may communicate a complaint to
us either verbally or in writing. All complaints are taken seriously, investigated thoroughly and handled in a
confidential manner. If the complaint cannot be resolved to the satisfaction of both parties at the venue, a copy
of our written procedure for dealing with complaints, together with a complaint form, is supplied to the
complainant together with the name and status of the Area Manager designated to deal with the next part of the
complaint.

We operate a 2 stage complaints procedure.

Stage 1 of the process has 3 parts (each of which must be documented in the log):

Part 1 (VM) — Venue manager is able to deal with customer complaint in venue.

Part 2 (AM) — Venue manager unable to deal with the complaint to the satisfaction of the customer, so passes
to the Area Manager.

Part 3 (ROM) — If the Area Manager is unable to resolve the complaint, it is passed to the Regional Operations
Manager. The decision made at this point will be the company’s final position with regards to the complaint.  If
at this stage the customer is still unhappy with the decision, they should be advised that their next course of
action is to request Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR). This now becomes a Dispute. The customer should
then be supplied with the ADR entity details who deal with such disputes in the arcade sector.

Stage 2

If a complaint cannot be resolved to the satisfaction of both the company and the complainant, then it becomes
a dispute. Disputes can be raised by the complainant with the ADR entity. The current ADR entity who deal with
complaints that reach dispute is BACTA. The contact details are as follows:

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



Lage 84

=\ \LEISURE

bacta €@ RIS

®
et meterint BeGambleAware.org GAMCARE

Name of ADR Entity: Bacta ADR Service,

Email Address: engs@bactaadrservice.org.uk
Website: www.bactaadrservice.org.uk
Postal Address: 29-30 Ely Place, London EC1N 6TD.

Where a customer calls the complaints telephone line or emails into the Admiral Customer service email address,
this complaint will be logged at Head Office and the details emailed out direct to the Area Manager (Part 2) to
deal with the complaint. The AM may delegate some of the investigation tasks to the VM.

Complainants should provide us with a comprehensive description and nature of the complaint; whether it is an
original complaint, or where the outcome of a previous complaint was found unacceptable, and their name and
postal address including a contact telephone number.

Timings

In the first instance, the Company will endeavour to resolve the complaint to the satisfaction of both parties within
fifteen working days. Should this not be possible we will explain why and provide a date by which the complainant
can expect a full response.

The Company is obliged to keep a record of all complaints and disputes, other than those considered to be trivial,
including all disputes referred to the ADR entity that are not resolved at the initial stages of the complaints
procedure. There is a requirement to submit reports of the outcome of disputes referred to the ADR entity to the
Gambling Commission at intervals determined by the Commission either by the ADR entity or by the Company.

The Company is satisfied that the terms on which gambling is offered are not unfair within the meaning
of the Consumer Rights Acts 2015 and is compliant with those terms.

An accurate summary of the contractual terms on which gambling is offered is available, with customers being
notified of material changes to terms before they come into effect.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



LUXE@ge 85

LEISURE
TALARIUS

\

@

_—

2
bacta

®

GAMCARE

BeGambleAware.org

INOHY Aq € ued
(panjosal WY AQ Z 1ed
jou JI) 8oineg sanJed ylog jo uonoejsnes WA AQ | Led
Hav v.10ovdg o} ay) o} panjosal jurejdwog panjosal Juiejdwoo ay) Jo weuedwoy | jurejdwon
palajay aleq al) o} uonnjog pue aleq wieidwoy abelg uondussag Jo awep jo aleg
[Bo7 endsig pue jureidwo) g 8o130eId uadQ pue Jleq — L uoloes
lpanoeLy jo sapog pue suogipuoy asuaar]
,,,,,,,,, ‘ON 133HS
Y aA G002 LDV ONITaNVD ‘NOILVYDO1 3lLIS
,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ON H1D

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,

Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



a0 86

h.\
bacta @ s
T BeGambleAware.org GAMCARE

Section 7 - Complaint Form

Customer

Mame:
Address:

Postoode: ...
Daytime Telephone Mo.: ...oooooiieiieinnneo... [E-mail address: ...
SIGNAIUNE: L.t et e e DR e

Is this an initial complaint or a follow up to a previous incident?

Venue Where Complaint Occurred

Rl BT (I KON e et ot et o ot et fmt bt s e £ ene ot s et e et et n st sams
D OIMU DTN .ottt fom oottt f o oo fo e oot et £t e s s £ s e oottt e e st
I O P Tl S. i ettt et et ettt et st n e et st et et ten e e
U B ST ..ot o e e oot e £ e efedfea St o e bems b emas et £t rms £t sam e
Name(s) of staff member(s) that you initially raised your complaint with: ...
Date of Incident: ..o Time of Incident: ...

Names & Addresses or contact telephone numbers of any independent witnesses.

Name and Category of Gambling Machine subject of complaint: _....... ...

A clear and comprehensive account of the complaint and what you are seeking as redress to
resolve the matter.

eeerieen... Please use continuation sheet(s) if required.

Signed..........oiieeeceee.. (Complainant) B UDSPRRRUOUOPRNY | - |- |

Section ¥ Fair and Open Complaints Form [NPGADTC) — V1 June 20019,

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 497 8200



LUX @ge 87

NLEISURE

—
bacta €@ AARUS

®
et BeGambleAware org GAMCARE

For Office Use Only
Appointed Manager dealing: ... e e oo MOBHlE MUmber)

Complaint Acknowledged (YIM): ... . (date)

Details of action to resolve taken By ComPaNY. ...t e e e

If complaint still unresolved by Company
Complainant referred to ADR Entity (Y/N); ... eteeememeeesieameeneeae e |Date)
MName of ADR BNty ..o

Company Complaint & Procedure Document given to Complainant (Y/N): ...... eeeeeieenneeeee. (Date)

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 497 8200



, .Rage 88

=, \LEISURE

acta €@ TALARIUS

®
et meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE

Section 7 - Customer Complaints
Terms & Conditions

Policy & Procedure

These are the Company’s Terms and Conditions by which customer complaints are dealt with. Also included is
the Company’s policy and procedure document and complaint form. Copies of the complaint procedure and form
are available on site for the benefit of customers making a complaint about the outcome of their gambling where
the complaint has not been resolved on-site in the initial stages.

A ‘complaint’ means a grievance about any aspect of the licensee’s conduct of the licensed gambling activities,
and should be raised with the company as follows:

v" The complaint should initially be raised with the venue manager at the venue at the time of the incident giving
cause for complaint. Stage 1, Part 1.

v If the manager is unable to deal with the complaint or the matter is not resolved to the customer’s satisfaction,
then it should be directed to the Area Manager at the earliest opportunity. Stage 1, Part 2.

v Should the matter still not be resolved, the customer will be provided with a copy of the policy & procedure
document, together with a complaint form that should be completed by the customer and submitted to the
Company for consideration by the Regional Operations Manager. Stage 1, Part 3.

v If the matter remains unresolved, the customer should be referred to an alternative dispute resolution (ADR)
entity with whom the Company has registered. The complaint will not be considered by the ADR unless:

» The matter relates to the outcome of the complainant’s gambling transaction; and
» Itis not resolved during the two stage complaint procedure as outlined above.

It is permissible for an ADR entity to have terms enabling it to reject complaints referred to dispute resolution if
the complaint is frivolous or vexatious, but the Company will not refuse to refer disputes on those grounds.

The Company will ensure that:

1. information about our complaints procedure is set out in these terms and conditions;

2. such information is readily accessible on our gambling premises to be taken away;

3. information includes details of how to make a complaint to the Company and the identity and contact details
of the person deputed to handle the complaint;

4. the information, names the ADR entity to whom disputes can normally be referred and, where necessary,
details of any limitation on the nature and subject matter of disputes with which a particular ADR entity deals.

5. customers are given a copy of the complaint policy and procedure document on request or on making a
complaint; and

6. all complaints are handled in accordance with the procedure.

Should the Company refer a complaint to ADR entity other than one in respect of which contact details were
given in accordance with 1 to 6 above it will, at the same time as making the reference, inform the Commission
of the reference and reason for selection of the ADR entity concerned.

The Company keeps a record of all complaints that are not resolved at the initial three-stage complaint
procedure.

The Company arranges for a copy of the decision on, or a note of the outcome of, each dispute referred to an

ADR entity to be provided to the Commission, either by the ADR entity or by the Company. This information is
provided in such format and within such timescale as the Commission may from time to time specify.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



o e 89
> g LERURE
bacta @ [ALARIUS

®
------ bt meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE

The Company also arranges for any outcome adverse to the Company of any proceedings taken against the
licensee (in whatever jurisdiction) by a customer in relation to a gambling transaction to be notified to the
Commission as a

key event; but excluding proceedings allocated to the County Court small claims track or equivalent in
jurisdictions outside England and Wales.

Under no circumstances are members of staff put in physical danger nor will they be subjected to abuse.
If a customer is threatening, then that person will be offered the complaint policy & procedure document together
with a complaint form, and be referred to the Company’s strict policy of ‘No Abuse’. If the customer continues to
be threatening the circumstances will be treated in accordance with a disturbance on the premises, and the
person will be asked to leave, and the police contacted to assist if necessary.

Which complaints or disputes are covered?

A complaint, in the context of the LCCP, means a complaint solely about the conduct of the Company’s activities.
A dispute means a complaint which has not been resolved by the operator's complaints procedure to the
satisfaction of both parties, and relates to the outcome of a gambling transaction.

Responsibility of the Employer

The Company has a written procedure in place to:

v advise employees of the name of the appointed person who is to be contacted about complaints;

v' ensure that all complaints are handled in accordance with the procedure throughout the investigative
process;

v" have arrangements in place for reference by a customer of a dispute to an alternative dispute resolution
service for disputes (an ‘ADR entity’); and

v/ maintain a record of all complaints, and those that evolve into disputes. All instances where the complaint is
referred to an ADR entity will also be recorded together with the outcome.

Responsibility of the Employee

Members of staff not authorised to deal with complaints, or where the customer is not satisfied with the initial

outcome, will ensure that:

v the complainant is informed of the name of the appointed Company representative who will deal with the

complaint, together with the appropriate contact details of that person;

the complainant is issued with the Company’s complaint policy and procedure document and complaint form;

the circumstances are recorded as contemporaneous notes as soon as possible following the incident and

the notes are signed, dated and timed by the member of staff dealing. The notes are to be comprehensive

and a true record of events, and

v" members of staff, unless properly authorised by the Company, are not allowed to voice their own opinion as
to the merits or otherwise of a complaint. Procedure is strictly adhered to.

v
v

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



, L. xage 90

=, \LEISURE

bacta @ LARIUS

------ bt meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE
Complaint Procedure

The Company endeavours to provide a high quality service to its customers and members of staff are
trained how to deal with complaints at the initial stage. However, if you believe that things have gone
wrong and your complaint was not resolved to your satisfaction at our premises, then please inform us
as we take such reports seriously.

The Company will review your complaint and will be dealt with by:

(name) who is (job title)

at (address)

Email Address:

How to make a complaint
v' Complaints, which we will deal with confidentially, should be submitted in writing, by letter or e-mail.

v ‘The attached form should be used to record and submit complaints.
v Give as much detail as possible including details of independent witnesses and any other relevant

information in order to assist the Company in the investigative process.
What happens next?

The Company will investigate and provide a full explanation of what we have done within 15 working
days of receiving a complaint. If this is not possible we will explain why and give a date by which a full
response can be expected.

If you are not satisfied with our response

If you are still not satisfied with our response to the complaint, you may consider writing to the alternative
dispute resolution (ADR) entity requesting that the matter be reviewed, enclosing all previous
correspondence relating to the complaint including the original complaint form. The ADR entity will
acknowledge receipt of your correspondence without undue delay and, after review, inform you of its
findings and recommendations, usually within 60 days. The review process is thorough and based
upon the information that both parties and other independent sources provide.

This Company is registered with the following ADR entity:
Name of ADR Entity: Bacta ADR Service,

Email Address: engs@bactaadrservice.org.uk

Website: www.bactaadrservice.org.uk

Postal Address: 29-30 Ely Place, London EC1IN 6TD.

It is highly recommended that you visit the ADR entity’s website (as above) so that you are fully aware
of the procedural rules and other related information.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200


mailto:enqs@bactaadrservice.org.uk
http://www.bactaadrservice.org.uk/

LUXE@ge 91

LEISURE

WO TALARIUS

\

_—

2
bacta

®

SAMCARE

BeGambleAware.org

"JON Jo puale Aay) Jaylaym 3asusdIT Syl ISISSE 0} SISIWAld aY) O) PajjED 9JE 3D1j0d USYM Pasn aq 0] — Sasiald ay) Uo psulelay ag oL

8
L
9
s
14
£
[4
I
1eTeEN paALIy paien
f&ing awolng .uu__c_n_, owry | e9110d ewiL JURPI2U| JO 2INJEN i ajeq JEYY
BoT aosue)sissy adijod bulinbay sjuapiou] Jawoisng
g uonoag
e SON 130U S S, e UOKEI0T SIS
FTHVIWY

sniavive @
FUNSITT
AdNXNT

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,

Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



, L. age 92

" \ §

bacta @

------ bt meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE
Section 9

Money Laundering, Cash Handling and Suspicious Transactions

Introduction

The company has policies and procedures in place to identify and prevent Money Laundering and Terrorist
Financing which are designed to fulfil its legislative and regulatory obligations under the Proceeds of Crime Act
2002 and the Terrorism Act 2000. The Company also takes into account the Commission’s advice on the
Proceeds of Crime Act 2002, Duties and responsibilities under the proceeds of Crime Act 2002 — Advice for
operators (excluding Casino operators).

Money Laundering Definition

Money laundering is a process by which the proceeds of crime are converted into assets which appear to have
a legitimate origin, so that they can be retained permanently or recycled into further criminal enterprises. There
is a responsibility for everyone employed in the regulated sector to report suspicious activity that they know or
suspect to be money laundering. There is a specific offence under the legislation for failing to report.

Policy

v" The Company has a corporate Money Laundering Risk Assessment as required by the LCCP.

v" The AML Risk Assessment also contains a policy relating to the handling of cash and cash equivalents as
required by the LCCP.

v' The Company has an appointed Money Laundering Reporting Officer (MLRO).

v All relevant staff are trained on the requirements of the Regulations and informed of the need to report any
suspicious transactions to the MLRO. Such reports to the MLRO are called ‘Disclosures’.

v' ltis the responsibility of the MLRO to assess all disclosures from staff and make a decision as to whether a
Suspicious Activity Report (SAR) needs to be submitted to the National Crime Agency (NCA).

v All SARs are key events and require the MLRO or another designated within the company to report the key
event to the Gambling Commission.

Disclosure Procedure

v' Allmembers of staff are required by legislation to inform the MLRO if they know or suspect money laundering
or terrorist financing. The MLRO is required to complete a SAR within 7 days of the disclosure and so
notification should normally take place immediately by telephone or email and followed by the submission of
a company AML disclosure form.

v" No discussion will take place with colleagues as confidentiality is paramount.

v" The MLRO will determine whether or not to submit a SAR to the NCA and will maintain a register of all
disclosures and whether a SAR was completed or not.

Cash Handling
As part of its AML Risk Assessment the company has a policy relating to the handling of cash and cash
equivalents. It also maintains records of the following:
i.  Monetary stakes introduced to machines (gross takings),
ii.  Money introduced to re-float machines
iii.  Token transactions
iv.  Customer refunds due to machine malfunctions.
v. Money removed from machines (net takings)
vi.  TRM machines have a pre-set tolerance that instigate an investigation process where money is simply
swapped out (supplier led investigation by security).

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



LUXE@ge 93

NLEISURE

—
bacta @ AURIS

®
et meterint BeGambleAware.org GAMCARE

Members of staff, where appropriate, receive induction and refresh training in the understanding of, and the strict
adherence to this policy, and required to sign to this effect retaining a copy for their future reference. The original
is retained on the employee’s personnel file.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



Lage 94

=~ LS N\LEISURE
b t @@ ~LARIUS
acta TARARIS .
et BeGambleAware.org
Section 9
Record of Suspicious Monetary Transactions Log
TIME LOCATION CIRCUMSTAMNCES REPORTE SAR OUTCOME
DTO SENT TO
MLO NCA

Dray: Site: Notes: Day: Daiy: MNotes:

Drata: Address: Date: Date:

Tirne: Ref: Time: Time:
Photographs/CCTV
YiN
ldertity, if known, o
description:

Day: Site: Notes: Day: Day: Notes:

Date: Address: Date: Date:

Tirne: Ref: Time: Time:
Photographs/CCTV
YiN
Identity, if known or
description:

To be retained on Site
Company: Site Reference: Serial No:  /

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,

Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200

GAMCARE



y LUXE@ge 95

=, \LEISURE

bacta @ LARIUS

®
------ bt meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE

Section 10
Local Gambling Risk Assessments

Policy and Procedures:

It is a requirement of the License Conditions and Codes of Practice for operators to assess the local
risks to the licensing objectives posed by the provision of gambling facilities at each of their premises
and have policies and procedures in place to mitigate those risks. In conducting the assessments of
risk Operators must take into account relevant matters identified in the licensing authority’s statement
of licensing policy.

The company have conducted an assessment of local risk to the licensing objectives at each of their AGC
premises. A copy of the risk assessment is retained at each premises.

In compiling the risk assessment, the company has where possible consulted the licensing authority’s statement
of principles and a copy of that document is kept at the premises. The company will consult other sources of
relevant data such as local police and crime statistics where available.

It is an ordinary code provision that the company must share our local gambling risk assessment with licensing
authorities when applying for a premises licence or applying for a variation to existing licensed premises, or
otherwise on request. (This may include during the course of a local authority or Gambling Commission visit).

We will review (and update as necessary) our local risk assessments:

- to take account of significant changes in local circumstances, including those identified in a licensing
authority’s statement of licensing policy;

- when there are significant changes at a licensee’s premises that may affect their mitigation of local risks;
- when applying for a variation of a premises licence; and

- in any case, undertake a local risk assessment when applying for a new premises licence.

Updating the LRA

The Venue Manager / Area Manager must notify the compliance department immediately if any significant
Changes occur in the locality or when venue trading hour’s change to allow for the LRA to be updated and
Reissued to the venue.

Your venue Local Gambling Risk Assessment must be placed within the white A4 folder and kept
within the day safe along with the premises license and be available at any time for either Gambling
Commission or Local Authority officers to read on request.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



— .Page 96

AP \LEISURE

bacta @ LARIUS

®
------ bt meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE

Section 11
Access to Premises by the Gambling Commission’s
& Local Authority Enforcement Officers

Statement

The Company recognises its responsibility and obligation to comply with the Licensing Objectives of the
Gambling Act 2005 and the Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice. Social responsibility awareness is an
important aspect of our day-to-day operating practice, and monitoring of policies and procedures is regularly
reviewed and subject to change as part of our ongoing risk assessment.

Policy and Procedures:

The Company acknowledges its obligation to ensure that staff openly co-operate with the Gambling Commission
in the proper performance of their compliance functions and that they are made aware of those officers’ rights of
entry to premises contained under Part 15 (S.303 to S.326) of the Gambling Act 2005 (refer to page 2 of this
document) and that:

The Company must provide the Gambling Commission with any information that the Commission would
reasonably need to be aware of in exercising its regulatory functions or suspect may relate to the commission of
an offence under the Act, including an offence resulting from a breach of a licence condition or a code of practice
provision having the effect of a licence condition. Changes in key circumstances must be reported within five
days of their occurrence in accordance with the terms set out in the Operating Licence.

v' The Company must provide the Gambling Commission with such information as the Commission may require
from time to time about the use of facilities provided such as:

1. the numbers of people making use of the facilities and the frequency of such use;

2. therange of gambling activities provided by the licensee and the number of staff employed in connection
with them; and

3. the licensee’s policies in relation to, and experience of, problem gambling.

v' The Company must submit a Regulatory Return to the Gambling Commission containing such
information as the Commission may require from time to time, and provide evidence that the terms on
which gambling is offered are not unfair under the Unfair Terms in Consumer Contracts Regulations 1999
and, where applicable, meet the reasonableness test under the Unfair Contract Terms Act 1977.

v" The Appointed Manager will be informed immediately a Gambling Commission Enforcement Officer
properly identifies himself on the premises, and will attend to the Officer without undue delay. Staff will
co-operate at all times with the Commission’s Enforcement Officers.

v' Members of staff are trained as part of their induction process in the understanding of, and the strict
adherence to this policy, and required to sign to this effect retaining a copy for their future reference. The
original is retained on the employee’s personnel file.

Local Authority visits:

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



LUXE@ge 97

NLEISURE

—
bacta €@ RIS

®
et meterint BeGambleAware.org GAMCARE

It should be noted that local authorities also conduct compliance visits in our premises, whilst these can be lighter
touch than an GC visit they are just as important to us to enable our demonstration of all our aspects of Social
Responsibility.

Gambling Commission / Local Authority Officer —
Venue Notification Process

We must ensure the compliance team log all visits conducted by either the Gambling Commission or the
Local Authorities, venue teams must ensure they follow the notification process below:

Gambling Commission / Local Authority officer enters the venue.
They should be greeted and welcomed to the venue, the duty manager must attend to the visitor.
Duty Manager to Notify the Area Manager

Area Manager to be notified as soon as possible Area Manager to Motify the Regional Operations
(ideally whilst the officer is still on site). Manager,
If venue area manager is on holiday the venue However, if venue unable to make direct contact
must notify the nominated covering area manager. with the AM, report visit direct to ROM.

Regional Operations Manager to notify the Divisional Operations Director.
However, if AM unable to make direct contact with the ROM, AM to report visit direct to ROD.

Regional Operations Director to notify the following by email:
Tom Allison
Paul Hyman
Mark Thompson
Elizabeth Speed
Rob Capener
That a visit is taking place and will update with further details as soon as possible.

At the earliest opportunity following the visit the AM / ROM must notify the same group with as much detail of
the visit to allow us if required to respond to the visitor.

On receipt of further detail / written report, the compliance team will log and record the visit, saving all the
emails / attachments on the compliance drive and support AM / Venue to resolve any actions outstanding as
listed by the GC [/ LA officer.

Visits are then discussed at the guarterly compliance reviews.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



, L. xa0¢ 98

=, \LEISURE

bacta @ LARIUS

[

®
ettt BeGambleAware.org AMCARE

Useful Hints and Tips:

Licensing Objectives

1. Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or
disorder or being used to support crime.

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way.

Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling.

2.
3.

NGO~ WNE

pwn

NG~ WNE

Where will | find documents that may be requested?
Full Premises Licence & Floor Plan — Should be kept in your day safe
Local Risk Assessment — Should be kept in your day safe
Local Area Map — Should be kept in your day safe
Local Council Statement of Principles — Should be kept in your day safe
Licence Summary — Should be 2 pages in separate frames on the venue floor
SR White Gambling Act Folder — Should be kept in the cash office
Staff Training Records — Should be kept in personnel files & on Admiral Academy
Stay in Control Leaflets — Should be near entrances / exits & near ATM’s / Customer Toilets
Attempts to enter logs — Should be kept on the cash desk

. Customer Interaction logs — Should be kept on the cash desk
. Customer Interaction & Self Exclusion files — Should be kept in the cash office
. Customer Complaints and Disputes Procedure — Print from Venue Intranet

What else might | be asked?
20% Rule — The total machines on site 20% of them can be B3 (£500 Jackpot machines) e.g. 55
machines in total = 11 B3’s
How many machines in your venue
How many B3’s in your venue
Do we sell Lottery Tickets — No

What else might they look for?
Category Stickers — All machines should have a clear & visible category sticker
Gamcare Sticker — All machines should have a clear & visible Gamcare helpline sticker
No under 18’s — All machines should have a clear & visible No under 18'’s sticker and at venue entrance.
Price of Play & Jackpot’s — All machines should display the price of play & maximum jackpot amount
T&C’s — These should be on display for all current promotions running
Challenge 25 — Poster should be displayed near entrances & exits & around the venue
No Alcohol — Sign should be displayed near entrances & exits
Opening Times — Poster should be displayed near entrances & exits or in windows

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



- y LUX %ge 99

AP \LEISURE

bacta @ LARIUS

®
------ bt meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE

GAMBLING ACT 2005

PART 15

Members of staff are to co-operate at all times with the Commission’s enforcement officers in the proper
performance of their compliance functions.

The officers’ rights of entry to premises are contained in Part 15 of the Act which deals with inspection (Sections
303 to 326). A constable, enforcement officer or authorised person under the Act may enter premises for the
purpose of assessing compliance or assessing whether an offence is being committed. A constable or
enforcement officer can enter a premises if he reasonably suspects that an offence may be being committed or
is about to be committed (Section 306). Entry may also be for the purpose of discovering whether facilities for
gambling are being provided, to determine whether an operating licence or premises licence is held and to
determine whether facilities are being provided in accordance with terms and conditions of an operating licence
(Section 307).

Entry may also be made to assess the likely effects of activity when application has been made for a premises
licence. A constable or enforcement officer may require the holder of an operating licence to produce, within a
specified period, a copy of the authorisation (Section 316). Failure to comply without reasonable excuse to a
request to produce a copy of the authorisation may result in an offence and be liable on summary conviction to
a fine not exceeding level 2. Section 317 sets out powers of the constable, enforcement office or authorised
person and include inspection of any part of the premises or any machine on anything on the premises,
guestioning any person, access to written or electronic records, remove or retain evidence of committing an
offence or breach of terms and conditions. Section 20 provides that the power of inspection must be exercised
only at a reasonable time. The enforcement officer or authorised person must provide evidence of his identify
and authority (Section 321). Section 323 provides that a constable, enforcement officer or authorised person
may use reasonable force to enter a premises. Section 326 provides that it is an offence to obstruct a constable,
enforcement officer or authorised person in carrying out their duties.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



— Rage,100

\
bacta @ s
------------ - BeGambleAware.org AMCARE
Section 12

Employment of Children and Young Persons
Statement

The Company recognises its responsibility and obligation to comply with the Licensing Objectives of the
Gambling Act 2005 and the Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice. Social responsibility awareness is an
important aspect of our day-to-day operating practice, and monitoring of policies and procedures is regularly
reviewed and subject to change as part of our ongoing risk assessment.

Policy and Procedures

It is an offence for children (under-16s) and young persons (those aged 16 and 17) to be engaged, or permitted
to be engaged in:

v" Providing facilities for gambling.

v Performing any function (including cleaning) in connection with a gaming machine at any time.

v/ Carrying out any other function on Adult Gaming Centre licensed premises, whether directly employed or
not, whilst any gambling activity is being carried on in reliance on the premises licence.

All relevant staff, including children and young persons, employed by this Company have been trained about the
laws relating to access to gambling by children and young persons.

It is strict Company policy that:

v' Children and young persons are not employed to carry out any work in an adult-only area of family
entertainment licensed premises at a time when any gambling is taking place.

v" Gaming machines sited in Adult Gaming Centres or adult gaming areas are turned off if children and/or
young persons are working on the premises outside the hours when the premises are open for business.

v" Due diligence is given to verifying the age of all new members of staff where there is reason to doubt
authenticity of birth dates supplied.

v The movement of children and young persons employed on the premises are carefully monitored and
supervised so as to ensure compliance.

Members of staff are trained as part of their induction process in the understanding of, and the strict adherence

to this policy, and required to sign to this effect retaining a copy for their future reference. The original is retained
on the employee’s personnel file.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



uxhage 101

" \ §
acta @
------ bt meterint BeGambleAware.org AMCARE
Section 13

Advertising Standards and Marketing
Statement
The Company recognises its responsibility and obligation to comply with the Licensing Objectives of the
Gambling Act 2005 and the Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice. Social responsibility awareness is an
important aspect of our day-to-day operating practice, and monitoring of policies and procedures is regularly
reviewed and subject to change as part of our ongoing risk assessment.

Policy and Procedure

All advertising and marketing by the Company complies with standards set by the Committee of Advertising

Practice (CAP) and the Broadcast Committee of Advertising Practice (BCAP). We ensure that our marketing

communications, advertisements, and invitations to purchase (within the meaning of the Consumer Protection

from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008), including ‘free bet’ offers, do not amount to or involve misleading actions

or misleading omissions within the meaning of those regulations.

We adopt the general principles that our advertising is:

v legal, decent, honest and truthful;

v' prepared with a sense of responsibility to consumers and to society;

v respectful to the principles of fair competition generally accepted in business; and not intended to bring
advertising into disrepute.

Specifically we ensure that:

advertising contains nothing that is likely to lead people to adopt styles of gambling that are unwise;
advertisements and promotions are socially responsible and do not encourage excessive gambling;

care is taken not to exploit the young, the immature or those who are mentally or socially vulnerable;
Advertising is not directed at people under the age of 18 years through the selection of media, style of
presentation, content or context in which they appear. No medium is used to advertise gambling if more than
20% of its audience is under 18 years old;

persons shown gambling are not, nor do they appear to be, under 25 years of age;

there is honesty at all times with regard to the chances of winning, the likelihood of a big win, and the odds
or payout ratio that applies to the gambling on offer;

advertising and promotional material carries a reference for the need to keep gambling under control;

it is never suggested or implied that gambling is a means of getting out of financial difficulty.

v' Advertising and marketing material should not appear on any primary web page/screen or micro-
site that provides advice or information on responsible gambling

v" marketing decisions are controlled by the central marketing department and a system is in place for

local managers to apply for marketing initiatives that are approved by the Head of Marketing to

ensure they are legal, honest and compliant with the Gambling Act/License Conditions & Codes of

Practice

SRR NN

AN

ANAN

Marketing and Promotion
Any incentive or reward scheme or other arrangement under which the customer may receive money, goods,
services or other advantage (including the discharge in whole or in part of any liability (the benefit)) the scheme
is designed to operate, and be operated, in such a way that neither the receipt nor the value or amount of the
benefit is:
a. dependent on or calculated by reference to the length of time for or the frequency with which the customer
gambles or has at any time gambled; or

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



Rage,102

NLEISURE

—
bacta €@ RIS

®
et meterint BeGambleAware.org GAMCARE

b. dependent on the customer gambling for a pre-determined length of time or with a pre-determined
frequency.

If the value of the benefit increases with the amount the customer spends it does so at a rate no greater than
that at which the amount spent increases. Incentives and rewards are proportional to the type and level of the
customer’s gambling.

Members of staff, as appropriate, are trained as part of their induction process in the understanding of, and the
strict adherence to this policy, and required to sign to this effect retaining a copy for their future reference. The
original is retained on the employee’s personnel file.

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,
Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



GAMCARE

®

BeGambleAware.org

LUXE@ge 103
LEISURE
TALARIU?

\

@

=\
bacta

$351W34d JHL NO O3NIVLIY 38 OL

Auedwon ayy Ag no paiues Buiuely yels Guipiosal Joj pasn ag o)

*6T0Z 3unf TA — (BETVD4N) Suiuies] yeis Alewwng pT UoRIaS

EL|ZL | KL OB [B|LZ]|9|S[F|EfT|) 21eQg Bumea]

aunmeubig
s aafo|dw3g

;eq gjeQg
Buyures | Bupnop

Fuedwosy w
uOnISO

(wpd)
awep s aafodws

s8191j0d JueAsjal Jsuiebe ya1 )|

Gunasiepy pue spIepuelS Busanpy

suosiad Buno) pue uaupiyd Jo uswsoidws

SIB2PO0 Waweoug s uossiwwo) Bulques ay) Ag sesiwalg o) ssaoy
SUaISSASSY y5iy Bulguwes [eaoq

suon2esuel] snoidsng g Bugpuey ysed ‘Guuapune) Aauopy

Bo asueisissy aaod Buuinbay suapiou) Jawosny

sAep  paaoxa 0] J0U [BAJBJU|

El
2l

‘o

B
B

(fjuo peal) uonnosey andsig pue aandeld uad) puE JIE4

swagesd yim s19queD o) diaH Pue Ajqisucdsey aqUIBD) O} MOy U UORBLLICH]

suosiad Guno s pue uaipiyo Aq Bunques o) ssaooy

uoISNPXF-}18g
[oauony vl fB1S

UDI2ElaqU| JaWoisny)

~ o oo W M

sidasuon apdioung

‘way) o} uonelal ul sjuawalinbal annoadsal umo
Jayl pue sainpasoud pue Aoyod Auedwor) jo aieme A)ny ale ‘sjuswnosop Buimoljop au) poolsiapun pue peal aaey Aay) 1ey) auepep ‘sleudoidde se ‘yels pue juswabeuepy

Buiurea] yeis jo Aewwing

v} uonoag

(0N J2ays

tuQjedo as

SR Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

Luxury Leisure is a trading name of RAL Ltd. Company number 01940045,

Registered office: Fifth Avenue Plaza, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, NE11 0BL. Tel. 0191 457 8200



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 105

Appendix 2 — Gambling Commission Guidance
to Local Authorities (Summary of Machine
Provisions by Premises)



Page 106

Summary of Machine Provisions by Premises

Machine Category

Premises type A|Bl1 [B2 |[B3 | B4 | c | D
Large casino Maximum of 150 machines
(machine/table ratio of Any combination of machines in categories B to D within the total limit of
5-1 up to maximum) 150 (subject to machine/table ratio)
Small casino Maximum of 80 machines
(machine/table ratio of Any combination of machines in categories B to D within the total limit of
2-1 up to maximum) 80 (subject to machine/table ratio)
Pre-2005 Act casino Maximum of 20 machines categories B to D or any number of C or D
(no machine/table machines instead
ratio)
Betting premises
and tracks occupied Maximum of 4 machines categories B2 to D
by pool betting
Bingo premises Maximum of 20% of the
total number of gaming No limit on category C
machines which are or D machines
available for use on the
premises categories B3
or B4**
Adult gaming centre Maximum of 20% of the
total number of gaming No limit on category C
machines which are or D machines
available for use on the
premises categories B3
or B4**
Family entertainment
centre (with premises No limit on category C
licence) or D machines
Family entertainment No limit on
centre (with permit) category D
machines
Clubs or miners’
welfare institute (with Maximum of 3 machines in categories B3A
permits) (only one may be of B3A) or B4 to D*
Qualifying alcohol- 1 or 2 machines of category C
licensed premises or D automatic upon notification
Qualifying alcohol- Number of category C-D
licensed premises machines as specified on
(with gaming machine permit
permit)
Travelling fair No limit on
category D
machines
Bl B2 | B3 B4 C D

* It should be noted that members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes are entitled to site a total of three machines in
categories B3A to D but only one B3A machine can be sited as part of this entittement. Commercial clubs are entitled
to a total of three machines in categories B4 to D.

** Adult gaming centre and bingo premises are entitled to make available a number of Category B gaming machines not
exceeding 20% of the total number of gaming machines which are available or use on the premises. Premises in
existence before 13 July 2011 are entitled to make available four (adult gaming centre premises) or eight (bingo
premises) category B gaming machines, or 20% of the total number of gaming machines, whichever is the greater.
Adult gaming centre premises and bingo premises licences granted on or after 13 July 2011 but before 1 April 2014
are entitled to a maximum of four or eight category B gaming machines or 20% of the total number of gaming
machines, whichever is the greater; from 1 April 2014 these premises will be entitled to 20% of the total humber of
gaming machines only. But not B3A machines.



Page 107

Appendix 3 — Gambling Commission Guidance
to Local Authorities — Part 9, Premises Licence
Conditions



Page 108

App 3
GAMBLING COMMISSION GUIDANCE

1 - Introduction
9.1 The Act provides that licences may be subject to conditions in a number of ways:

« they may attach automatically, having been set out on the face of the Act

« they may attach through regulations made by the Secretary of State or Scottish
Ministers

« they may be attached to operating and personal licences by the Commission

o they may be attached to premises licences by licensing authorities.

9.2 Conditions may sometimes be general in nature attaching to all licences or all licences of
a particular class, or they may be specific to a particular licence.

9.3 Conditions on premises licences should relate only to gambling, as considered appropriate
in the light of the principles to be applied by licensing authorities under s.153. Accordingly, if
the Commission’s Licence conditions and codes of practice (LCCP) or other legislation
places particular responsibilities or restrictions on an employer or the operator of premises, it
is not appropriate to impose the same through conditions on a premises licence.

2 - Conditions and authorisations by virtue of the Act

9.4 The following paragraphs set out specific sections of the Act that provide for conditions
to be attached automatically to premises licences, or for authorisations to be granted
automatically. The Secretary of State/Scottish Ministers may make regulations requiring
these conditions to be set out on the premises licence, and there is no discretion to decide not
to include them or to modify them. The table after paragraph 9.18 summarises which sections
of the Act apply to which types of premises licences.

S.172 — number of gaming machines

9.5 S.172 provides for premises licences to permit a specified number of gaming machines of
particular categories in each type of gambling premises. These permissions are set out in
detail in Part 16 of this guidance.

S.173 — betting on virtual events

9.6 S.173 authorises the holder of a casino premises licence or a betting premises licence to
make facilities available for betting on virtual events. This is separate from betting on virtual
events by means of a gaming machine. It is intended to cover facilities such as virtual horse
and greyhound racing which are person-to-person transactions, involving virtual images that
are not displayed on a machine.

S.174 — gambling in addition to casino games


https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp/online
https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-16-gaming-machines

Page 109

9.7 S.174 authorises the holder of a casino premises licence for a small or large casino to
make available the following types of gambling in addition to casino games:

e equal chance games

e betting — but not in pre-2005 Act casinos with grandfather rights and only with a
betting operating licence

e bingo - but only in large casinos and only with a bingo operating licence.

9.8 For the purposes of the Act, equal chance games are ones which do not involve playing or
staking against a bank and in which the chances are equally favourable to all players.
Licensing authorities must not restrict the equal chance gaming available nor prohibit casino
games that have not been prohibited by the Commission. Part 17 of this guidance provides
details of the casino games authorised by the Commission.

S.176 — access by children and young persons to casinos

9.9 S.176 requires the Commission to issue at least one code of practice about access to
casino premises for children and young persons. In particular, the code must:

o specify steps that the premises licence holder must take to ensure that under-18s do
not enter casino premises, including ensuring that each entrance to the casino is
supervised by at least one person who is responsible for compliance with the code of
practice

e require that, unless the supervisor is certain that a person seeking admittance is an
adult, evidence of age must be provided by those seeking to enter the casino or
gambling area.

9.10 S.176 makes it a condition of the premises licence that the licensee must comply with
the code of practice issued by the Commission. Licensing authorities should note that the
requirement under s.176 for supervision at each entrance is separate to any other condition
that may be attached relating to “‘door supervision’ more generally.

S.177 - giving of credit

9.11 S.177 attaches a condition to casino premises licences and bingo premises licences that
prohibits the licensee from:

e giving credit in connection with the gambling taking place on the premises
e participating in, arranging, permitting or knowingly facilitating the giving of credit in
connection with the gambling on the premises.

9.12 However, s.177 does not prevent the licensee from contracting a third party to install
cash dispensers (ATMs) on their premises, which may accept both credit and debit cards.
Such an arrangement is subject to requirements that the premises licence holder has no other
commercial connection in relation to gambling with the provider of the ATMs (aside from the
agreement to site the machines), does not profit from the arrangement, and does not make any
payment in connection with the machines. All premises licences also include a mandatory
condition which requires that any ATM made available for use on the premises must be
located in a place that requires any customer who wishes to use it to cease gambling in order


https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-17-casinos

Page 110

to do so (Part 1(5) of The Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and Default Conditions)
Regulations).

9.13 S.177 deals with the prohibition of credit in respect of casino and bingo premises
licences. However equivalent prohibitions are placed on bingo and casino operating licences,
as set out in s.81 of the Act, credit and inducements.

S.178 — door supervision

9.14 If a licensing authority attaches a condition relating to door supervision, and the person
carrying out those duties are required by the Private Security Industry Act 2001 (opens in
new tab) (PSIA) to hold a licence, s. 178 of the Gambling Act 2005 (opens in new tab)
prescribes that the requirement under PSIA will be treated as if it were a condition of the
premises licence. There is, however, an exemption from the PSIA licensing requirement for
in-house employees working as door supervisors at casino and bingo premises, details of
which can be found in Part 33 of this guidance.

9.15 S.178 defines door supervision as requiring someone to be responsible for *‘guarding the
premises against unauthorised access or occupation, against outbreaks of disorder or against
damage’.

S.179 - pool betting

9.16 S.179 provides that a betting premises licence in respect of a track may not authorise
pool betting to take place, other than in respect of dog or horse racing and only where the
acceptance of bets is by the holder of the betting premises licence, or in accordance with
arrangements made by them. In the case of dog racing, this preserves the existing
arrangements at dog tracks where the totalisator is operated by or on behalf of the occupier of
the track.

S.182 - access by children and young persons to tracks

9.17 S.182 applies only to a betting premises licences in respect of tracks. It requires the
licensee to ensure that children and young persons are excluded from any area in which
facilities for betting are provided and from any area where a gaming machine (other than a
category D gaming machine) is situated. The exception to this, for betting areas only, is on
race days at dog and horse racing tracks, that is on those days when racing occurs or is
expected to take place. In those cases, under-18s may have access to betting areas but
licensing authorities should note that this exception does not affect the prohibition on betting
by children and young persons.

S.183 - Christmas day

9.18 S.183 applies a condition to all premises licences that facilities for gambling must not be
provided on Christmas day, namely the period of 00.01 hours on 25 December until 00.00
hours on 26 December.


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2001/12/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2001/12/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/19/contents
https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-33-door-supervision

Type of
premises
licence

All premises
licences

Bingo premises
licences

Casino
premises
licences

Small casinos

Large casinos

Betting
premises
licences

Betting
premises
licence in
respect of a
track

Section of the Act

s.172

s.173

s.174

Page 111

s.176

s.177

s.178

s.179

s.182

s.183



Page 112

3 - Conditions attached through regulations made by the Secretary of
State or Scottish Ministers — all premises

9.19 The Secretary of State and Scottish Ministers have set out conditions to be attached to
all premises licences in the Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and Default Conditions)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2007 (opens in new tab) (SI1 2007/1409), and the Gambling
Act 2005 (Mandatory and Default Conditions) (Scotland) Regulations 2007 (opens in new
tab) (SSI 2007/266).

9.20 Conditions under these regulations fall into two categories:

« mandatory conditions made under s.167 of the Act that must be attached to premises
licences

« default conditions made under s.168 of the Act, that attach to the premises licence
unless the licensing authority decides to exclude them, using its powers under s.169.

9.21 Licensing authorities should note that mandatory conditions made under these
regulations are set with the intention that no further regulation in relation to that matter is
required. Therefore, it is extremely unlikely that licensing authorities will need to impose
individual conditions in relation to matters that are already dealt with by mandatory
conditions. Licensing authorities should only consider doing so where there are regulatory
concerns of an exceptional nature, and any additional licence conditions must relate to the
licensing objectives.

9.22 Mandatory conditions applying to all premises licences are set out at paragraph 9.25
onwards. In addition, there are mandatory conditions that relate to particular category of
premises licences. Details of these can be found in Parts 17 to 22 of this guidance.

9.23 Licensing authorities have more flexibility in relation to default conditions and may
exclude a default condition and substitute it with one that is either more or less restrictive.
Licensing authorities should note, however, that default conditions are intended to reflect
normal industry operating practices. In circumstances where default conditions are excluded,
the Commission would generally expect them to be replaced by other conditions, given the
requirements of s.153. Where the condition is more restrictive, the licensing authority should
ensure that they have clear regulatory reasons for doing so.

9.24 Default conditions under the regulations set out above relate to particular categories of
premises licence and details can be found in Parts 17 to 22 of this guidance.

Mandatory conditions
9.25 The following mandatory conditions apply to all premises licences:

« the summary of the premises licence issued by the licensing authority must be
displayed in a prominent place on the premises. In England and Wales this must
include a summary of the terms and conditions of the premises licence.

« the layout of the premises must be maintained in accordance with the plan that forms
part of the premises licence.


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2007/266/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2007/266/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2007/266/contents/made
https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-17-casinos
https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-22-licensed-family-entertainment-centres
https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-17-casinos
https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-22-licensed-family-entertainment-centres

Page 113

« neither National Lottery products nor tickets in a private or customer lottery may be
sold on the premises in England and Wales. Sale of National Lottery and private
lottery tickets are prohibited in Scotland.

9.26 There are also mandatory conditions attaching to each type of premises licence
controlling access between premises. There can be no direct access between one premises
licensed under the Act and another premises licensed under the Act, with the following
exceptions:

e between licensed betting premises

« between bingo premises and alcohol-licensed premises/clubs with a club gaming or
club machine permit/family entertainment centres (FECs) and tracks

e between tracks and alcohol-licensed premises/clubs with a club gaming or club
machine permit/FECs/betting premises and bingo premises

« between FECs and alcohol-licensed premises/bingo halls/clubs with club gaming or
club machine permit and tracks.

Default conditions
9.27 S.169 of the Act gives licensing authorities:

« the ability to exclude from premises licences any default conditions that have been
imposed under s.168
o the power to impose conditions on premises licences that they issue.

9.28 Licensing authorities should make decisions on conditions on a case-by-case basis, and
in the context of the principles of s.153. They must aim to permit the use of premises for
gambling and so should not attach conditions that limit their use except where it is necessary
in accordance with the licensing objectives, the Commission’s codes of practice and this
guidance, or their own statement of policy. Conversely, licensing authorities should not turn
down applications for premises licences where relevant objections can be dealt with through
the use of conditions.

9.29 Licensing authority statements of policy will need to consider the local circumstances
which might give rise to the need for conditions. Where there are specific risks associated
with a particular locality, the licensing authority might decide to attach conditions to the
premises licence to mitigate those risks. For example, local issues associated with a high
crime rate may put a premises at risk of not being consistent with the licensing objectives,
and specific conditions may be necessary to address the risk.

9.30 Where there are risks associated with a specific premises or class or premises, the
licensing authority may consider it necessary to attach conditions to the licence to address
those risks, taking account of the local circumstances.

9.31 Conditions imposed by the licensing authority must be proportionate to the
circumstances which they are seeking to address. In particular, licensing authorities should
ensure that the premises licence conditions are:

« relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling facility



Page 114

o directly related to the premises (including the locality and any identified local risks)
and the type of licence applied for

« fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises

« reasonable in all other respects.

4 - Conditions that may not be attached to premises licences by
licensing authorities

9.32 The Act sets out certain matters that may not be the subject of conditions:

e 5.169(4) prohibits a licensing authority from imposing a condition on a premises
licence which makes it impossible to comply with an operating licence condition

e 5.172(10) provides that conditions may not relate to gaming machine categories,
numbers, or method of operation

e 5.170 provides that membership of a club or body cannot be required by attaching a
condition to a premises licence (the Act specifically removed the membership
requirement for casino and bingo clubs and this provision prevents it being reinstated)

e s.171 prevents a licensing authority imposing conditions in relation to stakes, fees,
winnings or prizes.



Page 115

Appendix 4 — Gambling Commission Guidance
to Local Authorities — Part 21, Adult Gaming
Centres and Mandatory Conditions



Page 116

GAMBLING
COMMISSION

Conditions and codes of practice
applicable to

Gaming machine general: Adult gaming centre
licences

Gaming machine general: Family entertainment centre
licences

Including sector-specific extract of
LCCP January 2020



Page 117

Contents

If using an electronic version of this document, please click on the headings to

move to the relevant section or provision.

General introduction

Partl: Statutory conditions attached by virtue of
the Act

Partll: Operating licence conditions

1 Qualified persons and personal licences
1.1 Qualified persons
1.2 Personal licences

4 Protection of customer funds
5 Payment
6 Provision of credit by licensees and the use of credit cards

General ‘fair and open’ provisions

12 Anti-money laundering
14 Access to premises
15 Information requirements

15.1 Reporting suspicion of offences etc
15.2 Reporting key events and other reportable events
15.3 General and Regulatory Returns

16 Responsible placement of digital adverts

(3)]

(o))

o o (o)) <]

10
10

10
10
11
14

15

2 0of 40



Page 118

Part lll: Code of practice provisions

Introduction to code of practice

1 General - Cooperation and responsibility for third parties
2 Financial requirements - Anti-money laundering
3 Protection of children and other vulnerable persons
3.1 Combating problem gambling
3.2 Access to gambling by children and young persons
3.3 Gambling management tools and responsible
gambling information
3.4 Customer interaction
3.5 Self-exclusion
3.6 Employment of children and young persons
3.8 Money lending between customers
4 ‘Fair and open’ provisions
5 Marketing
6 Complaints and disputes
7 Gambling licensees’ staff
8 Information requirements
10 Assessing local risk

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades

16

17

17

18

18
18
19

23

24
25
27
28

28
29
31
32

32
33

3 0of 33



Page 119

General introduction

1 This document sets out the Gambling Commission’s general licence conditions
and associated code of practice provisions (LCCP) under the Gambling Act 2005
(the Act) which are applicable to the specified sector(s).

2 The LCCP document sets out:

Part I: (in black) statutory conditions attached by virtue of the Act

Part II: (in orange) the suite of general conditions attached to
operating licences

Part llI: (in blue) the principal code of practice, distinguishing
between ‘social responsibility’ provisions and
‘ordinary’ provisions (the social responsibility
provisions are in shaded boxes within the text).

3 Anindex to the provisions is provided at the end of this document, and if using
an electronic version of this document, links are provided from both the contents
and index pages to aid navigation.

4 Copies of LCCP can be obtained from the Commission’s website:
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk or by writing to:

Gambling Commission

Victoria Square House

Victoria Square

Birmingham B2 4BP

T 0121 230 6666

F 0121 230 6720

E info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

5 The Commission also produces sector-specific extracts of LCCP and these will
be made available on the website. Further information about the history of LCCP
(such as the results of completed consultations) and potential future
amendments to LCCP can also be found on the website.

6  This extract of LCCP comes into force on 1 January 2020.

7 Relevant requirements of the conditions and code provisions were notified in
draft to the European Commission in accordance with Directive (EU)2015/1535.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades

4 of 33


http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/
mailto:info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Page 120

Part I: Statutory conditions attached by virtue of the
Act

Social responsibility

This licence is subject to a condition that the licensee ensures compliance with any
relevant social responsibility provision of a code of practice issued by the
Commission. The social responsibility provisions that are relevant to the activities
authorised by this licence are set out in the section entitled Codes of Practice (Part

).
(Sections 24 and 82(1) Gambling Act 2005)

Return of stakes to children: AGC

The following condition applies to gaming machine general: adult gaming
centre operating licences only

This licence is subject to a condition that if the licensee (or anyone employed by the
licensee to perform an operational function within the meaning of section 80 of the
Act) becomes aware that a child or young person is using or has used facilities for
gambling provided in reliance on the licence, the licensee:
(a) must return any money paid in respect of the use of those facilities
(whether by way of fee, stake or otherwise) by the child or young
pDerson as soon as is reasonablv practicable: and

(b) may not give a prize to the child or young person.

This condition does not apply to use of a Category D gaming machine.

(Section 83(1))

Return of stakes to children: FEC

The following condition applies to gaming machine general: family
entertainment centre operating licences only

This licence is subject to a condition that if the licensee (or anyone employed by the
licensee to perform an operational function within the meaning of section 80 of the
Act) becomes aware that a child or young person is using or has used facilities for
gambling provided in reliance on the licence, the licensee:

(a) must return any money paid in respect of the use of those facilities (whether
by way of fee, stake or otherwise) by the child or young person as soon as
is reasonably practicable; and

(b) may not give a prize to the child or young person.

This condition does not apply to use of a Category D gaming machine, or equal
chance gaming.

(Section 83(1))

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 5 of 33



Page 121

Part 1: Suite of general condition to operating licences
under Section 75 of the Gambling Act 2005 (the Act)

1 Qualified persons and personal licences

1.1 Qualified persons

Licence condition 1.1.1
Qualified persons — qualifying position
All operating licences, except ancillary remote licences, issued to small-scale operators

1 In this condition the terms ‘small-scale operator’, ‘qualifying position’ and ‘qualified person’
have the meanings respectively ascribed to them by the Gambling Act 2005 (Definition of
Small-scale Operator) Regulations 2006.

2 Schedule X' lists those individuals notified to the Commission as qualified persons.

3 If, whilst the licensee remains a small-scale operator, an individual begins or ceases to occupy
a qualifying position in relation to the licensee, the licensee must within 28 days apply to the
Commission under section 104(1)(b) of the Act for amendment of the details of the licence set
out in Schedule X'.

4 An application for amendment under section 104(1)(b) of the Act may be made in advance of
an individual beginning or ceasing to occupy a qualifying position provided it specifies the date
from which the change to which it relates is to be effective.

5 In this condition ‘qualified person’ has the same meaning as in the Gambling Act 2005
(Definition of Small-scale Operator) Regulations 2006.

" The schedules mentioned here will be attached to individual licences.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 6 of 33



Page 122

1.2 Personal licences

Licence condition 1.2.1

Specified management offices — personal management licences

All casino, bingo, general and pool betting, betting intermediary, gaming machine general,
gaming machine technical, gambling software and lottery managers licences, except
ancillary remote licences

1 Subject to 6 and 7 below, licensees must ensure:

a that each individual who occupies one of the management offices specified in 2 below in
respect of the licensee or in connection with the licensed activities holds a personal
licence authorising the performance of the functions of that office (hereafter ‘a personal
management licence’); and

b that at least one person occupies at least one of those offices

2 The specified management offices are those offices (whether or not held by a director in the
case of a licensee which is a company, a partner in the case of a licensee which is a
partnership or an officer of the association in the case of a licensee which is an unincorporated
association) the occupier of which is by virtue of the terms of their appointment responsible for:

a the overall management and direction of the licensee’s business or affairs

b the licensee’s finance function as head of that function

¢ the licensee’s gambling regulatory compliance function as head of that function

d the licensee’s marketing function as head of that function

e the licensee’s information technology function as head of that function in so far as it
relates to gambling-related information technology and software

oversight of the day to day management of the licensed activities at an identified

number of premises licensed under Part 8 of the Act or across an identified

geographical area

g in the case of casino and bingo licences only, oversight of the day to day management
of a single set of premises licensed under Part 8 of the Act.

—h

3 The person responsible for the licensee’s gambling regulatory compliance function as head of
that function shall not, except with the Commission’s express approval, occupy any other
specified management office.

4 Licensees must take all reasonable steps to ensure that anything done in the performance of
the functions of a specified management office is done in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the holder’s personal management licence.

5 Where an individual is authorised by a personal licence and that licence comes under review
under section 116(2) of the Act, the operating licensee must comply with any conditions
subsequently imposed on that licence by the Commission about redeployment, supervision, or
monitoring of the individual’'s work and any requirements of the Commission in respect of such
matters applicable during the period of the review.

6 Paragraphs 1 to 5 above shall not apply to a licensee for so long as the licensee is a ‘small-
scale operator’ as defined in the Gambling Act 2005 (Definition of Small-scale Operator)
Regulations 2006 (‘the Regulations’).

7 During the period of 3 years commencing with the date on which a licensee ceases to be a
small-scale operator paragraphs 1 to 6 above shall apply subject to the proviso that the phrase
‘each individual’ in paragraph 1a shall not include any individual who was a ‘qualified person’
(as defined in the Regulations) in relation to the licensee 28 days immediately prior to the
licensee ceasing to be a small-scale operator.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 7 of 33




Page 123

4 Protection of customer funds

4.2 Disclosure to customers

Licence condition 4.2.1

Disclosure to customers

All operating licences, except gaming machine technical, gambling software, host, ancillary,
remote bingo, and ancillary remote casino licences

1 Licensees who hold customer funds must set out clearly in the terms and conditions
under which they provide facilities for gambling information about whether customer
funds are protected in the event of insolvency, the level of such protection and the
method by which this is achieved.

2 Such information must be according to such rating system and in such form the
Commission may from time to time specify. It must be provided in writing to each
customer, in a manner which requires the customer to acknowledge receipt of the
information and does not permit the customer to utilise the funds for gambling until they
have done so, both on the first occasion on which the customer deposits funds and on the
occasion of any subsequent deposit which is the first since a change in the licensee’s
terms in relation to protection of suchfunds.

3 In this condition ‘customer funds’ means the aggregate value of funds held to the
credit of customers including, without limitation:

a cleared funds deposited with the licensee by customers to provide stakes in, or to
meet participation fees in respect of, future gambling;

b winnings or prizes which the customer has chosen to leave on deposit
with the licensee or for which the licensee has yet to account to the
customer;and

c any crystallised but as yet unpaid loyalty or other bonuses, in each case
irrespective of whether the licensee is a party to the gambling contract.

5 Payment
5.1 Cash and cash equivalents, payment methods and services

Licence condition 5.1.1

Cash and cash equivalents

All operating licences except gaming machine technical, gambling software and host
licences

1 Licensees, as part of their internal controls and financial accounting systems, must
implement appropriate policies and procedures concerning the usage of cash and cash
equivalents (eg bankers drafts, cheques and debit cards and digital currencies) by customers,
designed to minimise the risk of crimes such as money laundering, to avoid the giving of illicit
credit to customers and to provide assurance that gambling activities are being conducted in a
manner which promotes the licensing objectives.

2 Licensees must ensure that such policies and procedures are implemented effectively, kept
under review, and revised appropriately to ensure that they remain effective, and take into
account any applicable learning or guidelines published by the Gambling Commission from
time to time.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 8 of 33




Page 124

6 Provision of credit by licensees and the use of credit
cards

6.1 Provision of credit

Licence condition 6.1.1

Provision of credit

All gaming machine general operating licences for adult gaming centres and family
entertainment centres

1 Licensees must neither:
a provide credit themselves in connection with gambling; nor
b participate in, arrange, permit or knowingly facilitate the giving of credit in connection
with gambling.

7 General ‘fair and open’ provisions
7.1 Fair and transparent terms and practices

Licence condition 7.1.1
Fair and transparent terms and practices
All operating licences except gaming machine technical and gambling software licences

1 Licensees must ensure that the terms on which gambling is offered, and any consumer
notices relating to gambling activity, are not unfair within the meaning of the Consumer
Rights Act 2015. Licensees must comply with those terms.

2  The contractual terms on which gambling is offered and any notices relating to gambling
activity must be transparent within the meaning of the Consumer Rights Act 2015. The
contractual terms on which gambling is offered must be made available to customers in
an easily accessible way.

3 Licensees must ensure that changes to customer contract terms comply with the fairness
and transparency requirements under the Consumer Rights Act 2015. Customers must be
notified of material changes before they come into effect.

4  Licensees must ensure that they do not commit any unfair commercial practices within the

meaning of the Consumer Protection from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008, at any stage of
their interactions with consumers.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 9 of 33




Page 125

12 Anti-money laundering
12.1 Prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing

Licence condition 12.1.1

Anti-money laundering

Prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing

All operating licences except gaming machine technical and gambling software licences

1 Licensees must conduct an assessment of the risks of their business being used for money
laundering and terrorist financing. Such risk assessment must be appropriate and must be
reviewed as necessary in the light of any changes of circumstances, including the introduction
of new products or technology, new methods of payment by customers, changes in the
customer demographic or any other material changes, and in any event reviewed at least
annually.

2 Following completion of and having regard to the risk assessment, and any review of the
assessment, licensees must ensure they have appropriate policies, procedures and controls to
prevent money laundering and terrorist financing.

3 Licensees must ensure that such policies, procedures and controls are implemented
effectively, kept under review, revised appropriately to ensure that they remain effective, and
take into account any applicable learning or guidelines published by the Gambling Commission
from time to time.

14 Access to premises
14.1 Access to premises

Licence condition 14.1.1
Access to premises
All operating licences

1 Licensees must have and put into effect policies and procedures (including staff training
programmes) designed to ensure that their staff co-operate with the Commission’s
enforcement officers in the proper performance of their compliance functions and are made
aware of those officers’ rights of entry to premises contained in Part 15 of the Act.

15 Information requirements
15.1 Reporting suspicion of offences

Licence condition 15.1.1

Reporting suspicion of offences etc - non-betting licences

All operating licences except betting, betting intermediary, ancillary remote betting, betting
host and remote betting intermediary (trading rooms only) licences

1 Licensees must as soon as reasonably practicable provide the Commission or ensure that the
Commission is provided with any information that they know relates to or suspect may relate to
the commission of an offence under the Act, including an offence resulting from a breach of a
licence condition or a code provision having the effect of a licence condition.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 10 of 33




Page 126

15.2 Reporting key events and other reportable events

Licence condition 15.2.1
Reporting key events
All operating licences

A key event is an event that could have a significant impact on the nature or structure of a
licensee’s business. Licensees must notify the Commission, or ensure the Commission is
notified, in such form or manner as the Commission may from time to time specify, of the
occurrence of any of the following key events as soon as reasonably practicable and in any event
within five working days of the licensee becoming aware of the event’s occurrence’.

Operator status

In the case of licensees which are companies, a petition being presented for their winding up or
the winding up of any group company of theirs, or they or any group company being placed in
administration or receivership or their directors proposing to creditors a composition in
satisfaction of its debts or a scheme of arrangement of its affairs.

In the case of licensees which are bodies corporate, but not companies, any event substantially
equivalent to those listed at 1 above.

In the case of a licensee who is an individual (or a partner in a partnership licensee) their being
presented with a petition for their bankruptcy or sequestration or their entering into an individual
voluntary arrangement.

Relevant persons and positions

In the case of licensees who are companies or other bodies corporate having a share capital, the
name and address of any person who (whether or not already a shareholder or member)
becomes a shareholder or member holding 3% or more of the issued share capital of the licensee
or its holding company.

Any investment in a licensee which is not by way of subscription for shares.

The taking of any loan by the licensee, or by a group company who then makes an equivalent
loan to the licensee, from any person not authorised by the Financial Conduct Authority: a copy of
the loan agreement must be supplied.

The entering into an arrangement whereby a third party provides services to, or grants any
licence concession or permission to, the licensee other than for full value: full details of the
arrangements must be supplied.

The appointment of a person to, or a person ceasing to occupy, a ‘key position’: a ‘key position’ in
relation to a licensee is:
a in the case of a small-scale operator, a ‘qualifying position’ as defined in the Gambling
Act 2005 (Definition of Small-scale Operator) Regulations 2006
b in the case of an operator which is not a small-scale operator, a ‘specified
management office’ as set out in (current) LCCP licence condition 1.2
¢ a position the holder of which is responsible for the licensee’s anti-money laundering
procedures, including suspicious activity reporting
d any other position for the time being designated by the Commission as a ‘key
position’. (Notification is required whether or not the person concerned is required to
hold a personal management licence and whether or not the event notified requires
the licensee to apply for a variation to amend a detail of their licence.)

9 Any change to the structure or organisation of the licensee’s business which affects a ‘key
position’ or the responsibilities of its holder.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 11 of 33



Page 127

Financial events

10 Any material change in the licensee’s banking arrangements, in particular the termination of
such arrangements or a particular facility and whether by the licensee or the provider of the
arrangements.

11 Any breach of a covenant given to a bank or other lender.

12 Any default by the licensee or, where the licensee is a body corporate, by a group company
in making repayment of the whole or any part of a loan on its due date.

13 Any court judgments (in whatever jurisdiction) against the licensee or, where the licensee is
a body corporate, a group company, remaining unpaid 14 days after the date of judgment.

14 Where the licensee is required to have their accounts independently audited, any
qualification to an auditors’ report; and any unplanned change of auditor including a change
prompted by a dispute or resulting from auditors being unable or unwilling to sign an
unqualified audit report.

15 Any change in the licensee’s arrangements for the protection of customer funds in
accordance with the general licence condition 4 relating to the protection of customer funds
(where applicable).

16 Where the licensee holds customer funds in a separate bank account, any deficit on
reconciliation of such bank account.

17 Any change in the licensee’s arrangements as to the methods by which, and/or the payment
processors through which, the licensee accepts payment from customers using their
gambling facilities (this key event applies to remote casino, bingo and betting operating
licences, except ancillary and remote betting intermediary (trading room only) licences).

Legal or regulatory proceedings or reports

18 The grant, withdrawal or refusal of any application for a licence or other permission made by
the licensee, or in the case of a licensee which is a body corporate, any group company of
theirs, to a gambling regulator in another jurisdiction. In the case of a withdrawal or refusal of
the application, the licensee must also notify the reasons for such withdrawal or refusal.
(This condition does not apply to applications for licences or other permissions to carry on
activities which would fall outside the scope of a Gambling Commission operating licence if
carried out in Britain or with customers in Great Britain.)

19a Any investigation by a professional, statutory, regulatory or government body (in whatever
jurisdiction) into the licensee’s activities, or the activities in relation to the licensed entity of a
personal licence holder or a person occupying a qualifying position employed by them,
where such an investigation could result in the imposition of a sanction or penalty which, if
imposed, could reasonably be expected to raise doubts about the licensee’s continued
suitability to hold a Gambling Commission licence.

19b Any criminal investigation by a law enforcement agency in any jurisdiction in relation to

which:
¢ the licensee is involved (including, but not limited to investigations of crimes
allegedly committed against the licensee or involving the gambling facilities provided
under the licence), AND
¢ the circumstances are such that the Commission might reasonably be expected to
question whether the licensee’s measures to keep crime out of gambling had failed.
Notification of the event must occur as soon as practicable after the licensee becomes
aware of any such investigation in which the licensee is involved and measures may have
failed.

20 The receipt of any report from a professional, statutory or other regulatory or government
body (in whatever jurisdiction) of the outcome of a compliance assessment in relation to the
gambling activity of the licensee or, where the licensee is a body corporate, of any group
company in which at least one person who holds a key position in or in respect of the
licensee holds a key position: a copy of the report should be provided where available to the
licensee.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 12 of 33



Page 128

21 The referral to the licensee’s Board, or persons performing the function of an audit or risk
committee, of material concerns raised by a third party (such as an auditor) about the
provision of facilities for gambling which are expressed (in whatever terms) as requiring
attention as a high priority: a summary of the nature of the concerns must be provided.

22 The imposition by the licensee of a disciplinary sanction, including dismissal, against the
holder of a personal licence or a person occupying a qualifying position for gross
misconduct; or the resignation of a personal licence holder or person occupying a qualifying
position following commencement of disciplinary proceedings in respect of gross misconduct
against that person.

23 The commencement (in whatever jurisdiction) of any material litigation against the licensee
or, where the licensee is a body corporate, a group company: the licensee must also notify
the outcome of such litigation.

24 The making of a disclosure pursuant to section 330, 331, 332 or 338 of the Proceeds of
Crime Act 2002 or section 19, 20, 21, 21ZA, 21ZB or 21A of the Terrorism Act 2000 (a
suspicious activity report): the licensee should inform the Commission of the unique
reference number issued by the United Kingdom Financial Intelligence Unit of the National
Crime Agency in respect of each disclosure and for the purposes of this key event the five
working day period referred to above runs from the licensee’s receipt of the unique
reference number. The licensee should also indicate whether the customer relationship has
been discontinued at the time of the submission.

Gambling facilities

25a Any breach in the licensee’s information security that adversely affects the confidentiality of
customer data or prevents customers from accessing their accounts for longer than 24
hours.

25b Where a gaming system fault has resulted in under or overpayments to a player (this
includes instances where a fault causes an incorrect prize/win value to be displayed).

26 Any change in the identity of the ADR entity or entities for the handling of customer disputes,
as required by the social responsibility code provision on complaints and disputes.

27 The reference of a dispute to an ADR entity other than one in respect of which contact
details were given in accordance with the social responsibility code provision on complaints
and disputes; the reason for selection of that ADR entity should be given.

28 In the case of remote gambling, the commencement or cessation of trading on website
domains (including mobile sites or mobile device applications) or broadcast media through
which the licensee provides gambling facilities.

In this condition:
‘body corporate’ has the meaning ascribed to that term by section 1173 of the Companies
Act 2006 or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof
a  inrespect of a company, ‘holding company’ and ‘subsidiary’ have the meaning
ascribed to that term by section 1159 of the Companies Act 2006 or any statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof
b a‘group company’ is any subsidiary or holding company of the licensee and any
subsidiary of such holding company.

1 Key events can be reported securely online at the Commission’s website through our eServices system
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk Alternatively, for operators unable to access this system, you can report a key
event by email to: key.events@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Alternatively, for operators unable to access this system, you can report a key event by email to:
key.events@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 13 of 33


mailto:key.events@gamblingcommission.gov.uk
mailto:key.events@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Page 129

Licence condition 15.2.2
Other reportable events
All operating licences

1 Licensees must also notify the Commission in such form or manner as the Commission may
from time to time specify, or ensure that the Commission is so notified, as soon as
reasonably practicable of the occurrence of any of the following events’:

a the conclusion of a dispute referred to an ADR entity and in such case providing
the Commission with a copy of the decision or note of the outcome?.

b any outcome adverse to the licensee of any proceedings taken against the
licensee (in whatever jurisdiction) by a customer in relation to a gambling
transaction; but excluding proceedings allocated to the County Court small claims
track or equivalent in jurisdictions outside England and Wales.

¢ their becoming aware that a group company which is not a Commission licensee
is advertising remote gambling facilities to those residing in a jurisdiction in or to
which it has not previously advertised or their becoming aware of a sustained or
meaningful generation of the 3% / 10% threshold being exceeded by the group.

In this condition:
a ‘group company’ has the same meaning as in condition 15.2.1; and
b without prejudice to section 327 of the Act, ‘advertising’ includes: having a home page
directed towards a jurisdiction and written in, or in one of, that jurisdiction’s official
language(s), having arrangements enabling that jurisdiction’s currency to be selected for
gambling or the use of payment methods available only in that jurisdiction, and providing
a specific customer service facility referable to that jurisdiction.

T Events required to be notified to the Commission by 15.2.1 or 15.2.2 may be reported securely online at the
Commission’s website through our eServices system www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk or by email to:
key.events@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

2 In respect of the referral of disputes to an ADR entity the licensee’s attention is drawn to social responsibility code
provision 6.

15.3 General and regulatory returns

Licence condition 15.3.1
General and regulatory returns
All operating licences

1 Onrequest, licensees must provide the Commission with such information as the
Commission may require about the use made of facilities provided in accordance with this
licence, and the manner in which gambling authorised by this licence and the licensee’s
business in relation to that gambling are carried on, including in particular information
about:

a the numbers of people making use of the facilities and the frequency of such use

b the range of gambling activities provided by the licensee and the numbers of staff
employed in connection with them

c the licensee’s policies in relation to, and experiences of, problem gambling.

2 In particular within 28 days of the end of each quarterly period or, for those only submitting
annual returns, within 42 days of the end of each annual period, licensees must submit a
Regulatory Return to the Commission containing such information as the Commission may
from time to time require’.

1Regulatory returns can be submitted securely online at the Commission’s website through our eServices system
available at www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 14 of 33


http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/
mailto:key.events@gamblingcommission.gov.uk
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/

Page 130

16 Responsible placement of digital adverts
16.1 Responsible placement of digital adverts

Licence condition 16.1.1
Responsible placement of digital adverts
All licences

1 Licences must:

a Ensure that they do not place digital advertisements on websites providing
unauthorised access to copyrighted content;

b take all reasonable steps to ensure that third parties with whom they contract for
the provision of any aspect of their business related to the licensed activities do not
place digital advertisements on websites providing unauthorised access to
copyrighted content; and

¢ ensure that the terms upon which they contract with such third parties enable them,
subject to compliance with any dispute resolution provisions, to terminate the third
party’s contract promptly if, in the Licensee’s reasonable opinion, the third party has
been responsible for placing digital advertisements for the licensed activities on
such websites.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 15 of 33



Page 131

Part lll: Code of practice

Introduction

This is the Commission’s principal code of practice, issued under section 24 of the Gambling
Act 2005.

There are two types of code provisions in this document:

e social responsibility code provisions: compliance with these is a condition of licences;
therefore any breach of them by an operator may lead the Commission to review the
operator’s licence with a view to suspension, revocation or the imposition of a financial
penalty and would also expose the operator to the risk of prosecution; these provisions
are set out in shaded boxes

e ordinary code provisions: these do not have the status of operator licence conditions
but set out good practice. Operators may adopt alternative approaches to those set
out in ordinary code provisions if they have actively taken account of the ordinary code
provision and can demonstrate that an alternative approach is reasonable in the
operator's particular circumstances; or that to take an alternative approach would be
acting in a similarly effective manner. Ordinary codes of practice are admissible in
evidence in criminal or civil proceedings and must be taken into account in any case
in which the court or tribunal think them relevant, and by the Commission in the
exercise of its functions; any departure from ordinary code provisions by an operator
may be taken into account by the Commission on a licence review, but cannot lead to
imposition of a financial penalty; these code provisions are in the unshaded boxes in
this section.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 16 of 33



Page 132

Code provisions

1 General
1.1 Cooperation and responsibility

Ordinary Code Provision 1.1.1
Cooperation with the Commission
All licences

1 As made plain in its Statement of principles for licensing and regulation, the Commission
expects licensees to conduct their gambling operations in a way that does not put the
licensing objectives at risk, to work with the Commission in an open and cooperative way and
to disclose anything which the Commission would reasonably need to be aware of in
exercising its regulatory functions. This includes, in particular, anything that is likely to have a
material impact on the licensee’s business or on the licensee’s ability to conduct licensed
activities compliantly. Licensees should have this principle in mind in their approach to, and
when considering their compliance with, their obligations under the conditions attached to their
licence and in relation to the following provisions of this code.

Social responsibility code provision 1.1.2
Responsibility for third parties — all licences
All licences

1 Licensees are responsible for the actions of third parties with whom they contract for the
provision of any aspect of the licensee’s business related to the licensed activities.

2 Licensees must ensure that the terms on which they contract with such third parties:

a require the third party to conduct themselves in so far as they carry out activities on behalf of
the licensee as if they were bound by the same licence conditions and subject to the same
codes of practice as the licensee

b oblige the third party to provide such information to the licensee as they may reasonably
require in order to enable the licensee to comply with their information reporting and other
obligations to the Commission

¢ enable the licensee, subject to compliance with any dispute resolution provisions of such
contract, to terminate the third party’s contract promptly if, in the licensee’s reasonable
opinion, the third party is in breach of contract (including in particular terms included pursuant
to this code provision) or has otherwise acted in a manner which is inconsistent with the
licensing objectives, including for affiliates where they have breached a relevant advertising
code of practice.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 17 of 33




Page 133

2 Financial requirements
2.1 Anti-money laundering

Ordinary code provision 2.1.2
Anti-money laundering — other than casino
All licences except casino licences

1 As part of their procedures for compliance with the requirements in respect to the prevention
and detection of money laundering in the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 and the Terrorism Act
2000, licensees should take into account the Commission’s advice on the Proceeds of Crime
Act 2002, Duties and responsibilities under the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 — Advice for
operators (excluding casino operators).

3 Protection of children and other vulnerable persons
3.1 Combatting problem gambling

Social responsibility code provision 3.1.1
Combating problem gambling
All licences

1 Licensees must have and put into effect policies and procedures intended to promote socially

responsible gambling including the specific policies and procedures required by the
provisions of section 3 of this code.

2 Licensees must make an annual financial contribution to one or more organisation(s) which
are approved by the Gambling Commission, and which between them deliver or support
research into the prevention and treatment of gambling-related harms, harm prevention
approaches and treatment for those harmed by gambling.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 18 of 33



Page 134

3.2 Access to gambling by children and young persons

Social responsibility code provision 3.2.3
Access to gambling by children and young persons — AGC SR code
All adult gaming centre licences

1

2

Licensees must have and put into effect policies and procedures designed to prevent
underage gambling, and monitor the effectiveness of these.

This must include procedures for:
a checking the age of apparently underage customers
b removing anyone who appears to be under age and cannot produce an acceptable form
of identification
¢ taking action when there are attempts by under-18s to enter the premises.
Licensees must ensure that their policies and procedures take account of the structure and
layout of their gambling premises.

Licensees must not deliberately provide facilities for gambling in such a way as to appeal
particularly to children or young people, for example by reflecting or being associated with
youth culture.

In premises restricted to adults, service must be refused in any circumstances where any adult
is accompanied by a child or young person.

Licensees must take all reasonable steps to ensure that all staff understand their
responsibilities for preventing underage gambling. This must include appropriate training which
must cover all relevant prohibitions against inviting children or young persons to gamble or to
enter gambling premises, and the legal requirements on returning stakes and not paying prizes
to underage customers.

Licensees must only accept identification which:
a contains a photograph from which the individual can be identified
b states the individual’s date of birth
c isvalid
d s legible and has no visible signs of tampering or reproduction.

Licensees in fee category C or higher must conduct test purchasing or take part in collective
test purchasing programmes, as a means of providing reasonable assurance that they have
effective policies and procedures to prevent underage gambling, and must provide their test
purchase results to the Commission.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 19 of 33




Page 135

Ordinary code provision 3.2.4

Access to gambling by children and young persons — AGC ordinary code
All adult gaming centre licences

1 The Commission considers acceptable forms of identification to include any identification
carrying the PASS logo (for example Citizencard or Validate); a military identification card; a
driving licence (including a provisional licence) with photocard; or a passport.

2 Licensees should put into effect procedures that require their staff to check the age of any
customer who appears to them to be under 21.

3 Licensees should consider permanent exclusion from premises for any adult accompanied by
a child or young person on more than one occasion to premises restricted to adults, or if there
is reason to believe the offence was committed knowingly orrecklessly.

4 Procedures should be put into effect for dealing with cases where a child or young person
repeatedly attempts to gamble on premises restricted to adults, including oral warnings,

reporting the offence to the Gambling Commission and the police, and making available
information on problem gambling.

5 Licensees in fee categories A or B should consider how they monitor the effectiveness of
their policies and procedures for preventing underage gambling (for example by taking part in

a collective test purchasing programme) and should be able to explain to the Commission or
licensing authority what approach they have adopted.

6 In providing training to staff on their responsibilities for preventing underage gambling,

licensees should have, as a minimum, policies for induction training and refresher
training.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 20 of 33




Page 136

Social responsibility code provision 3.2.5
Access to gambling by children and young persons — bingo and FEC SR code
All non-remote bingo and family entertainment centre licences

1 Licensees must have and put into effect policies and procedures designed to prevent
underage gambling, and monitor the effectiveness of these.

2 This must include procedures for:
a checking the age of apparently underage customers
b refusing entry to any adult-only areas to anyone unable to produce an acceptable form
of identification
¢ taking action when there are unlawful attempts to enter the adult-only areas.
3 Licensees must ensure that their policies and procedures take account of the structure and
layout of their gambling premises.

4 Licensees must not permit children or young people to gamble in the adults-only areas of
premises to which they have access. If there is a ‘no under-18s’ premises policy, licensees
must pay particular attention to the procedures they use at the entrance to the premises to
check customers’ ages.

5 Licensees must take all reasonable steps to ensure that all staff understand their
responsibilities for preventing underage gambling. This must include appropriate training which
must cover:

a all relevant prohibitions against inviting children or young persons to gamble on age-
restricted products or to enter age-restricted areas;

b the legal requirements on returning stakes and not paying prizes to underage
customers; and

¢ procedures for challenging any adult who may be complicit in allowing a child or
young person to gamble.

6 Licensees must only accept identification which:
a contains a photograph from which the individual can be identified
b states the individual's date of birth
¢ isvalid
d is legible and has no visible signs of tampering or reproduction.

7 Licensees in fee category C or higher must conduct test purchasing or take part in collective
test purchasing programmes, as a means of providing reasonable assurance that they have
effective policies and procedures to prevent underage gambling, and must provide their test
purchase results to the Commission.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 21 of 33




Page 137

Ordinary code provision 3.2.6
Access to gambling by children and young persons — bingo and FEC ordinary code
All non-remote bingo and family entertainment centre licences

1 The Commission considers acceptable forms of identification to include: any identification
carrying the PASS logo (for example Citizencard or Validate); a military identification card; a
driving licence (including a provisional licence) with photocard; or a passport.

2 Licensees should require a person who appears to relevant staff to be under the age of 21
to be asked to produce proof of age, either at the point of entry to the gambling area or as
soon as it comes to the attention of staff that they wish to access gambling facilities.

3 Licensees should have procedures for dealing with cases where an adult knowingly or
recklessly allows a child or young person to gamble. These procedures might include
refusing to allow the adult to continue to gamble, removing them from the premises, and
reporting the incident to the police or local authorities, or taking action where forged
identification is produced.

4 Procedures should be put into effect for dealing with cases where a child or young person
repeatedly attempts to gamble on their premises, including oral warnings, reporting the
offence to the Gambling Commission and the police, and making available information on
problem gambling to the child or young person concerned.

5 Where it is likely that customers’ young or otherwise vulnerable children will be left
unattended on or adjacent to their premises, licensees should consider reminding
customers of their parental responsibilities and assess whether there is a need to develop
procedures for minimising the risk to such children.

6 Licensees in fee categories A or B should consider how they monitor the effectiveness of
their policies and procedures for preventing underage gambling (for example by taking part
in a collective test purchasing programme) and should be able to explain to the Commission
or licensing authority what approach they have adopted.

7 In providing training to staff on their responsibilities for preventing underage gambling,
licensees should have, as a minimum, policies for induction training and refresher training.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 22 of 33



Page 138

3.3 Gambling management tools and responsible gambling
management information

Social responsibility code provision 3.3.1

Responsible gambling information

All licences, except gaming machine technical, gambling software, host, ancillary remote
bingo, ancillary remote casino and remote betting (remote platform) licences

1 Licensees must make information readily available to their customers on how to gamble
responsibly and how to access information about, and help in respect of, problem gambling.

2 The information must cover:

a any measures provided by the licensee to help individuals monitor or control their
gambling, such as restricting the duration of a gambling session or the amount of
money they can spend

b timers or other forms of reminders or ‘reality checks’ where available

¢ self-exclusion options

d information about the availability of further help or advice.

3 The information must be directed to all customers whether or not licensees also make
available material which is directed specifically at customers who may be ‘problem gamblers’.

4 For gambling premises, information must be available in all areas where gambling facilities are
provided and adjacent to ATMs. Information must be displayed prominently using methods
appropriate to the size and layout of the premises. These methods may include the use of
posters, the provision of information on gambling products, or the use of screens or other
facilities in the gambling premises. Information must also be available in a form that may be
taken away and may also be made available through the use of links to be accessed online or
using smart technology. Licensees must take all reasonable steps to ensure that this
information is also readily accessible in locations which enable the customer to obtain it
discreetly.

Ordinary code provision 3.3.2

Responsible gambling information — foreign languages

All licences, except gaming machine technical, gambling software, host, ancillary remote
bingo and ancillary remote casino licences

1 Licensees who market their services in one or more foreign languages should make available
in that, or those, foreign languages:
a the information on how to gamble responsibly and access to help referred toabove
b the players’ guides to any game, bet or lottery required to be made available to
customers under provisions in this code
¢ the summary of the contractual terms on which gambling is offered, which is required
to be provided to customers as a condition of the licensee’s operating licence.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 23 of 33



Page 139

3.4 Customer interaction

Social responsibility code provision 3.4.1

Customer interaction

All licences, except non-remote lottery, gaming machine technical, gambling software and
host licences

1 Licensees must interact with customers in a way which minimises the risk of customers
experiencing harms associated with gambling. This must include:

a identifying customers who may be at risk of or experiencing harms associated with
gambling.

b interacting with customers who may be at risk of or experiencing harms associated
with gambling

¢ understanding the impact of the interaction on the customer, and the effectiveness of
the Licensee’s actions and approach.

2 Licensees must take into account the Commission’s guidance on customer interaction

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 24 of 33




Page 140

3.5 Self-exclusion

Social responsibility code provision 3.5.1

Self-exclusion — non-remote and trading rooms SR code

All non-remote licences (except lottery, gaming machine technical and gambling software
licences) and remote betting intermediary (trading rooms only) licences

1 Licensees must have and put into effect procedures for self-exclusion and take all reasonable
steps to refuse service or to otherwise prevent an individual who has entered a self-exclusion
agreement from participating in gambling.

2 Licensees must, as soon as practicable, take all reasonable steps to prevent any marketing
material being sent to a self-excluded customer.

3 Licensees must take steps to remove the name and details of a self-excluded individual from
any marketing databases used by the company or group (or otherwise flag that person as an
individual to whom marketing material must not be sent), within two days of receiving the
completed self-exclusion notification.

4 This covers any marketing material relating to gambling, or other activities that take place on
the premises where gambling may take place. However, it would not extend to blanket
marketing which is targeted at a particular geographical area and where the excluded
individual would not knowingly be included.

5 Licensees must close any customer accounts of an individual who has entered a self-
exclusion agreement and return any funds held in the customer account. It is not sufficient
merely to prevent an individual from withdrawing funds from their customer account whilst still
accepting wagers from them. Where the giving of credit is permitted, the licensee may retain
details of the amount owed to them by the individual, although the account must not be active.

6 Licensees must put into effect procedures designed to ensure that an individual who has self-
excluded cannot gain access to gambling. These procedures must include:

a aregister of those excluded with appropriate records (name, address, other details,
and any membership or account details that may be held by the operator);

b photo identification (except where the Licensee can reasonably satisfy themselves that
in the circumstances in which they provide facilities for gambling an alternative means
of identification is at least as effective) and a signature;

¢ staff training to ensure that staff are able to administer effectively the systems; and

d the removal of those persons found in the gambling area or attempting to gamble from
the premises.

7 Licensees must ensure that their procedures for preventing access to gambling by self-
excluded individuals take account of the structure and layout of the gambling premises.

8 Licensees must, when administering the self-exclusion agreement, signpost the individual to
counselling and support services.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 25 of 33




Ordinary code provision 3.5.2
Self-exclusion — non-remote ordinary code

All non-remote licences and remote betting intermediary (trading rooms only) licences, but
not gaming machine technical and gambling software licences

1 Self-exclusion procedures should require individuals to take positive action in order to self-
exclude. This can be a signature on a self-exclusion form.

Individuals should be able to self-exclude without having to enter gambling premises.

3 Before an individual self-excludes, licensees should provide or make available sufficient
information about what the consequences of self-exclusion are.

4 Licensees should take all reasonable steps to extend the self-exclusion to premises of the
same type owned by the operator in the customer’s local area. In setting the bounds of that
area licensees may take into account the customer’s address (if known to them), anything else
known to them about the distance the customer ordinarily travels to gamble and any specific
request the customer may make.

5 Licensees should encourage the customer to consider extending their self-exclusion to other
licensees’ gambling premises in the customer’s local area.

6 Customers should be given the opportunity to discuss self-exclusion in private, where possible.

7 Licensees should take steps to ensure that:

a the minimum self-exclusion period offered is of a duration of not less than 6 nor more
than 12 months

b any self-exclusion may, on request, be extended for one or more further periods of at
least 6 months each

¢ a customer who has decided to enter a self-exclusion agreement is given the
opportunity to do so immediately without any cooling-off period. However, if the
customer wishes to consider the self-exclusion further (for example to discuss with
problem gambling groups), the customer may return at a later date to enter into self-
exclusion

d atthe end of the period chosen by the customer, the self-exclusion remains in place for
a further 6 months, unless the customer takes positive action in order to gamble again

e where a customer chooses not to renew the self-exclusion, and makes a positive
request to begin gambling again during the 6 month period following the end of their
initial self-exclusion, the customer is given one day to cool off before being allowed
access to gambling facilities. The contact must be made via telephone or in person

f notwithstanding the expiry of the period of self-exclusion chosen by a customer, no
marketing material should be sent to them unless and until they have asked for or
agreed to accept such material.

8 The licensee should retain the records relating to a self-exclusion agreement at least for the
length of the self-exclusion agreement plus a further 6 months.

9 Please note that the Commission does not require the licensee to carry out any particular
assessment or make any judgement as to whether the previously self-excluded individual
should again be permitted access to gambling. The requirement to take positive action in
person or over the phone is purely to a) check that the customer has considered the decision
to access gambling again and allow them to consider the implications; and b) implement the
one day cooling-off period and explain why this has been put in place.

10 Licensees should have, and put into effect, policies and procedures which recognise,
seek to guard against and otherwise address, the fact that some individuals who have
self-excluded might attempt to breach their exclusion without entering a gambling
premises, for example, by getting another to gamble on their behalf.

11 Licensees should have effective systems in place to inform all venue staff of self-
excluded individuals who have recently attempted to breach a self-exclusion in that
venue, and the licensees neighbouring venues.

12 In providing training to staff on their responsibilities for self-exclusion, licensees should
have, as a minimum, policies for induction training and refresher training.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 26 of 33




Page 142

Social responsibility code provision 3.5.6
Self-exclusion — multi-operator non-remote SR code

All non-remote casino, bingo and betting licences (except in respect of the provision of
facilities for betting in reliance on a track premises licence) and holders of gaming
machine general operating licences for adult gaming centres

1 Licensees must offer customers with whom they enter into a self-exclusion agreement in
respect of facilities for any kind of gambling offered by them at licensed gambling premises the
ability to self-exclude from facilities for the same kind of gambling offered in their locality by
any other holder of an operating licence to whom this provision applies, by participating in one
or more available multi-operator self-exclusion schemes.

Ordinary code provision 3.5.7

Self-exclusion — multi-operator non-remote ordinary code

All non-remote casino, bingo and betting licences (except in respect of the provision of
facilities for betting in reliance on a track premises licence) and holders of gaming
machine general operating licences for adult gaming centres

1 Licensees should contribute to and participate in the development and effective
implementation of multi-operator self-exclusions schemes with the aim of making available to
customers the ability to self-exclude from facilities for gambling provided by other licensed
operators within their local area(s).

3.6 Employment of children and young persons

Ordinary code provision 3.6.5
Employment of children and young people — AGCs
All adult gaming centre licences

1 Licensees who employ children (under-16-year-olds) and young persons (those aged 16 and
17) should be aware that it is an offence:

a to employ them to provide facilities for gambling;

b if gaming machines are sited on the premises, for their contracts of employment to
require them, or for them to be permitted, to perform a function in connection with a
gaming machine at any time; and

¢ to employ them to carry out any other function on adult gaming centre licensed
premises while any gambling activity is being carried on in reliance on the premises
licence.

2 Asto 1b, it should be noted that in the Commission’s view the relevant provision of the Act
applies to any function performed in connection with a gaming machine. This includes
servicing or cleaning such a machine.

3 Accordingly, licensees should have and put into effect policies and procedures designed to
ensure that:
a children and young persons are never asked to perform tasks within 1a or 1b, above
b all staff, including those who are children or young persons themselves, are instructed
about the laws relating to access to gambling by children and young persons.

4 Licensees should consider adopting a policy that:
a children and young persons are not employed to work on adult gaming centre licensed
premises at any time when the premises are open for business
b gaming machines are turned off if children and young persons are working on the
premises outside the hours when the premises are open for business.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 27 of 33




Page 143

Ordinary code provision 3.6.6
Employment of children and young people — FECs
All family entertainment centre licences

1 Licensees who employ children (under-16-year-olds) and young persons (those aged 16 and
17) should be aware that it is an offence:
a to employ them to provide facilities for gambling; and
b if gaming machines are sited on the premises, for their contracts of employment to
require them, or for them to be permitted, to perform a function in connection with a
gaming machine at any time.

2 Asto 1b, it should be noted that in the Commission’s view the relevant provision of the Act
applies to any function performed in connection with a gaming machine. This includes
servicing or cleaning such a machine.

3 Accordingly, licensees should have and put into effect policies and procedures designed to
ensure that:
a children and young persons are never asked to perform tasks within 1a or 1b, above;
and
b all staff, including those who are children or young persons themselves, are instructed
about the laws relating to access to gambling by children and young persons.

4 Licensees should consider adopting a policy that:

a children and young persons are not employed to carry out any work in an adult-only
area of family entertainment licensed premises at a time when any gambling is taking
place; and

b gaming machines sited in adult-only areas are turned off if children and young persons
are working on the premises outside the hours when the premises are open for
business.

3.8 Money lending between customers

Ordinary code provision 3.8.2

Money-lending — other than casinos

All non-remote bingo, general betting, adult gaming centre, family entertainment centre
and remote betting intermediary (trading rooms only) licences

1 Licensees should seek to prevent systematic or organised money lending between customers
on their premises. As a minimum, they should have arrangements in place to ensure staff are
requested to report any instances of substantial money lending when they become aware of
them.

4 ‘Fair and open’ provisions
4.1 Fair terms

Social responsibility code provision 4.1.1
Fair terms
All licences, except gaming machine technical and gambling software licences

1 Licensees must be able to provide evidence to the Commission, if required, showing how they
satisfied themselves that their terms are not unfair.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 28 of 33




Page 144

5 Marketing
5.1 Rewards and bonuses

Social responsibility code provision 5.1.1

Rewards and bonuses — SR code

All licences (including ancillary remote licences), except gaming machine technical and
gambling software licences

1 If a licensee makes available to any customer or potential customer any incentive or reward
scheme or other arrangement under which the customer may receive money, goods, services
or any other advantage (including the discharge in whole or in part of any liability of his) (‘the
benefit’) the scheme must be designed to operate, and be operated, in such a way that:

a the circumstances in which, and conditions subject to which, the benefit is available are
clearly set out and readily accessible to the customers to whom it is offered,;
b neither the receipt nor the value or amount of the benefit is:
i  dependent on the customer gambling for a pre-determined length of time or with a
pre-determined frequency; or
ii  altered or increased if the qualifying activity or spend is reached within a shorter
time than the whole period over which the benéefit is offered.
¢ if the value of the benefit increases with the amount the customer spends it does so at a
rate no greater than that at which the amount spent increases; and further that:

d if the benefit comprises free or subsidised travel or accommodation which facilitates the
customer’s attendance at particular licensed premises the terms on which it is offered
are not directly related to the level of the customer’s prospective gambling.

Ordinary code provision 5.1.2

Proportionate rewards

All licences (including ancillary remote licences), except gaming machine technical and
gambling software licences

1 Licensees should only offer incentive or reward schemes in which the benefit available is
proportionate to the type and level of customers’ gambling.

Social responsibility code provision 5.1.6
Compliance with advertising codes
All licences, except lottery licences

1 All marketing of gambling products and services must be undertaken in a socially responsible
manner.

2 In particular, Licensees must comply with the advertising codes of practice issued by the
Committee of Advertising Practice (CAP) and the Broadcast Committee of Advertising Practice
(BCAP) as applicable. For media not explicitly covered, licensees should have regard to the
principles included in these codes of practice as if they were explicitly covered.

3 The restriction on allowing people who are, or seem to be, under 25 years old (ie: those in the
18-24 age bracket) to appear in marketing communications need not be applied in the case of
non-remote point of sale advertising material, provided that the images used depict the
sporting or other activity that may be gambled on and not the activity of gambling itself and do
not breach any other aspect of the advertising codes.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 29 of 33




Page 145

Ordinary code provision 5.1.8
Compliance with industry advertising codes
All licences

1 Licensees should follow any relevant industry code on advertising, notably the Gambling
Industry Code for Socially Responsible Advertising.

Social responsibility code provision 5.1.9
Other marketing requirements
All licences

1 Licensees must ensure that their marketing communications, advertisement, and invitations to
purchase (within the meaning of the Consumer Protection from Unfair Trading Regulations
2008) do not amount to or involve misleading actions or misleading omissions within the
meaning of those Regulations.

2 Licensees must ensure that all significant conditions which apply to marketing incentives are
provided transparently and prominently to consumers. Licensees must present the significant
conditions at the point of sale for any promotion, and on any advertising in any medium for that
marketing incentive except where, in relation to the latter, limitations of space make this
impossible. In such a case, information about the significant conditions must be included to the
extent that it is possible to do so, the advertising must clearly indicate that significant
conditions apply and where the advertisement is online, the significant conditions must be
displayed in full no further than one click away.

3 The terms and conditions of each marketing incentive must be made available for the full
duration of the promotion.

Ordinary code provision 5.1.10
Online marketing in proximity to information on responsible gambling
All licences

1 Licensees should ensure that no advertising or other marketing information, whether relating to
specific offers or to gambling generally, appears on any primary web page/screen, or micro
site that provides advice or information on responsible gambling

Social Responsibility code provision 5.1.11
Direct electronic marketing consent
All licences

1 Unless expressly permitted by law consumers must not be contacted with direct electronic
marketing without their informed and specific consent. Whenever a consumer is contacted the
consumer must be provided with an opportunity to withdraw consent. If consent is withdrawn
the licensee must, as soon as practicable, ensure the consumer is not contacted with
electronic marketing thereafter unless the consumer consents again. Licensees must be able
to provide evidence which establishes that consent.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 30 of 33




Page 146

6 Complaints and disputes
6.1 Complaints and disputes

Social responsibility code provision 6.1.1

Complaints and disputes

All licences (including ancillary remote licensees) except gaming machine technical and
gambling software licences

1 Licensees must put into effect appropriate policies and procedures for accepting and handling
customer complaints and disputes in a timely, fair, open and transparent manner.

2 Licensees must ensure that they have arrangements in place for customers to be able to refer
any dispute to an ADR entity in a timely manner if not resolved to the customer’s satisfaction
by use of their complaints procedure within eight weeks of receiving the complaint, and where
the customer cooperates with the complaints process in a timely manner.

3 The services of any such ADR entity must be free of charge to the customer.

4 Licensees must not use or introduce terms which restrict, or purport to restrict, the customer’s
right to bring proceedings against the licensee in any court of competent jurisdiction. Such
terms may, however, provide for a resolution of a dispute agreed by the customer (arrived at
with the assistance of the ADR entity) to be binding on both parties.

5 Licensees’ complaints handling policies and procedures must include procedures to provide
customers with clear and accessible information on how to make a complaint, the complaint
procedures, timescales for responding, and escalation procedures.

6 Licensees must ensure that complaints policies and procedures are implemented effectively,
kept under review and revised appropriately to ensure that they remain effective, and take into
account any applicable learning or guidance published by the Gambling Commission from time
to time.

7 Licensees should keep records of customer complaints and disputes in such manner as the
Commission may from time to time specify in advice or guidance. They must provide
information to the Commission about customer complaints, disputes, the outcomes of disputes
referred to ADR, and court proceedings adverse to the licensee, also in such manner as the
Commission may from time to time specify.

In this code, ‘ADR entity’ means

a A offering alternative dispute resolution services whose name appears on the list person
maintained by the Gambling Commission in accordance with the ‘Alternative Dispute
Resolution for Consumer Disputes (Competent Authorities and information) Regulations
2015, and

b Whose name appears on the list of providers that meet the Gambling Commission’s
additional standards found in the document ‘Alternative dispute resolution (ADR) in the
gambling industry — standards and guidance for ADR providers’.

Both lists are on the Commission’s website and will be updated from time to time.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 31 0f 33




Page 147

7 Gambling licensees’ staff

7.1 Gambling licensees’ staff

Social responsibility code provision 7.1.2

Responsible gambling information for staff

All licences, including betting ancillary remote licences, but not other ancillary remote
licences

1 Licensees must take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff involved in the provision of
facilities for gambling are made aware of advice on socially responsible gambling and of where
to get confidential advice should their gambling become hard to control.

8 Information requirements

8.1 Information requirements

Ordinary code provision 8.1.1
Information requirements — ordinary code
All licences

1 As stated earlier in this code, the Commission expects licensees to work with the Commission
in an open and cooperative way and to inform the Commission of any matters that the
Commission would reasonably need to be aware of in exercising its regulatory functions.
These include in particular matters that will have a material impact on the licensee’s business
or on the licensee’s ability to conduct licensed activities compliantly and consistently with the
licensing objectives.

2 Thus, licensees should notify the Commission, or ensure that the Commission is notified, as
soon as reasonably practicable and in such form and manner as the Commission may from
time to time specify’, of any matters which in their view could have a material impact on their
business or affect compliance. The Commission would, in particular, expect to be notified of
the occurrence of any of the following events in so far as not already notified in accordance
with the conditions attached to the licensee’s licence?:

a  any material change in the licensee’s structure or the operation of its business

b  any material change in managerial responsibilities or governance arrangements

¢ any report from an internal or external auditor expressing, or giving rise to, concerns
about material shortcomings in the management control or oversight of any aspect of
the licensee’s business related to the provision of gambling facilities.

T These matters can be reported securely online at the Commission’s website through our eServices system
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Alternatively, for operators unable to access this system, you can these events by email to:
key.events@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

2 Events which must be reported, because the Commission considers them likely to have a material impact on the
nature or structure of a licensee’s business, are set out in general licence condition 15.2.1

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 32 of 33



mailto:key.events@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Page 148

10 Assessing local risk
10.1 Assessing local risk

Social responsibility code provision 10.1.1

Assessing local risk

All non-remote casino, adult gaming centre, bingo, family entertainment centre, betting
and remote betting intermediary (trading room only) licences, except non-remote general
betting (limited) and betting intermediary licences.

1 Licensees must assess the local risks to the licensing objectives posed by the provision of
gambling facilities at each of their premises, and have policies, procedures and control
measures to mitigate those risks. In making risk assessments, licensees must take into
account relevant matters identified in the licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy®.

2 Licensees must review (and update as necessary) their local risk assessments:

a to take account of significant changes in local circumstances, including those identified
in a licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy;

b  when there are significant changes at a licensee’s premises that may affect their
mitigation of local risks;

¢ when applying for a variation of a premises licence; and

d in any case, undertake a local risk assessment when applying for a new premises
licence.

This is the statement of licensing policy under the Gambling Act 2005.

Ordinary code provision 10.1.2

Sharing local risk assessments

All non-remote casino, adult gaming centre, bingo, family entertainment centre, betting
and remote betting intermediary (trading room only) licences, except non-remote general
betting (limited) and betting intermediary licences

1 Licensees should share their risk assessment with licensing authorities when applying for a
premises licence or applying for a variation to existing licensed premises, or otherwise on
request.

making gambling fairer and safer

www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to arcades 33 of 33



http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/

Page 149

App 4 Part 21 from the Gambling Commission Guidance

Adult Gaming centre — Sector guidance
1 - Introduction

21.1 Persons operating an adult gaming centre (AGC) must hold a gaming machines general
operating licence (adult gaming centre) from the Commission and a premises licence from the
relevant licensing authority. They are able to make category B, C and D gaming machines
available.

2 - Protection of children and young persons

21.2 No-one under the age of 18 is permitted to enter an AGC. The Act sets outs offences at
s.46 ands.47 of inviting, causing or permitting a child or young person to gamble, or to enter
certain gambling premises. In addition, Social Responsibility (SR) code 3.2.3(3) in the
Licence conditions and codes of practice (LCCP) states that ‘licensees must ensure that
their policies and procedures take account of the structure and layout of their gambling
premises in order to prevent underage gambling'.

21.3 Licensing authorities will wish to have particular regard to the location of and entry to
AGCs to minimise the opportunities for under-18s to gain access. This may be of particular
importance in areas where young people may be unsupervised for example, where an AGC is in
a complex, such as a shopping centre or airport. Licensing authorities should consider whether
their statement of policy can be used to reflect such locally based considerations.

3 - Self-exclusion

21.4 Social Responsibility Code Provision 3.5.6 requires that all non-remote casino and bingo
and betting licences (except those at a track) and holders of gaming machine general operating
licences for adult gaming centres must offer self-exclusion schemes to customers requesting
such a facility. There is also an Ordinary Code provision at 3.5.7. The full details can be found
within the LCCPZ,

4 - Gaming machines

21.5 Gaming machine provisions by premises are set out at Appendix A. S.172(1) of the Act, as
amended, provides that the holder of an AGC premises licence may make available for use a
number of category B gaming machines not exceeding 20% of the total number of gaming
machines which are available for use on the premises and any number of category C or D
machines. For example, a premises with a total of 25 gaming machines available for use can
make five or fewer category B3 gaming machines available on those premises.

21.6 Premises subject to a licence granted before 13 July 2011 are entitled to make available
four category B3/B4 gaming machines, or 20% of the total number of gaming machines,
whichever is the greater. AGC premises licences granted on or after 13 July 2011 are entitled to
20% of the total number of gaming machines only. Regulations specify that the category B
machines should be restricted to sub-category B3 and B4 machines, but not B3A machines (S1

Haringey


https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/licences-and-fees/adult-gaming-centre
https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp/condition/3-2-3-agc-sr-code
https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp/online
https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp/condition/3-5-6-multi-operator-non-remote-sr-code
https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/licensees-and-businesses/lccp/condition/3-5-7-multi-operator-non-remote-ordinary-code
https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/part-21-self-exclusion#ref-18
https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/part-21-self-exclusion#ref-18

Page 150

2158 The Categories of Gaming Machine Regulations 2007 (opens in new tab)). Licensing
authorities should ensure that gambling machines are made available for use in a manner
consistent with our guidance within Part 16. For the purpose of calculating the category B
machine entitlement in gambling premises, gaming machines should only be counted if they
can be played simultaneously by different players without physical hindrance. This includes
tablets.

21.7 Where the operator of an existing AGC premises licence applies to vary the licence and
acquire additional AGC premises licences - so that the area that was the subject of a single
licence will become divided between a number of separate licensed premises - each separate
licensed premises must only contain the permitted machine entitlement. For example, where
two separate AGC premises have been created adjacent to each other by splitting a pre-existing
premises, it is not permissible to locate eight category B3 gaming machines in one of the
resulting premises and none in the other, as the gaming machine entitlement for that premises
would be exceeded. Part 7 explains in greater detail what constitutes premises.

5 - AGC premises licence conditions

21.8 Part 9 of this guidance discusses the mandatory and default conditions that attach to
premises licences. Currently there are no default conditions specific to AGCs.

Mandatory conditions

21.9 A notice must be displayed at all entrances to AGCs stating that no person under the age
of 18 years will be admitted to the premises.

21.10 There can be no direct access between an AGC and any other premises licensed under
the Act or premises with a family entertainment centre (FEC), club gaming, club machine or
alcohol licensed premises gaming machine permit. (England and Wales only). There is no
definition of “direct access’ in the Act or regulations, although licensing authorities may
consider that there should be an area separating the premises concerned, such as a street or cafe,
which the public go to for purposes other than gambling, for there to be no direct access.

21.11 Any ATM made available for use on the premises shall be located in a place that requires
any customer who wishes to use it to cease gambling at any gaming machine in order to do so.

21.12 The consumption of alcohol in AGCs is prohibited at any time during which facilities for
gambling are being provided on the premises. Additionally in Scotland the sale of alcohol on
the premises is specifically prohibited. A notice stating this should be displayed in a prominent
place at every entrance to the premises.

Haringey


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/2158/contents/made
https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-16-gaming-machines
https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-7-premises-licences
https://beta.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/guidance/guidance-to-licensing-authorities/gla-part-9-premises-licence-conditions

Page 151

Appendix 5 — Statement of Gambling Policy
and the Local Area Profile



Page 152

HARINGEY STATEMENT
OF GAMBLING POLICY
2019-2022

Haringey



Page 153

Contents

Part A Statement Of GamMBIING POICY.....cciiuiiiiiiiee et et e e e e e e ae e e e e tr e e e e etbaeeesnteeessnnraeeean 5
O [ { o Yo [V Tt T o IO OO PRSP PPTOPPRPRRPR 5
B Oo ] o [0 ] | - | 4T o DO U SO URTPPPOTOVSRPRRROt 6
R 0 o =Tt 41V USRS 7
N D LT E T o DT PO PO P PP TPUTPUPPPPRPPON 8
L Y 0T a1y o] [ AN U Vo T = RPN 8
T [0} (=T T =T [ o T 4 =T RPN 9
7. EXChange of INfOrmMation. ... e e e e e e a e e e s are e e e s nraeas 10
8. Gambling Prevalence and Problem GambliNg ......c...eiiiiiiiiiiiiieiciiee et e s rae e aae s 10
1 C =100 o] [T F= T T s - T g ==Y 2SR SRS 11

Part B Promotion of the liceNSiNg ODJECHIVES. ........ueii et e e et e e e e aae e e e ennees 11
10. Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or disorder
(ol oY1 oYU =To IR o I YU o] oY ff o] o V=TT 12
11. Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and 0PEN WaY .....c.uuviiiiiiiiiiie e 12
12. Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling.......... 13
13 Protection of VUINErable PEOPIE ......coeeeeiieeee ettt et e e e ta e e e s e ta e e e e e bae e e eenraaeaanns 13

Part C Types of GambliNg Premises lICENCES. ...ccccuviii ittt e e st e e bre e e e e bte e e e sabee e e e e abteeeeeasteeeeeanens 14
15 Definition Of “PrEmMISES” ... ...oveii et e e et e e e e e bt e e e esabe e e e seateeeesantaeeesantaeeesanraeeeeanteeeeanns 15
16. Licence Conditions Code Of PractiCe (LCCP).....ccccueeicuieeiieecieeeciteesteeeteeesiteesteeeseaeesateessreesaseestaeesnsessaseeennns 16
17 Local Area Profile and Risk ASSESSMENTS.........eiiiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt e sare e sbe e ssneeesabeesaees 17
18. Duplication with other regulatory rEIMES.....ccciiii i e st e e s sare e e e senaaeeesans 20
NS B 60T Ve [ o T3 S OO TP P RSO STUUTOPPTRPRRRPPRRPIR 20
DO R B To Yo Y g U o T=T Y/ 1Y [0 o PP PPPPPPPRRE 21
D O o [ == T g1 Y=ol =Y oY <L PSP 21
22. Licensed family entertainment CENTIES (FECS)......uiii ittt ettt e et e e e v e e eeare e e e areeeeenraeaeas 22
P T - 1] oo L PSP UTSFPTRRN 23
D = 11 0= T o] =] 0 01 7 =N 23
25, BOITING PrOMISES ettt naaaaan 24
B ST I - 1ol SO TP PP S O PTOPPTOTRRRPRRRN 24
D T N e VL] | T = - 11 PSPPSR 25
29.  ProvisioNal STAaTEMENTS . ....oiiiiiiie ettt e st s b e s be e e s b e s beeennreesreeenareenn 25

Part D - Permits, notices and lottery registrations. ... i e e e s 26
30. Unlicensed family entertainment centre gaming machine permits (UFECS)........ccccveeeiiiieieecciieeecciiee e, 26
31 Gaming machine permits in premises licensed for the sale of alcohol...........cccooveiiiiiciiiiicce e, 27
R o 7 2= =10 01 T o T=T o VLSRR 28
33. Club gaming and club Maching PEIMILS......cii ittt e s s e e s ssre e e e s nraees 29



Page 154

34, TEMPOTAIY USE NOTICES. ..t ssaanas 30
35. Occasional USE NOTICES (FOr trACKS)...uuueiiiiiiiiciiiiiiee ettt e eeeerrr e e e e e e e tbrareeeeeeeeenassraeeeeeesennns 31
36. Small society I0ttery registrations .........ccueei i re e e e e e e et ae e e e b ae e e eabeee e s nraeas 31
2= T =TSP SEP R UTURP 32
37 ENTOICEMENT ittt ettt e st e e bt e e s bt e s ab e e sabe e s beeesabe e e beeesnseesabeeesabeeeabeeenneesareeenareenn 32
38. Legislation, Policies and STrat@IeS ......iucuiiiiiiiiiie ittt e s e e s s e e s s abee e s s abee e e snreeas 33
L I DT To £ oY o T LY =1 T V- SRR 35
O REVIBWS ittt ettt ettt s s e e s bt e e s b e e s bt e s bt e s a et s a e e e s b e e e s b e e e e b e e e s sanr s 36
N I D T\ T 31 VYo o Il =Xo TU T ] 1 A PSR SP 37
2y TN 0 T Yo T 2= oY PSR SP 38
(D] T o T1 oY a YT T TS U TS OUPUPRPRTON 41



Page 155

Foreword — Clir Amin (Cabinet Member)

Haringey is the Future of London, an exciting, vibrant borough with a wide range of leisure and
cultural opportunities. This includes gambling, a legal entertainment activity that brings
enjoyment to many Haringey residents. The Council’s policy is that residents should have the
opportunity to enjoy gambling in safe, controlled way, free from harm. This is only possible if
the specific risks associated with gambling in Haringey are understood by all, if the Council
takes a strong approach to licensing, and if gambling operators show genuine responsibility in
the steps they take to respond to risks.

This Gambling Policy lays out the risks associated with gambling that we face in Haringey, and
what the Council expects of gambling operators in terms of their response to those risks. The
risks we are concerned about include those covered by the licensing objectives of the Gambling
Act 2005 - crime and disorder, and the harm/exploitation of children and other vulnerable
persons. There are also Haringey-specific risks - we are particularly concerned about the
clustering of betting shops in Haringey’s most deprived communities, where there is also a
higher incidence of crime, mental health conditions and demand for debt advice. Haringey is
particularly concerned about the health impacts of problem gambling. In particular there are
significantly higher risks associated with category B Fixed Odds Betting Terminals (FOBTS) in
gambling addictions and the associated harm to health and wellbeing.

We welcome the requirement of the Gambling Commission’s Licence Conditions and Codes of
Practice, for licensees to assess and respond to the local risks to the licensing objectives posed
by the provision of gambling facilities at their premises. We will ensure that the local risks
assessments produced by gambling operators are meaningful and reflective of the real risks in
Haringey. This policy lays out the evidence for what those local risks are, identifies the particular
borough wards in which risks are most manifest, and crucially, clearly defines what sorts of
policies, procedures or control measures we expect gambling operators to put in place to
mitigate the risks.

Considering local risks is only part of the overall approach needed to control gambling we are
still reliant on gambling operators demonstrating genuine social responsibility and responding
to the spirit, not just the letter, of their responsibilities around local risk assessments. We work
with operators to strive to meet expectations in full and put in place policies, procedures and
control measures that make a genuine difference in reducing the risk of gambling related harms.
In particular, we call on operators to respond to our concerns about FOBTSs, through policies
that promote verified accounts and enable problem gambling to be identified early in a way that
triggers effective interventions.

For these reasons, this Authority has set out to establish a gambling licensing policy which
recognises good industry practice and intends to support responsible operators but sets out to
offer adequate protections to our local community.

The clarity of our expectations and our commitment to constructive partnership working with
operators, means there is no excuse for inadequate risk assessments or policy proposals from
operators. We will continue to monitor the impact of gambling on our communities in detail and
listen to the views of our residents, public sector partners and voluntary sector. Whilst self-
regulation is important if operators consistently fail to respond to Haringey’s specific risks and
exercise social responsibility and governance, we will not hesitate to lead the call for greater
licensing powers to be granted to Local Authorities.

Integral to this has been the analysis of gambling related harm which informs this policy. The
analysis explored local area based vulnerability to gambling related harm and, as such,

3



Page 156

provided both context to this policy and a ‘local area profile’. This enables consideration to be
given to local issues that must be addressed by local operators and to the extent to which any
further development of a gambling offer within the borough may be appropriate.



Page 157

Part A Statement of Gambling Policy

1. Introduction
The London Borough of Haringey ( the Council )became a “Licensing Authority” under
the Gambling Act 2005 (the Act), which came into force in 2007 and established a new
regime for the regulation of commercial gambling whilst repealing a number of pieces of
older law.

1.1.The policy opens with a more general introduction to Haringey (Section A), followed by
detail on the objectives this Authority will rely on in fulfilling its licensing responsibilities
(section B). Section C of this policy sets out the principles and considerations this
Authority will go through in determining gambling premises licences. All new and
current operators must have regard to this section when compiling local risk
assessments and should make this section their starting point when absorbing the
content of this policy alongside the Local Area Profile supplementary guidance. The
steps that this and other responsible authorities would wish to see given appropriate
consideration within risk assessments and operating schedules. It is intended to reflect
and enhance industry good practice. This section is also intended to make clear
certain aspects of the applications process for the benefit of all. This includes
information on consultation, responsible authorities, interested parties and relevant
objections. Sections D (permits etc) sets out in some detail the various permits,
Section E deals with enforcement matters, establishing how this Authority and partner
service and external agencies intend to work collaboratively together, in a fair,
transparent, open and consistent manner, to provide intelligent directed regulation.

1.2.The Act requires the Council, along with all other licensing authorities, to publish a
statement of Gambling Policy that will be applied when carrying out its licensing
functions. This statement of Licensing Policy (the statement) fulfils that statutory
requirement and details the Council’s general approach to the making of decisions
under the Act. Where updates are required due to changes in national legislation,
statutory guidance or contact details the council reserves the right to amend this policy
without consultation where it is necessary to ensure policy reflects national legislation
or statutory guidance.

1.3.The main function of the Council as a Licensing Authority, through its licensing
committee, will be to licence premises where gambling is to take place and issue a
range of licences, permits and authorisations for gambling in its area. The Licensing
Authority will also have power to impose conditions and review licences.

1.4.The Council will be empowered by the Act to take enforcement action when an offence
under the legislation has been committed. Offences include when premises or
activities are unlicensed, or licence conditions are not complied with; to support this
enforcement there are powers of entry and inspection.

1.5.This policy refers to the Gambling Commission, which has wider functions under the
Act and with whom the Council will work alongside as a dual regulator. However, it
does not discuss the role and responsibilities of the Commission and any references in
this policy will only be insofar as it impacts on, or clarifies, this Authority’s functions.
For example, the Commission is exclusively responsible for issuing operator and
personal licences, which is a necessity before the Council can consider an application
for a premises licence.



Page 158

1.1 The Gambling Commission is also mentioned in this policy as being responsible for issuing

Codes of Practice and Guidance to licensing authorities regarding the manner in which
they are to exercise their functions. This policy endorses the principles set out in the
Gambling Commission Guidance and key licensing objectives and confirms that the
Council will take account of all such guidance. This statement must be published at least
every three years. The statement must also be reviewed from “time to time” and any
amended parts re-consulted upon. The policy must then be re-published.

2. Consultation

2.1,

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

Haringey Council consulted widely upon this Policy statement before finalising and
publishing. A list of those persons consulted is provided below, in line with the Act and the
Gambling Commission’s Guidance.
e The Chief Officer of Police;
e The Fire Authority
e One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the
interests of persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s
area;
e One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the
interests of persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the
authority’s functions under the Gambling Act 2005.
e Services within the Council with an interest in the gambling process
(Responsible Authorities)
Local Safeguarding Children Board
Councillors
H.M Revenue and Customs
Other organisations that appear to be affected by licensing matters
covered in the Policy.
e Neighbouring boroughs.
e Local residents association

Our consultation took place between 19" November 2018 and 28" January 2019 and we
followed the HM Government Code of Practice on Consultation (published July 2012).

The full list of comments made and the consideration by the Council of those comments
is available/will be available by request to: Licensing@haringey.gov.uk / via the Council’s
website at: www.haringey.gov.uk/licensing

The policy was approved at a meeting of the Full Council on (TBC) and was published via
our website on. Copies were placed in the public libraries of the area as well as being
available in the Civic Centre.

Should you have any comments as regards this policy statement please send them via e-
mail or letter to the following contact:

Licensing Team

Level 1 River Park House
225 High Road, Wood Green
London

N22 8GH
licensing@haringey.gov.uk



http://www.haringey.gov.uk/licensing
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/licensing
mailto:licensing@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@haringey.gov.uk

Page 159

2.5. It should be noted that this statement of licensing policy will not override the right of any
person to make an application, make representations about an application, or apply for a
review of a licence, as each will be considered on its own merits and according to the
statutory requirements of the Gambling Act 2005. The council acknowledges that it may
need to depart from this policy and from the guidance issued under the Act in individual
and exceptional circumstances, and where the case merits such a decision in the interest
of the promotion of the licensing objectives. Any such decision will be taken in consultation
with the appropriate legal advisors for the Licensing Authority, and the reasons for any
such departure will be fully recorded.

3. Objectives
In exercising most of its functions under the Gambling Act 2005 the Council as the
Licensing Authority must have regard to the following licensing objectives:

Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or used to support crime;

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way

Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling.

3.1.It should be noted that the Gambling Commission has stated: “The requirement in
relation to children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or exploited by
gambling”.

3.2.The Council is aware that, as per Section 153, in making decisions about premises
licences and temporary use notices it should aim to permit the use of premises for
gambling insofar as it thinks it is:

In accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling
Commission;

In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling
Commission;

Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives;

In accordance with the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy. In particular,
the Council requires operators to take account of the local area profile of the
borough contained within this policy.

The Council is required under the Act to:

Be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling activities are to take
place by issuing Premises Licences;
Issue Provisional Statements;
Regulate members’ clubs who wish to undertake certain gaming activities via
issuing Club Gaming Permits and/or Club Machine Permits; Issue Club Machine
Permits to Commercial Clubs;
Grant permits for the use of certain lower stake gaming machines at unlicensed
family entertainment centres;
Receive notification from alcohol licensed premises (under the Licensing Act
2003) of the use of two or fewer gaming machines;
Issue Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for premises licensed to
sell/supply alcohol for consumption on the licensed premises, under the
Licensing Act 2003, where there are more than two machines;
Register small society lotteries below prescribed thresholds;
Issue Prize Gaming Permits; Receive and endorse Temporary Use Notices;

7



Page 160

e Receive Occasional Use Notices;

e Provide information to the Gambling Commission regarding details of licences
issued (see section below on information exchange);

e Maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued under these
functions.

3.3.1t should be noted that local licensing authorities are not involved in licensing remote

gambling at all, which is regulated by the Gambling Commission via Operator Licences.

3.4.The Council recognises that the licensing function is only one means of promoting

delivery of the three objectives and should not therefore be seen as a means for solving
all problems within the community. The Council will therefore work in partnership with
neighbouring authorities, Metropolitan Police Service, the Community Safety Partnership,
local businesses, local people and those involved in child protection to promote the
licensing objectives as outlined. In addition, the Council recognises its duty under
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, with regard to the prevention of crime
and disorder.

3.5.The scheme of delegation is set out at Appendix 1.

4. Declaration

4.1

This statement of licensing policy will not override the right of any person to make an
application, make representations about an application, or apply for a review of a licence,
as each will be considered on its own merits and according to the statutory requirements
of the Gambling Act 2005.

.In producing this document, the council declares that it has had regard to the licensing

objectives of the Gambling Act 2005, the guidance issued by the Gambling Commission,
and any responses from those consulted on the policy statement.

5. Responsible Authorities

The Act empowers certain agencies to act as responsible authorities so that they can
employ their particular area of expertise to help promote the licensing objectives.
Responsible authorities are able to make representations about licence applications, or
apply for a review of an existing licence. Responsible authorities will also offer advice
and guidance to applicants.

5.1.The council is required by regulations to state the principles it will apply to designate,

in writing, a body which is competent to advise the authority about the protection of

children from harm. The principles are:

e The need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of the
licensing authority’s area and the need for the body to be answerable to
democratically elected persons, rather than any particular vested interest group etc.

e Answerable to democratically elected Councillors and not to any particular interest

group.

5.2.In accordance with the regulations the Council designates the Director of Children

Services for this purpose.



Page 161

5.3. The following are Responsible Authorities:
e The Gambling Commission
e Her Majesty's Commissioners of Customs and Excise (how known as Her Majesty's
Revenue & Customs)
The Metropolitan Police Service
The London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority
The Council, as Licensing Authority
The Council, as Planning Authority
The Council's Director of Children's Services
The Council's Environmental Health Service
The Council’s Public Health Service
Any other person or body who may be prescribed by regulations made by the
Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport ('the Secretary of State')

5.4.Contact details of all the Responsible Authorities under the Gambling Act 2005 are
available on the Council’s web site. Contact details of all the responsible authorities
under the Gambling Act 2005 are available on the council’s website within the
guidance documents at Appendix 5.

. Interested parties
Interested parties are certain types of people or organisations that have the right to make
representations about licence applications, or apply for a review of an existing licence.
These parties are defined in the Gambling Act 2005 as follows:

“For the purposes of this Part a person is an interested party in relation to an application
for or in respect of a premises licence if, in the opinion of the licensing authority which
issues the licence or to which the applications is made, the person-

lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised
activities,

has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities, or

represents persons who satisfy paragraph (a) or (b)”

6.1.The Council is required by regulations to state the principles it will apply to determine
whether a person is an interested party. The principles are:

e Each case will be decided upon its merits. The council will not apply a rigid rule to
its decision making. It will consider the examples of considerations provided in the
Gambling Commission’s Guidance to local authorities.

e Within this framework the Council will accept representations made on behalf of
residents and tenants associations.

¢ |In order to determine if an interested party lives or has business interests,
sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the gambling
activities, the council will consider factors such as the size of the premises and the
nature of the activities taking place.

6.2. The following are not valid reasons to reject applications for premises licences:
a) Moral objections to gambling
b) The 'saturation' of gambling premises unless there is evidence that the
premises poses a risk to the licensing objectives in that locality

9



Page 162

c) A lack of 'demand'
d) Whether the proposal is likely to receive planning or building regulations
consent

6.3.The council will provide more detailed information on the making of representations in a
separate guidance note. The guidance note has been prepared in accordance with
relevant Statutory Instruments and Gambling Commission guidance.

7. Exchange of information
Licensing authorities are required to include in their policy statement the principles to be

applied by the authority with regards to the exchange of information between it and the
Gambling Commission, as well as other persons listed in Schedule 6 to the Act.

7.1.The principle that the council applies is that it will act in accordance with the provisions
of the Gambling Act 2005 in its exchange of information which includes the provision that
the Data Protection Act 2018 will not be contravened. The council will also have regard
to any guidance issued by the Gambling Commission to local authorities on this matter,
as well as any relevant regulations issued by the Secretary of State under the powers
provided in the Gambling Act 2005.

8. Gambling Prevalence and Problem Gambling
In 2015 the Gambling Commission commissioned research by NatCen to study gambling
behaviour in the UK. The research aim was to:
e Describe the prevalence of gambling participation, at-risk gambling and
problem gambling and;
e Explore characteristics associated with gambling participation, at-risk
gambling, and problem gambling.

8.1.1t found that 63% of adults (16+) in Great Britain had gambled in the previous year, with
men (66%) being more likely than women (59%) to do so. Previous year gambling
participation varied by age with participation rates being highest among the middle age
groups and lowest among the very young or very old. This pattern was the same for men
and women. Rates of previous year gambling are heavily influenced by the popularity of
the National Lottery. Overall, 45% of British adults had gambled on other activities in the
past year. When National Lottery only gamblers are excluded, gambling participation was
highest among younger adults. Among both men and women the most popular forms of
gambling were: purchase of tickets for the National lottery (46%); purchase of scratch
cards (23%), and participation in other lotteries (15%).

8.2.At-risk gambling was measured using the Problem Gambling Severity Index (PGSI). This
identifies people who have experienced some difficulty with their gambling behaviour but
who are not classified as problem gamblers. Two groups are identified: gamblers at ‘low
risk of harm’ (a PGSI score of 1-2) and gamblers at ‘moderate risk’ of harm (a PGSI score
of 3-7). Overall, 2.8% of adults were low risk gamblers (a PGSI score of 1-2) and a further
1.1% were moderate risk gamblers (a PGSI score of 3-7), meaning that overall 3.9% of
adults had a PGSI score which categorised them as ‘at-risk’ gamblers. Rates of low risk
and moderate risk gambling were higher among men than women and were higher
among younger age groups.

8.3.The highest rates of problem gambling were among those who had participated in
spread betting (20.1%), betting via a betting exchange (16.2%), playing poker in pubs or

10



Page 163

clubs (15.9%), betting offline on events other than sports or horse or dog racing (15.5%)
and playing machines in bookmakers (11.5%).

8.4.Problem gambling was more prevalent among people who had participated in a number
of gambling activities in the past year (prevalence was 11.9% for those who participated
in seven or more activities compared to 0.3% of those who had taken part in just one
gambling activity in the last year).

8.5.The GamCare annual review (2016-2017)2 reported the following:
e 43,367 calls/webchats were answered by Help Line in 16/17 compared to
34,198 the year before — a 23% in calls.
e An even split of calls made in relation to online and offline gambling.
e 77% of calls were made by the gambler, 20% were made by an affected
other.
e The greatest impact of problem gambling reported is anxiety/stress, financial
difficulties and family/relationship difficulties.
e 2 million unique visitors to the website, which was double to last year.
e 1,200 more clients treated this year compared to last year.
9. Gambling in Haringey
In Haringey we currently have 64 Betting shops, 5 AGCs, 1 Bingo premises and 2 track
betting premises.

9.1 In April 2011 a Haringey scrutiny report noted that betting shops were located
disproportionately within the east of the borough (85%), and that here was a correlation
between the location of betting shops and social deprivation with 43% of betting shops are
located in the most deprived super output areas (10%) of the borough.

9.2 Although gambling is a legal entertainment activity it can, in some locations have a
negative impact on individuals and the wider community. The Council has worked to
understand how gambling can affect its residents and visitors. The Council has also sought
to identify individuals who live in the local area who are potentially vulnerable to gambling
related harm. Haringey has considered the evidence gathered on the health/social impacts
of gambling through our partners such as Public Health and Citizens advice Centres to
bring together the local area profile. We expect license applicants/holders to take account
of that information to mitigate those impacts effectively through their risk assessments and
thereby have meaningful dialogue with the Council, Police and other partners in addressing
the concerns identified.

Part B Promotion of the licensing objectives

11



Page 164

10. Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with
crime or disorder or being used to support crime

10.1.  This licensing authority is aware that the Gambling Commission will be taking a leading
role in preventing gambling from being a source of crime, and that regulatory issues arising
from the prevention of disorder are likely to focus almost exclusively on premises licensing,
which is the remit of the Licensing Authority. The Gambling Commission's guidance does
however envisage that licensing authorities should pay attention to the proposed location of
gambling premises in terms of this licensing objective. Where an area is known to have high
levels of crime this authority will consider carefully whether gambling premises are suitable to
be located there, taking into account such factors as,

e levels of recorded crime,
e the type of that crime,
e levels of ASB related complaints.

10.2. Applicants are advised to examine crime and ASB statistics that relate to the vicinity of
their application. This will allow for the application to be tailored to the specific locality and
to include any additional measures potentially required to support the objective to be set
out in the application. This may also reduce the likelihood of objections being made to the
application. Advice about accessing such data can be provided by the Licensing
Authority.

10.3. This Licensing Authority accepts that issues of nuisance cannot be addressed via the
Gambling Act provisions, although preventing gambling from being a source of disorder is
a licensing objective. The Licensing Authority is also mindful that what starts as nuisance
may subsequently escalate to disorder, and that such disorder can have a serious effect
on the lives of local residents. If an application for licence review were to be made on the
basis of disorder the authority will then distinguish between disorder and nuisance,
considering factors such as:

whether police assistance was required;

how threatening the behaviour was to those who could see it;
how frequently it is reported;

prevalence of persons loitering outside;

the times of day when disorder is reported;

the impact on residents.

10.4.1ssues of nuisance cannot be addressed by the Gambling Act provisions however
problems of this nature can be addressed through other legislation as appropriate.

11.Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way

11.1.The council is aware that except in the case of tracks (see section 21) generally the
Gambling Commission does not expect licensing authorities to become concerned with
ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way as this will be addressed via
operating and personal licences.

11.2. However the council will familiarise itself with operator licence conditions and will
communicate any concerns to the Gambling Commission about misleading advertising or
any absence of required game rules or other matters as set out in the Gambling
Commission’s Licence Conditions and Code of Practice.

12



Page 165

11.3. Examples of the specific steps the council may take to address this area can be found in
the various sections covering specific premises types in Part C of this document and
also in Part D which covers permits and notices.

12.Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by
gambling

12.1 Protection of children
This licensing objective means preventing children from taking part in most types of
gambling. The council will therefore consider whether specific measures are required at
particular premises, with regard to this licensing objective. Appropriate measures may
include supervision of entrances / machines, segregation of areas etc.

12.2 In premises that may attract children this Authority expects licence holders to train staff
to recognise child sexual exploitation, and for staff to be able to demonstrate an
understanding of the steps they should take if their suspicions are aroused.

12.3 The Act provides the following definition for child and young adult in Section 45:
Meaning of “child” and “young person”
(1) In this Act “child” means an individual who is less than 16 years old.
(2) In this Act “young person” means an individual who is not a child but who is less
than 18 years old.

For the purpose of this section protection of children will encompass both child and
young person as defined by the Act.

12.4 The council will pay particular attention to any codes of practice which the Gambling
Commission issues as regards this licensing objective in relation to specific premises.

12.5 Examples of the specific steps the council may take to address this area can be found in
the various sections covering specific premises types in Part C of this document and also
in Part D which covers permits and notices.

13 Protection of vulnerable people
The council is aware of the difficulty in defining the term “vulnerable person”.

13.1 The Gambling Commission, in its Guidance to Local Authorities, does not seek to offer a
definition for the term “vulnerable people” but will, for regulatory purposes assume that
this group includes people:

“who gamble more than they want to, people who gamble beyond their means, elderly
persons, and people who may not be able to make informed or balanced decisions
about gambling due to a mental impairment, or because of the influence of alcohol or
drugs.”

13.2 The Department of Health document “No Secrets” offers a definition of a vulnerable
adult as a person:
“who is or may be in need of community care services by reason of mental or other
disability, age or illness; and who is or may be unable to take care of him or herself, or
unable to protect him or herself against significant harm or exploitation.”

13.3 In the case of premises licences the council is aware of the extensive requirements set
out for operators in the Gambling Commissions Code of Practice. In this document the

13



Page 166

Gambling Commission clearly describe the policies and procedures that operators
should put in place regarding:

e Combating problem gambling;

e Access to gambling by children and young persons;

e Information on how to gambling responsibly and help for problem
gamblers;

e Customer interaction;

e Self-exclusion;

e Employment of children and young persons.

13.4 All applicants should familiarise themselves with the operator licence conditions and
codes of practice relating to this objective and determine if these policies and
procedures are appropriate in their circumstances. The council will communicate any
concerns to the Gambling Commission about any absence of this required information.

13.5 Applicants should consider the following proposed measures for protecting and
supporting vulnerable persons, for example:

leaflets offering assistance to problem gamblers should be available on
gambling premises in a location that is both prominent and discreet, such as
toilets;

training for staff members which focuses on building an employee’s ability to
maintain a sense of awareness of how much (e.g. how long) customers are
gambling, as part of measures to detect persons who may be vulnerable;
trained personnel for the purpose of identifying and providing support to
vulnerable persons;

self-exclusion schemes;

operators should demonstrate their understanding of best practice issued by
organisations that represent the interests of vulnerable people;

posters with GamCare Helpline and website in prominent locations;
windows, entrances and advertisements to be positioned or designed not to
entice passers-by.

13.6 It should be noted that some of these measures form part of the mandatory conditions
placed on premises licences.

13.7 The council may consider any of the above or similar measures as licence conditions
should these not be adequately addressed by any mandatory conditions, default
conditions or proposed conditions by the applicant.

Part C Types of Gambling Premises licences

14. Premises licences are subject to the requirements set-out in the Gambling Act 2005 and
regulations, as well as specific mandatory and default conditions which are detailed in
regulations issued by the Secretary of State. Licensing authorities are able to exclude
default conditions and also attach others, where it is believed to be appropriate.

14.1 The Council is aware that in making decisions about premises licences it should aim to
permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it: is :

14



Page 167

e in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling
Commission;

e in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission;

e reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and

e in accordance with the authority's statement of licensing policy.

14.2 It is appreciated that as per the Gambling Commission's Guidance for local authorities
"moral objections to gambling are not a valid reason to reject applications for premises
licences" (except as regards any 'no casino resolution') and also that unmet demand is
not a criterion for a licensing authority.

14.3 The council will issue premises licences to allow those premises to be used for certain
types of gambling. For example premises licences will be issued to amusement arcades,
bingo halls, bookmakers and casinos.

14.4 Applicants should also be aware that the Gambling Commission has issued Codes of
Practice for each interest area for which they must have regard. The council will also have
regard to these Codes of Practice.

15 Definition of “premises”
Premises are defined in the Act as “any place”. Different premises licences cannot apply
in respect of a single premises at different times. However, it is possible for a single
building to be subject to more than one premises licence, provided they are for different
parts of the building and the different parts of the building can be reasonably regarded
as being different premises. Whether different parts of a building can properly be
regarded as being separate premises will always be a question of fact in the
circumstances.

15.1 The council will take particular care in considering applications for multiple licences for a
building and those relating to a discrete part of a building used for other (non-gambling)
purposes. In particular the council will assess entrances and exits from parts of a
building covered by one or more licences to satisfy itself that they are separate and
identifiable so that the separation of different premises is not compromised and that
people do not ‘drift’ into a gambling area.

15.2 The council will pay particular attention to applications where access to the licensed
premises is through other premises (which themselves may be licensed or unlicensed).
Issues that the council will consider before granting such applications include whether
children can gain access, compatibility of the two establishments; and the ability to
comply with the requirements of the Act. In addition, an overriding consideration will be
whether, taken as a whole, the co-location of the licensed premises with other facilities
has the effect of creating an arrangement that otherwise would, or should, be prohibited
under the Act.

15.3 The Gambling Commission’s relevant access provisions for each premises type are
reproduced below

Type of Premises Access Provisions
Casinos e the principal entrance to the premises must
be from a ‘street’

15




Page 168

® no entrance to a casino must be from
premises that are used wholly or mainly by
children and/or young persons

® no customer must be able to enter a casino
directly from any other premises which holds
a gambling premises licence.

AGCs ® no customer must be able to access the
premises directly from any other licensed
gambling premises.

Betting shops e access must be from a ‘street’ or from
other premises with a betting premises
licence

¢ no direct access from a betting shop to
another premises used for the retail sale of
merchandise or services. In effect there
cannot be an entrance to a betting shop
from a shop of any kind unless that shop is
itself a licensed betting premises.

Tracks no customer must be able to access the
premises directly from a casino or AGC

Bingo premises ® no customer must be able to access the
premises directly from a casino, an AGC or a
betting premises, other than a track

FECs ® no customer must be able to access the
premises directly from a casino, an AGC or a
betting premises, other than a track.

15.4 An applicant cannot obtain a full premises licence until they have the right to occupy the
premises to which the application relates.

16. Licence Conditions Code of Practice (LCCP) - Application of Social Responsibility
Codes.

16.1 The Gambling Commission has issued ‘Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice
(LCCP) under the Gambling Act 2005 which came into effect on 6" May 2018. These
were a significant update on previous LCCP and are in three parts:

e General Conditions attached to operating licences
e Principal Code of Practice: Social Responsibility provisions and Ordinary provisions
e General Conditions attached to Personal Licences.

16.2 Haringey will expect all applicants to have considered the LCCP and included relevant
parts within their application.

16.3 In particular, all non-remote licensees ‘must assess the local risks to the licensing
objectives posed by the provision of gambling facilities at each of their premises, and
have policies, procedures and control measures to mitigate those risks. In making risk
assessments, licensees must take into account relevant matters identified in the
licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy’ (Social responsibility (SR) code

16



16.4

17

171

17.2

Page 169

10.1.1); and 11.4 Local risk assessments must be reviewed when there are significant
changes in local circumstances (including those identified in a licensing authority’s
statement of licensing policy) or at the premises, or when applying for a new licence or
variation of a licence (SR code 10.1.2).

Haringey may, at its discretion, add conditions from the Gambling Commission LCCPs
to any applicants licence as it sees fit.

Local Area Profile and Risk Assessments

Haringey is an improving progressive borough, however, as can be seen from the
analysis provided under the local area profile, the east of the borough compares poorly
with the west and carry’s high levels of deprivation that potentially puts people in those
areas at risk to gambling related harm. From 6 April 2016, it is a requirement of the
Gambling Commission’s Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice (LCCP), under
section 10 for licensees to assess the local risks to the licensing objectives posed by the
provision of gambling facilities at their premises and have policies, procedures and
control measures to mitigate those risks. In making risk assessments, licensees must
take into account relevant matters identified in this policy.

This position gives rise to serious concerns of the impact of any further increase in the
number of gambling premises in those most vulnerable and ‘at risk’ areas of the
borough. This Authority considers that it is necessary to seek to control the number of
facilities for gambling in areas where its most vulnerable residents may be placed at
increasing risk, and in line with the duty, to aim to permit gambling insofar as it is
reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the licensing objectives. All areas shown
within the local area profile as being at high overall risk of gambling related harm, are
generally considered inappropriate for further gambling establishments, which would
tend to raise the risk of gambling related harm to vulnerable people living in those
areas. Operators are asked to consider very carefully whether seeking to locate new
premises or relocating existing premises within these areas would be consistent with
the licensing objectives. Wherever the facilities are proposed, operators should
consider, having regard to the individual mapping provided, each of the specific
characteristics of their local area. Each premises’ specific risk-assessment should
recognise these and provide appropriate proactive mitigation or control measures.

The council is aware that demand issues (e.g. the likely demand or need for gambling
facilities in an area) cannot be considered with regard to the location of premises but
that considerations in terms of the licensing objectives can. The council will pay
particular attention to the protection of children and vulnerable persons from being
harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as issues of crime and disorder.
With regards to these objectives it is the council’s policy, upon receipt of any relevant
representations to look at specific location issues including:

» the possible impact a gambling premises may have on any premises that
provide services to children or young people, i.e. a school, or vulnerable
adult centres in the area;

» the possible impact a gambling premises may have on residential areas
where there may be a high concentration of families with children;

= the size of the premises and the nature of the activities taking place;
= any levels of organised crime in the area.

17



17.3

17.4

17.5

Page 170

It is a requirement of the code that such risk assessments should be shared with the
Council when applying for a new licence, making a variation or when there is a
significant change in local circumstances (including any update of the Gambling Policy).
Where there are significant changes at a licensee’s premises that may affect the
mitigation of local risk, or otherwise on request from the Authority. The LB Haringey
expects that such risk assessments will automatically be shared for all premises and to
take into account the following:

Any special risks created by geographic location. To include schools, colleges or
establishments frequented by children and young people, residential areas where there
may be a high concentration of children and young persons, and the measures
proposed to reduce any specific risk of children and young people from these premises
accessing gambling facilities at the licensee’s premises and to identify any potential
risks to vulnerable persons. Assessment of risk covers the following:

a. ldentify risk factors

b. Who can be harmed and how

c. Evaluate the risk

d. Record and score findings

e. Monitor and review

Other matters that the assessment may include:

= |ocal area crime statistics;

= whether the premises is in an area of deprivation;

= whether the premises is in an area subject to high levels of crime
and/or disorder;

= the ethnic profile of residents in the area;

= the demographics of the area in relation to vulnerable groups;

= the location of services for children such as schools, playgrounds, toy
shops, leisure centres and other areas where children will gather;

= the training of staff to recognise child sexual exploitation and the steps
to be taken if it is suspected;

= details as to the location and coverage of working CCTV cameras, and
how the system will be monitored;

= the layout of the premises so that staff have an unobstructed view of
persons using the premises;

= the number of staff that will be available on the premises at any one
time. If at any time that number is one, confirm the supervisory and
monitoring arrangements when that person is absent from the licensed
area or distracted from supervising the premises and observing those
persons using the premises;

= arrangements for monitoring and dealing with under age persons and
vulnerable, which may include dedicated and trained personnel,
leaflets, posters, self-exclusion schemes, window displays and
advertisements not to entice passers-by etc;

= the provision of signage and documents relating to games rules,
gambling care providers and other relevant information be provided in
both English and the other prominent first language for that locality;

= where the application is for a betting premises licence, other than in
respect of a track, the location and extent of any part of the premises

18



Page 171

which will be used to provide facilities for gambling in reliance on the
licence;

= the training of staff in brief intervention when customers show signs of
excessive gambling, the ability of staff to offer brief intervention and
how the manning of premises affects this.

17.6 Such information may be used to inform the decision the council makes about whether
to grant the licence, to grant the licence with special conditions or to refuse the
application.

17.7 A good risk assessment accompanying an application will:
e Enable the licensing authority to see that the applicant has considered the
community and the risks within it;

e Provide greater clarity for operators leading to improved premises licence
applications, with the operator already incorporating controls and measures to
mitigate risk in their application;

e Enable the licensing authority to make robust but fair decisions, based on a clear,
published set of factors and risks, which are therefore less susceptible to
challenge;

e Encourage a proactive approach to risk that is likely to result in reduced
compliance and enforcement action.

17.8 In any case the local risk assessment should show how vulnerable people, including
people with gambling dependencies, are protected.

17.9 There is evidence that some groups in the population may be more vulnerable to
gambling related harm. This does not only apply to people on low incomes but also
people who are less able to make reasoned decisions because of poor mental health or
addiction. Children and young people may be particularly susceptible, as their youth
and inexperience may make them more inclined to risk-taking behaviour and less able
to manage the consequences of those decisions.

17.10 To help support applicants and licence holders to better understand their local
environment, an analysis of gambling related harm has been prepared as a ‘local area
profile’. A copy of the document is provided at Appendix 2. By drawing on relevant and
reliable published socio-economic and public health data sets together with local police
data concerning anti-social behaviour, the local area profile uses special analysis
techniques to provide a model of area-based vulnerability to gambling related harm
across the borough. Both current operators and potential new operators to the borough
are asked to consider the detail provided carefully, and should have regard to both the
overall summary map and the individual mapping provided in respect of each relevant
data set.

17.11 This policy does not preclude any application being made and each application will be
decided on its merits, with the onus being upon the applicant to show how the
concerns can be overcome. Assessing local risk should therefore provide a means for
licensees to address local concerns about gambling premises; and for licensing
authorities and gambling licensees to work collaboratively with a view to minimising
risks, within the framework of aiming to permit gambling where reasonably consistent
with licensing objectives.

19



18.

19

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

Page 172

Duplication with other regulatory regimes

The council will seek to avoid any duplication with other statutory/regulatory systems
where possible, including planning. The council will not consider whether a licence
application is likely to be awarded planning permission or building regulations approval,
in its consideration of it. It will though, listen to, and consider carefully, any concerns
about proposed conditions which are not able to be met by the applicant due to
planning restrictions, should such a situation arise, this may include consideration of the
proposed hours of operation. The Council will consider the hours proposed in
accordance to the risk assessment and area profile.

Conditions

The Council is aware that the Secretary of State has set mandatory conditions and
default conditions. The Gambling Commission has set Licence Conditions and Codes of
Practice which are necessary for the general good conduct of gambling premises. The
Council will not seek to impose further individual conditions in relation to matters that
have already been dealt with.

Where there are specific risks or problems associated with a particular locality, or
specific premises, or class of premises, the council will attach individual conditions to
address this.

Any conditions attached to a licence issued by the council will be proportionate and will
be:

» relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling
facility;

= directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for, and/or
related to

= the area where the premises is based;

= fairly and reasonably related to the scale, type and location of premises;

= consistent with the licensing objectives, and

= reasonable in all other respects.

Decisions about individual conditions will be made on a case by case basis, although
there will be a number of control measures the council will consider using, such as
supervision of entrances, supervision of adult gaming machines, appropriate signage for
adult only areas etc. There are specific comments made in this regard under each of the
licence types in this policy. The council will also expect the applicant to offer his/her
own suggestions as to the way in which the licensing objectives can be met effectively.

Where certain measures are not already addressed by the mandatory/default conditions
or by the applicant, the council may consider licence conditions to cover issues such
as:

= proof of age schemes;

= CCTV;

= supervision of entrances;

= supervision of machine areas;

» areduction in the number of betting machines (betting premises);
= the staffing of premises;

= physical separation of areas;

20



Page 173

= |ocation of entrance points;

» notices / signage;

= specific opening hours;

= arequirement that children must be accompanied by an adult;

» enhanced CRB checks of the applicant and/or staff;

= support to persons with gambling addiction;

= policies to address seasonal periods where children may more
frequently attempt to gain access to premises and gamble such
as pre and post school hours, half terms and summer holidays;

= policies to address the problems associated with truant children
who may attempt to gain access to premises and gamble;

= any one or a combination of these measures.

19.5 This list is not mandatory or exhaustive and is merely indicative of examples of certain

measures which may satisfy the requirements of the licensing authority and the
responsible authorities, depending on the nature and location of the premises and the
gambling facilities to be provided.

19.6 There are conditions which the council cannot attach to premises licences which are:

20.

21.

21.1

e any condition on the premises licence which makes it impossible for the
applicant to comply with an operating licence condition;

e conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of
operation;

e conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required
(the Gambling Act 2005 specifically removes the membership requirement
for casino and bingo clubs and this provision prevents it being reinstated)
and

e conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winnings or prizes.

Door supervision

The council will consider whether there is a need for door supervision in terms of the
licensing objectives of protection of children and vulnerable persons from being harmed
or exploited by gambling, and also in terms of preventing premises becoming a source
of crime. It is noted though that the Gambling Act 2005 has amended the Private
Security Industry Act 2001 and that door supervisors at casinos or bingo premises are
not required to be licensed by the Security Industry Authority. Where door supervisors
are provided at these premises the operator should ensure that any persons employed
in this capacity are fit and proper to carry out such duties. Possible ways to achieve this
could be to carry out a criminal records (CRB) check on potential staff and for such
personnel to have attended industry recognised training.

Adult gaming centres

Under the Act a premises holding an adult gaming centre licence will be able to make
category B, C and D gaming machines available and no one under 18 will be permitted
to enter such premises.

The council will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable
persons from harm or being exploited by gambling in these premises. The council will
expect applicants to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure
that under 18 year olds do not have access to the premises.

21



21.2

22.

221

22.2

22.3

22.4

22.5

Page 174

Where certain measures are not already addressed by the mandatory and default
conditions and the Gambling Commission Codes of Practice or by the applicant, the
council may consider licence conditions to address such issues, examples of which are
provided at paragraph 16.16.

Licensed family entertainment centres (FECs)

Licensed family entertainment centres are those premises which usually provide a range
of amusements such as computer games, penny pushers and may have a separate
section set aside for adult only gaming machines with higher stakes and prizes. Licensed
family entertainment centres will be able to make available unlimited category C and D
machines where there is clear segregation in place so children do not access the areas
where the category C machines are located.

Where category C or above machines are available in premises to which children are
admitted then the council will ensure that:

¢ all such machines are located in an area of the premises separate from the
remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to
prevent access other than through a designated entrance. For this
purpose a rope, floor markings or similar provision will not suffice and the
council may insist on a permanent barrier of at least 1 meter high;

e only adults are admitted to the area where the machines (category C) are
located;

e access to the area where the machines are located is supervised at all
times;

e the area where the machines are located is arranged so that it can be
observed by staff; and

e at the entrance to, and inside any such area there are prominently
displayed notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to
persons under 18.

The council will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable
persons from harm or being exploited by gambling in these premises. The council will
expect applicants to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure
that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming machine areas.

The council will expect the applicant to show that there are policies and procedures in
place to protect children from harm. Harm in this context is not limited to harm from
gambling but includes wider child protection considerations.

The efficiency of such policies and procedures will each be considered on their merits,
however, they may include:

e appropriate measures and training for staff as regards suspected truant
children on the premises;

e measures and training covering how staff would deal with unsupervised
very young children being on the premises;

e measures and training covering how staff would deal with children causing
perceived problems on or around the premises;

e the arrangements for supervision of premises either by staff or the use of
CCTV.

22



Page 175

22.6 Any CCTV system installed should both the interior and the entrance working to the
latest Home Office and ACPO standards and to the satisfaction of Metropolitan Police
and the local authority. The system must record images clearly and these recordings be
retained for a minimum of 31 days. If the equipment is inoperative the police and local
authority must be informed as soon as possible and immediate steps taken to make the
system operative. Notices must be displayed at the entrances advising that CCTV is in
operation.

22.7 Due to the nature of these premises, which are attractive to children, applicants who
employ staff to supervise the premises should consult with the Independent
Safeguarding Authority to determine if their staff need to be CRB checked.

22.8 The council will refer to the Commission’s website to familiarise itself with any conditions
that apply to operating licences covering the way in which the area containing the
category C machines should be delineated. The council will also make itself aware of the
mandatory or default conditions and any Gambling Commission Codes of Practice on
these premises licences.

23. Casinos
The London Borough of Haringey has not passed a resolution in relation to casinos, but
it is noted that the Government has not awarded a casino licence to Haringey.

24. Bingo premises
There is no official definition for bingo in the Gambling Act 2005 however from a
licensing point of view there is a category of premises licence specifically for bingo
premises which is used by traditional commercial bingo halls for both cash and prize
bingo. In addition this premises licence will authorise the provision of a limited number
of gaming machines in line with the provisions of the Act.

24.1 The council is aware that it is important that if children are allowed to enter premises
licensed for bingo that they do not participate in gambling, other than on category D
machines. Where category C or above machines are available in premises to which
children are admitted then the council will ensure that:

¢ all such machines are located in an area of the premises separate from the
remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to
prevent access other than through a designated entrance. For this
purpose a rope, floor markings or similar provision will not suffice and the
council may insist on a permanent barrier of at least one meter high;

e only adults are admitted to the area where the machines are located;

e access to the area where the machines are located is supervised at all
times;

e the area where the machines are located is arranged so that it can be
observed by staff;

e at the entrance to, and inside any such area there are prominently
displayed notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to
persons under 18;

e children will not be admitted to bingo premises unless accompanied by an
adult.

24.2 The Gambling Commission has provided Guidance for Licensing Authorities and
23



24.3

25.

25.1

25.2

25.3

26.

271

Page 176

Licence Conditions and Code of Practice which are applied to Operator’s Licences. The
council will take this into consideration when determining licence applications for bingo
premises.

Where certain measures are not already addressed by the mandatory/default
conditions, the Gambling Commission Code of Practice or the applicant, the council
may consider licence conditions to address such issues, examples of which are
provided at paragraph 13.15.

Betting premises

Betting premises are premises such as bookmakers where various types of gambling
are authorised to take place. The Act contains a single class of licence for betting
premises however within this single class there are different types of premises which
require licensing such as high street bookmakers, bookmakers located in self-contained
facilities at race courses as well as the general betting premises licences that track
operators will require.

Betting machines

The council is aware that Section 181 of the Act contains an express power for licensing
authorities to restrict the number of betting machines, their nature and the
circumstances in which they are made available by attaching a licence condition to a
betting premises licence. When considering whether to impose a condition to restrict
number of betting machines in particular premises, the council, amongst other things,
will take into account the size of the premises, the number of counter positions
available for person-to-person transactions, and the ability of staff to monitor the use of
the machines.

Where an applicant for a betting premises licence intends to offer higher stake category
B gaming machines (categories B2-B4) including any Fixed Odds Betting Terminals
(FOBTSs), then applicants should consider the control measures related to the protection
of vulnerable persons, highlighted in section 13.

Where certain measures are not already addressed by the mandatory/default

conditions, Gambling Commission Code of Practice or the applicant, the council may
consider licence conditions to address such issues.

Tracks

Tracks are sites (including racecourses and dog tracks) where races or other sporting
events take place. Betting is a major gambling activity on tracks, both in the form of
pool betting (often known as the “totaliser” or “tote”), and also general betting, often
known as “fixed-odds” betting. Multiple betting outlets are usually located on tracks
such as ‘on-course’ betting operators who come onto the track just on race days to
provide betting for the races taking place on that track. There can also be ‘off-course
betting operators who may operate self-contained facilities at the tracks which offer
customers the chance to bet on other events, not just those taking place on the track.

All tracks will require a primary ‘general betting premises licence’ that the track
operator will hold. It should be noted that track operators do not require an operating
licence from the Gambling Commission although they may apply for one. This is
because the various other gambling operators offering betting at the track will each
hold an operating licence.

24



Page 177

27.2 Tracks may also be subject to one or more premises licences, provided each licence
relates to a specified area of the track. This may be preferable for any self-contained
premises providing off-course betting facilities at the track. The council will however
assess each individual case on its merits before deciding if this is necessary. Where
possible the council will be happy for the track operator to decide if any particular off-
course operators should apply for a separate premises licence.

27.3 If any off-course operators are permitted to provide betting facilities under the
authorisation of the track operator’s premises licence, then it will be the responsibility
of the premises licence holder to ensure the proper conduct of such betting within the
premises boundary.

27.4 Gambling Commission guidance also indicates that it would be possible for other types
of gambling premises to be located at a track under the authorisation of separate
premises licences, e.g. a casino premises licence or adult gaming centre premises
licence. If you require further guidance on this provision please contact the Licensing
Team.

27.5 Children and persons will be permitted to enter track areas where facilities for
betting are provided on days when dog-racing and/or horse racing takes place,
although they are still prevented from entering areas where gaming machines and
betting machines (other than category D machines) are provided.

27.6 The council will consider the impact upon the protection of children licensing objective
and the need to ensure that entrances to each type of betting premises are distinct and
that children are excluded from gambling areas where they are not permitted to enter.

28. Travelling fairs
Travelling fairs have traditionally been able to provide various types of low stake
gambling without the need for a licence or permit provided that certain conditions are
met and this provision continues in similar fashion under the new Act.

28.1 Travelling fairs have the right to provide an unlimited number of category D gaming
machines and/or equal chance prize gaming (without the need for a permit) as long as
the gambling amounts to no more than an ancillary amusement at the fair.

28.2 The council will consider whether any fairs which take up the above entitlement fall
within the statutory definition of a travelling fair.

28.3 The council is aware that the 27 day statutory maximum for the land being used as a fair
is per calendar year and that it applies to the piece of land on which the fairs are held,
regardless of whether it is the same or different travelling fairs occupying the land. The
council will work with its neighbouring authorities to ensure that land which crosses the
council boundary is monitored so that the statutory limits are not exceeded.

29. Provisional statements
A provisional statement application is a process which allows a developer to examine
the likelihood of whether a building which he expects to be constructed, to be altered or
to acquire a right to occupy would be granted a premises licence. A provisional
statement is not a licence and merely gives the holder some form of guarantee that a
premises licence would be granted so the developer can judge whether a development

25



29.1

29.2

Page 178

is worth taking forward in light of the need to obtain a premises licence. An applicant
may also apply for a provisional statement for premises which already hold a premises
licence (either for a different type of gambling or the same type).

In terms of representations about premises licence applications, following the grant of a
provisional statement, no further representations from responsible authorities or
interested parties can be taken into account unless they concern matters which could
not have been addressed at the provisional statement stage, or they reflect a change in
the applicant’s circumstances. In addition, the council may refuse the premises licence
(or grant it on terms different to those attached to the provisional statement) only by
reference to matters:

a) which could not have been raised by objectors at the provisional licence stage; or
b) which in the authority’s opinion reflect a change in the operator’s circumstances.

When determining a provisional statement application the council will operate in
accordance with the Act and will not have regard to any issues related to planning
consent or building regulations, e.g. the likelihood that planning consent will be granted.

Part D - Permits, notices and lottery registrations.

30.

30.1

Unlicensed family entertainment centre gaming machine permits (UFECs)

The term ‘unlicensed family entertainment centre’ is one defined in the Act and refers to a
premises which provides category D gaming machines along with various other
amusements such as computer games and penny pushers. The premises is ‘unlicensed’
in that it does not require a premises licence but does require a permit to be able to
provide category D machines. It should not be confused with a ‘licensed family
entertainment centre’ which requires a premises licence because it contains both
category C and D gaming machines.

The council will expect the applicant to show that there are policies and procedures in
place to protect children from harm. Harm in this context is not limited to harm from
gambling but includes wider child protection considerations.

30.2 The efficiency of such policies and procedures will each be considered on their merits,

however, they may include:

appropriate measures and training for staff as regards suspected truant children on the
premises;

measures and training covering how staff would deal with unsupervised very young
children being on the premises;

26



Page 179

e measures and training covering how staff would deal with children causing perceived
problems on or around the premises;

e the arrangements for supervision of premises either by staff or the use of CCTV.

30.3 Any CCTV system installed should both the interior and the entrance working to the latest
Home Office and ACPO standards and to the satisfaction of The Metropolitan Police and
the local authority. The system must record images clearly and these recordings be
retained for a minimum of 31 days. If the equipment is in-operative the Police and Local
Authority must be informed as soon as possible and immediate steps taken to make the
system operative. Notices must be displayed at the entrances advising that CCTV is in
operation.

30.4 Due to the nature of these premises, which are attractive to children, applicants who
employ staff to supervise the premises should consult with the Independent
Safeguarding Authority to determine if their staff need to be CRB checked.

30.6 The council will also expect, as per the Gambling Commission Guidance, that applicants
demonstrate:

e a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling that is
permissible in unlicensed FECs;

e that the applicant has no relevant conviction (those that are set out in Schedule 7 of the
Act), and

o that staff are trained to have a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes.

30.7 Inline with the Act, while the council cannot attach conditions to this type of permit, the
council can refuse applications if they are not satisfied that the issues raised in the
“Gambling Policy” have been addressed through the application.

30.8 Applicants only need to address the “Gambling Policy” when making their initial
application ns and not at renewal time.

31 Gaming machine permits in premises licensed for the sale of alcohol
There is provision in the Act for premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption on the
premises, to automatically have two gaming machines, of categories C and/or D. The
premises merely need to notify the council. The council can remove the automatic
authorisation in respect of any particular premises if:

e provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the
licensing objectives;

e gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of
Section 282 of the Gambling Act (i.e. that written notice has been provided
to the licensing authority, that a fee has been provided and that any relevant
code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the location and
operation of the machine has been complied with);

e the premises are mainly used for gaming; or
e an offence under the Gambling Act has been committed on the premises.

31.1 If a premises wishes to have more than two machines, then it needs to apply for a permit
and the council must consider that application based upon the licensing objectives, any
guidance issued by the Gambling Commission issued under Section 25 of the Gambling

27



Page 180

Act 2005, and “such matters as they think relevant.” The council considers that “such
matters” will be decided on a case by case basis but generally there will be regard to the
need to protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by
gambling. The council will also expect the applicant to satisfy the authority that there will
be sufficient measures to ensure that children and young people under the age of 18 do
not have access to the adult only gaming machines.

31.2 All alcohol licensed premises with gaming machines must have regard to the need to
protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and
provide sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not use the adult only
gaming machines.

31.3 Measures which may satisfy the council that persons under 18 years will be prevented
from using the machines may include the machines being in close proximity to the bar, or
in any other area where they are capable of being adequately supervised. Notices and
signage may also help. As regards the protection of vulnerable persons, applicants may
wish to consider the provision of information leaflets and or helpline numbers for
organisations such as GamCare.

317.4 The council can decide to grant the permit with a smaller number of machines and/or a
different category of machines than that applied for. Conditions other than these cannot
be attached.

31.5 The holder of a permit must comply with any Code of Practice issued by the Gambling
Commission about the location and operation of the machine(s).

31.6 It is recognised that some alcohol licensed premises may apply for a premises licence
for their non-alcohol licensed areas. Any such application would need to be dealt with
under the relevant provisions of the Act.

31.7 Alcohol licensed premises are able to provide some limited equal chance gaming.
Licensees are referred to the advice provided by the Gambling Commission on the
website.

32. Prize gaming permits
Section 288 defines gaming as prize gaming if the nature and size of the prize is not
determined by the number of people playing or the amount paid for or raised by the
gaming. The prizes will be determined by the operator before play commences. Prize
gaming can often be seen at seaside resorts in amusement arcades where a form of
bingo is offered and the prizes are displayed on the walls.

32.1 A prize gaming permit is a permit issued by the licensing authority to authorise the
provision of facilities for gaming with prizes on specified premises.

32.2 The council will expect the applicant to show that there are policies and procedures in
place to protect children from harm. Harm in this context is not limited to harm from
gambling but includes wider child protection considerations.

32.3 The efficiency of such policies and procedures will each be considered on their merits,
however, they may include:

e appropriate measures and training for staff as regards suspected truant
children on the premises;

28



Page 181

e measures and training covering how staff would deal with unsupervised
very young children being on the premises;

e measures and training covering how staff would deal with children causing
perceived problems on or around the premises.

e the arrangements for supervision of premises either by staff or the use of
CCTV.

32.4 Any CCTV system installed should both the interior and the entrance working to the
Home Office and ACPO standards and to the satisfaction of The Metropolitan Police and
the local authority. The system must record images clearly and these recordings be
retained for a minimum of 31 days. If the equipment is inoperative, the police and local
authority must be informed as soon as possible and immediate steps taken to make the
system operative. Notices must be displayed at the entrances advising that CCTV is in
operation.

32.5 Due to the nature of these premises, which are attractive to children, applicants who
employ staff to supervise the premises should consult with the Independent
Safeguarding Authority to determine if their staff need to be CRB checked.

32.6 The council will also expect, as per the Gambling Commission Guidance, that applicants
demonstrate:

e A full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling that
is permissible;
e That the gaming offered is within the law.

32.7 Inline with the Act, while the council cannot attach conditions to this type of permit, the
council can refuse applications if they are not satisfied that the issues raised in the
“Gambling Policy” have been addressed through the application.

32.8 There are conditions in the Gambling Act 2005 by which the permit holder must comply.
The conditions in the Act are:

e the limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied
with;

e all chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises
on which the gaming is taking place and on one day; the game must be
played and completed on the day the chances are allocated; and the result
of the game must be made public in the premises on the day that it is
played;

e the prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set out
in regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if non-monetary
prize); and

e Participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any
other gambling.

33. Club gaming and club machine permits
Members clubs and miners’ welfare institutes may apply for a ‘club gaming permit’ or a
‘club machine permit’. The ‘club gaming permit’ will enable the premises to provide
gaming machines (three machines of categories B4, C or D), equal chance gaming. i.e.
poker, bingo etc. A * club machine permit’ will enable the premises to provide gaming
machines (three machines of categories B4, C or D). Commercial clubs may apply for a
29



Page 182

‘club machine permit’ only.

33.1 To qualify for these special club permits a members club must have at least 25 members
and be established and conducted “wholly or mainly” for purposes other than gaming. A
members’ club must be permanent in nature, not established to make commercial profit,
and controlled by its members equally. Examples include working men’s clubs, branches
of the Royal British Legion and clubs with political affiliations.

33.2 Clubs must have regard to the protection of children and vulnerable persons from harm
or being exploited by gambling. They must provide sufficient measures to ensure that

under 18 year olds do not use the adult only gaming machines. These measures may
include:

e the machines being in close proximity to the bar, or in any other area where
they are capable of being adequately supervised;

¢ notices and signage;

e the provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such
as GamCare.

33.3 Before granting the permit the council will need to satisfy itself that the premises meets
the requirements of a members’ club and that the majority of members are over 18.

33.4 The council may only refuse an application on the grounds that:

(@) the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or commercial club or
miners’ welfare institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the type of permit for
which they have applied;

(b) the applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or young
persons;

(c) an offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by the
applicant while providing gaming facilities;

(d) a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten years; or

(e) an objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police.

33.5 There is also a ‘fast-track’ procedure available for premises which hold a club premises
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003. Under the fast-track procedure there is no
opportunity for objections to be made by the Commission or the police, and the ground
upon which the council can refuse a permit is reduced. The grounds on which an
application under the process may be refused are:

(a) that the club is established primarily for gaming,

(b) that in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities for other
gaming; or

(c) that a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the applicant in the last
ten years has been cancelled.

34. Temporary use notices
Temporary use notices allow the use of premises on not more than 21 days in any 12
month period for gambling where there is no premises licence but where a gambling
operator wishes to use the premises temporarily for providing facilities for gambling.

30



Page 183

Premises that might be useful for a temporary use notice would include hotels,
conference centres and sporting venues.

34.1 Temporary Use Notices allow the use of premises for any form of equal chance gambling
where those participating in the gaming are taking part in a competition which is intended
to produce a single, overall winner.

34.2 Only persons or companies holding a relevant operating licence can apply for a
temporary use notice to authorise the particular class of gambling permitted by their
operating licence.

34.3 A temporary use notice must be lodged with the licensing authority not less than three
months and one day before the day on which the gambling is due to take place. Detailed
information about how to serve a temporary use notice will be available in a separate
guidance note.

34.4 The Act makes a special reference, in the context of temporary use notices, to a “set of
premises” to try and ensure that large premises which cannot reasonably be viewed as
separate are not used for more temporary use notices than permitted under the Act. The
council considers that the determination of what constitutes “a set of premises” will be a
question of fact in the particular circumstances of each notice that is given. In
considering whether a place falls within the definition of a “set of premises”, the council
will look at, amongst other things, the ownership/occupation and control of the

premises. The council will be ready to object to notices where it appears that their effect
would be to permit regular gambling in a place that could be described as one set of
premises.

35. Occasional use notices (for tracks)

There is a special provision in the Act which provides that where there is betting on a
track on eight days or less in a calendar year, betting may be permitted by an occasional
use notice without the need for a full premises licence. An Occasional Use Notice is
different to that for a temporary use notice. The application may be made in writing, to
the council by the person responsible for the administration of the events on a track or
by an occupier of the track.

35.1 The council has very little discretion as regards these notices aside from ensuring that the
statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not exceeded. The council will however
consider the definition of a ‘track’ and whether the applicant is entitled to benefit from
such notice.

36. Small society lottery registrations

36.1 A lottery generally refers to schemes under which prizes are distributed by chance
among entrants who have given some form of value for their chance to take part.

36.2 The Act creates two principal classes of lotteries: Licensed lotteries and exempt lotteries.
Licensed lotteries are large society lotteries and lotteries run for the benefit of local
authorities. These will be regulated by the Gambling Commission. Within the class of
exempt lotteries there are four sub classes, one of which is small society lotteries.

36.3 A small society lottery is a lottery promoted on behalf of a non-commercial society as
defined in the Act which also meets specific financial requirements set out in the Act.

31



Page 184

These will be administered by the council for small societies who have a principal office
in Haringey and want to run such lottery.

36.4 A lottery is small if the total value of tickets put on sale in a single lottery is £20,000 or
less and the aggregate value of the tickets put on sale in a calendar year is £250,000 or
less.

36.5 To be ‘non-commercial’ a society must be established and conducted:

e for charitable purposes;

e for the purpose of enabling participation in, or supporting, sport, athletics or a
cultural activity; or

e for any other non-commercial purpose other than that of private gain.

36.6 The other types of exempt lotteries are ‘incidental non-commercial lotteries’, ‘private
lotteries’ and ‘customer lotteries’. If you require guidance on the different categories of
lotteries please contact the council.

36.7 The National lottery is not licensed by the Gambling Act 2005 and continues to be
regulated by the National Lottery Commission under the National Lottery Act 1993.

Part E

37. Enforcement
The council will work closely with the responsible authorities in accordance with a
locally established joint enforcement protocol and will aim to promote the licensing
objectives by targeting known high risk premises following government guidance
around better regulation.

37.1 In carrying out its enforcement duties with regards to the inspection of premises; and
the powers to institute criminal proceedings in respect of certain offences under the Act
the council will endeavour to be:

e proportionate: regulators should only intervene when necessary: remedies
should be appropriate to the risk posed, and costs identified and minimised;

e accountable: regulators must be able to justify decisions, and be subject to
public scrutiny;

e consistent: rules and standards must be joined up and implemented fairly;

e transparent: regulators should be open, and keep regulations simple and
user friendly; and

e targeted: regulation should be focused on the problem, and minimise side
effects

37.2 The council will endeavour to avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes so far as
possible.

37.3 Where there is a Primary Authority scheme in place, the council will seek guidance from
the Primary Authority before taking any action involving test purchasing operations,
unless these arise as a result of a complaint.

32



Page 185

37.4 Further information, including an index of all Primary Authority arrangements can be
found at https://primaryauthorityregister.info/par/index.php/home

37.5 The council will also adopt a risk-based inspection programme in line with government
recommendations around better regulation and the principles of the Hampton Review.

37.6 The main enforcement and compliance role for the council in terms of the Gambling Act
2005 will be to ensure compliance with the premises licences and other permissions
which it authorises. The Gambling Commission will be the enforcement body for the
operator and personal licences. Concerns about the manufacture, supply or repair of
gaming machines will not be dealt with by the council but will be notified to the Gambling
Commission. In circumstances where the council believes a premises requires a
premises licence for gambling activities and no such licence is in force, the council will
alert the Gambling Commission.

37.7 The Gambling Commission have highlighted that local authorities in general are likely to
receive very few, or no complaints about gambling. Unlike other regulated areas, such as
alcohol, gambling is much less visible as a concern for residents. As a result, the
Gambling Commission advises the Council to proactively conduct inspections, to build
up the picture of whether a premises can establish true compliance, and can assess
whether the necessary protections, especially for the young and vulnerable are in place
and working effectively.

37.8 The Council’s Inspection programme requires all new licensed premises to be inspected
shortly after the licence has been issued, and every premises should expect at least one
inspection per year. Inspections of premises are also undertaken if complaints are
received, if variation applications are received or there is some other intelligence that
suggests an inspection is appropriate. Compliance will be checked in a daytime or
evening inspection. Where a one-off event takes place under a Temporary Use Notice or
Occasional Use Notice, the Council may also carry out inspections to ensure the
Licensing Objectives are being promoted.

37.9 High-risk premises are those premises that have a history of complaints, a history of non-
compliance and require greater attention. The Council will operate a lighter touch in
respect of low-risk premises so that resources are more effectively targeted to problem
premises. We will also target enforcement towards illegal gambling as it is potentially
higher risk/harm due to the lack of regulation. The council will also keep itself informed of
developments as regards the work of the Better Regulation Executive in its consideration
of the regulatory functions of local authorities. The council’s enforcement/compliance
protocols/written agreements will be available upon request.

38. Legislation, Policies and Strategies
In undertaking its licensing function under the Gambling Act 2005, the Council is also
bound by other legislation, including:-
1. Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1988;
2. Human Rights Act 1998;
3. Health and Safety at Work Act 1974;

4. Environmental Protection Act 1990;

5. The Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003;
33


https://primaryauthorityregister.info/par/index.php/home
https://primaryauthorityregister.info/par/index.php/home

Page 186

6. The Race Relations Act 1976 (as amended);

However, the policy is not intended to duplicate existing legislation and regulation
regimes that already place obligations on employers and operators.

38.1 National Strategies
The Council will also seek to discharge its responsibilities identified by other Government
Strategies, in so far as they impact on the objectives of the licensing function.

38.2 Local Strategies and Policies
Where appropriate, the Council will consider applications with reference to other adopted
local strategies and polices, including the following:-
1. Working Together with Communities
2. The Haringey Safer Communities Strategy
3. Enforcement Policies.

38.3 Integrating Strategies
There are many stakeholders involved in the Leisure industry and many are involved in
the promotion of the licensing objectives. A number of stakeholders’ plans and strategies
deal with matters related to the licensing function. Where this is the case, the Council will
aim, as far as possible, to co-ordinate them.
The Council considers that where appropriate and in so far as is consistent with the
Gambling Act, Guidance and Codes of Practice issued under sections 24 and 25 of the
Gambling Act 2005, it is desirable that this Policy complements other relevant plans and
strategies aimed at the management of town centres and the night-time economy.

38.4 Relevant plans and strategies include:-
Crime and Disorder Strategy — The Council will fulfil its duty under section 17 of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in
the Borough. As far as possible, licensing decisions will aim to contribute to the targets
set in the Crime and Disorder Strategy and conditions attached to licences and
certificates will reflect local crime prevention strategies.

38.5 Safer Communities Strategy
The Community Safety Strategy is committed to tackling the key areas of crime and
building prevention initiatives into neighbourhoods. The licensing authority will support
the work of the Safer Communities Strategy within the scope of the licensing objectives
under the Act
e Haringey Council - A Community Plan — As far as possible, any licensing
decisions will be in line with the aspirations of this community plan.

e Local Transport Plan — the Council aims to work with the local transport
authority and will consider ways in which the public can be dispersed from
licensed premises and events so as to avoid disturbance, crime and
disorder. The Police will be encouraged to report on matters related to the
swift and safe dispersal of people from licensed premises.

e Racial Equality — The Council is required under race relations legislation to
have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination and to
promote equality of opportunity and good relations between persons of
different racial groups. The impact on these issues of the Gambling Policy
will be monitored and amendments will be made as necessary.

34



Page 187

e Domestic Violence Strategy — The Council will ensure consultation to
ensure that any correlation between gambling and domestic violence can
be detected at the earliest opportunity.

e Children and Young Persons Strategy — The Council will have regard to
the impact on this strategy and the criteria for safeguarding children from
becoming addicted.

e Anti-Poverty Strategy — As far as possible, any licensing decisions will
have regard to this strategy. It will support the work of the Anti Poverty
Strategy as they are developed within the scope of the licensing
objectives under the Act.

e Proper integration will be assured by the Licensing Authority’s Licensing
Committee providing reports, when appropriate, to its Planning
Committee on the situation regarding licensed premises in the area,
including the general impact of gambling related crime and disorder, to
enable the Planning Committee to have regard to such matters when
taking its decisions.

e The Council will ensure that the Licensing Committee receives reports,
when appropriate, on the needs of the local tourist economy to ensure
that these are reflected in their considerations.

e Economic Strategies — The Council will ensure that the Licensing
Committee is appraised of the employment situation in the area and the
need for new investment and employment where appropriate.

e Enforcement Policy — All licensing enforcement will be conducted in
accordance with the Enforcement Concordat, and the Haringey
Enforcement Policy.

These links to other corporate strategies will be formulated in detail as a result of the
consultation process.

39. Decision Making
Committee Terms of Reference
A Licensing Sub-Committee of Councillors will sit to hear applications where
representations have been received from interested parties and responsible authorities.
Ward Councillors will not sit on a Sub-Committee involving an application within their
ward.

39.1 The Licensing Committee
The Licensing Committee will also sit to determine general licensing matters that have
been delegated to it by the full Council that are not associated with the Gambling Act
2005. Where a Councillor who is a member of the Licensing Committee is making or has
made representations regarding a licence on behalf of an interested party, in the interests
of good governance they will disqualify themselves from any involvement in the decision
making process affecting the licence in question.

39.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee will also refer to the Licensing Committee any matter it is

35



Page 188

unable to deal with because of the number of its members who are unable to take part in
the consideration or discussion of any matter or vote on any question with respect to it.
The Licensing Committee will refer to the Full Council any matter it is unable to deal with
because of the number of its members who are unable to take part in the consideration
or discussion of any matter or vote on any question with respect to it.

39.3 Every determination of a licensing decision by the Licensing Committee or a Licensing
Sub-Committee shall be accompanied by clear, cogent reasons for the decision. The
decision and the reasons for that decision will be sent to the applicant and those who
have made relevant representations as soon as practicable. A summary of the decision
shall also be posted on the Council’s website as soon as possible after the decision has
been confirmed, where it will form part of the statutory licensing register required to be
kept by the Council.

39.6 The Council’s Licensing Officers will deal with all other licensing applications where either
no representations have been received, or where representations are irrelevant, frivolous
or vexatious will be made by Council Officers, who will make the decisions on whether
representations or applications for licence reviews should be referred to the Licensing
Committee or Sub-Committee. Where representations are rejected, the person making
that representation will be given written reasons as to why that is the case. There is no
right of appeal against a determination that representations are not admissible.

39.7 Allocation of Decision Making Responsibilities
The Council will be involved in a wide range of licensing decisions and functions and has
established a Licensing Committee to administer them.
Appreciating the need to provide a speedy, efficient and cost-effective service to all
parties involved in the licensing process, the Committee has delegated certain decisions
and functions and has established a Sub-Committee to deal with them.
Many of the decisions and functions will be purely administrative in nature and the grant
of non-contentious applications, including for example those licences and permits where
no representations have been made, will be delegated to Council Officers.
The table shown at Appendix A sets out the agreed delegation of decisions and functions
to Licensing Committee, Sub-Committee and Officers.
This form of delegation is without prejudice to Officers referring an application to a Sub-
Committee or Full Committee if considered appropriate in the circumstances of any
particular case.

40 Reviews

40.1 A review is a process defined in the legislation which ultimately leads to a licence being
reassessed by the Licensing Committee with the possibility that the licence may be
revoked, suspended or that conditions may amended or new conditions added.

40.2 Requests for a review of a premises licence can be made by interested parties or
responsible authorities; however, it is for the council to decide whether the review is to be
carried-out. This will be on the basis of whether the request for the review is:

i) in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission

i) in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission

iii) reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives and

iv) in accordance with this authority’s Gambling Act 2005 — Statement of Licensing
Policy.

In addition the council may also reject the application on the grounds that the request is
36



Page 189

frivolous, vexatious, will certainly not cause this authority to wish to alter, revoke or
suspend the licence, or is substantially the same as previous representations or requests
for review.

40.3 The council can also initiate a review of a licence on the basis of any reason which it
thinks is appropriate. Once a valid application for a review has been received by the
licensing authority, representations can be made by responsible authorities and
interested parties during a 28 day period. This period begins 7 days after the application
was received by the licensing authority, who will publish notice of the application within 7
days of receipt.

40.4 The licensing authority must carry out the review as soon as possible after the 28 day
period for making representation has passed.

40.5 The purpose of the review will be to determine whether the licensing authority should
take any action in relation to the licence. If action is justified, the options open to the
licensing authority are:-

(@) add, remove or amend a licence condition imposed by the licensing authority;

(b) exclude a default condition imposed by the Secretary of State (e.g. opening
hours) or remove or amend such an exclusion;
(c) suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding three months; and

(d) revoke the premises licence.

40.6 In determining what action, if any, should be taken following a review, the licensing
authority must have regard to the principles set out in section 153 of the Act, as well as
any relevant representations.

40.7 In particular, the licensing authority may also initiate a review of a premises licence on the
grounds that a premises licence holder has not provided facilities for gambling at the
premises. This is to prevent people from applying for licences in a speculative manner
without intending to use them.

40.8 Once the review has been completed, the licensing authority must, as soon as possible,
notify its decision to:
= the licence holder
= the applicant for review (if any)
= the Commission
= any person who made representations
= the chief officer of police or chief constable; and
= Her Majesty’s Commissioners for Revenue and Customs

41. Diversity and Equality
Subject to the general requirements of the Act, the Licensing Authority will promote
equality of opportunity. In such respects, nothing within this statement of licensing
principles shall undermine the right of any individual to apply for any of the licences
and/or authorisations provided under the terms of the Act. The Council is aware that
some applications may have greater impact on groups, organisations or associations in
respect of their race, gender, age, disability, sexuality or religious beliefs. With a view to
eliminating unlawful discrimination, applicants will be expected (where appropriate) to
address these concerns.

37



Page 190

Where applications made by these groups or organisations representing them highlight
special needs or customs that may affect their application, the Council, in recognising its
duty to promote good relations between persons of different groups, will give
consideration to supporting those needs or customs whilst seeking to promote the three
licensing objectives.

42. Human Rights
The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on Human Rights and
makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way that is incompatible with a
Convention Right. The Council will have particular regard to its rights and responsibilities
under the Human Rights Act 1998 when determining applications, considering
enforcement and reviewing this policy.

42.1 The Council will have particular regard to:

¢ Article 6 — that in determination of civil rights everyone is entitled to a fair and
public hearing within a reasonable time by an independent and impatrtial tribunal
established by law;

e Article 8 — that everyone has the right to respect for his home and private life
(removal or restriction of a licence may effect a persons private life); and

¢ Atrticle 1 of the First Protocol — that every person is entitled to peaceful enjoyment
of his or her possessions (a licence is considered a possession in law);

38



Page 191

TABLE OF DELEGATIONS OF LICENSING FUNCTIONS APPENDIX 1

MATTER TO BE DEALT FULL | SUB-COMMITTEE OFFICERS

WITH COUNCI
L

Three year licensing X

policy

Policy not to permit X

casinos

Can only be delegated

F tting - wh
ee Setting - when to a sub-committee,

appropriate )
PProp not officers
Where no
Application for premises Where representations | representations
. PP P have been received received/
licences . .
and not withdrawn representations have

been withdrawn

Where no
L . Where representations | representations
Application for a variation . .
. have been received received/
to a licence ) .
and not withdrawn representations have

been withdrawn

Where representations | Where no
have been received representations received
from the Commission | from the Commission

Application for a transfer
of a licence

Where no
Application for a Where represen.tations reprgsentations
provisional statement have been received received/
and not withdrawn representations have

been withdrawn

39



Page 192

Review of a premises
licence

The initial grounds for
review will be for officers
to validate. Licensing
Sub Committee will then
hear the review if the
grounds are valid under
s.198

Application for club
gaming /club machine
permits

Where representations
have been received
and not withdrawn

Where no
representations
received/
representations have
been withdrawn

Cancellation of club
gaming/ club machine
permits

Cancellation of club
gaming /machine
permits and other
permits decisions would
be appropriate for
officers.

Applications for other
permits

Dealt with by officers

Cancellation of licensed
premises gaming machine
permits

Dealt with by officers

Consideration of
temporary use notice

Decision to give a counter
notice to a temporary use
notice

40




Page 193

Definitions

NOTE: In this Policy, the following definitions are included to provide an explanation to certain
terms included in the Act and, therefore, in the Statement of Gambling Policy. In some cases,
they are an abbreviation of what is stated in the Gambling Act 2005 or an interpretation of
those terms. For a full definition of the terms used, the reader must refer to the Gambling Act
2005.

‘The Council’ means London Borough of Haringey, acting as the Licensing Authority as
defined by the Gambling Act 2005.

‘The Act’ means the Gambling Act 2005.

‘The Licensing Authority’ the authority in whose area the premises is wholly/partly situated.
The Licensing Authority (as in the issuing authority) is also a responsible authority.

‘The Gambling Commission’ a body set up by the Government as the unified regulator for
gambling, replacing the Gaming Board.

‘Responsible Authority’ means a public body that must be notified of certain applications for
premises licences and permits, and are entitled to make representations on any of the
licensing objectives.

‘Children’ means individuals who are less than 16 years old.

‘Young person’ means individuals who are aged less than 18 years old and 16 years and over.

‘Mandatory Conditions’ means a specified condition provided by regulations to be attached to
premises licences.

‘Default Conditions’ means a specified condition provided for by regulations to be attached to
a licence unless excluded by the Council.

‘Premises’ means any place, including a vessel or moveable structure.

‘LCCP’ Licensing Conditions Code of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission

41



Page 194

GAMBLING ACT 2005
GAMBLING LOCAL AREA PROFILE
JANUARY 2019



Page 195

1. Introduction

1.1 This profile has been drafted by the Council as an associate document to the
Council’s Statement Gambling Policy following the recommendations of the
Gambling Commission and the Local Government Association. Data has been
used from a number of published sources together with information from the
responsible authorities. It is intended to assist local Gambling Operators prepare
their local assessments.

At this time the Council does not have any evidence to indicate Gambling
activities in the Borough are a problem. However potential risks are always
present and the Council encourages operators and all others involved to work
together to address such issues or concerns.

1.2 This document is to highlight areas of the borough inhabited or frequented by
people who might be at risk of being harmed or exploited by gambling.
Licensees have a specific responsibility to assess local risks to the licensing
objectives that come about due to the provision of gambling facilities at each of
their premises. Whilst it is not a requirement for licensing authorities to
complete a risk assessment of the local area, it is encouraged by the Gambling
Commission that such risk assessments, known as the local area profile are a
significant benefit to both the licensing authority and the operators. The
benefits listed are:

« it enables licensing authorities to better serve their local community, by
better reflecting the community and the risks within it

e Qgreater clarity for operators as to the relevant factors in licensing authority
decision making, will lead to improved premises licence applications, with
the operator already incorporating controls and measures to mitigate risk in
their application

« it enables licensing authorities to make robust but fair decisions, based on a
clear, published set of factors and risks, which are therefore less susceptible

to challenge
« it encourages a proactive approach to risk that is likely to result in reduced
compliance and enforcement action.

2. Haringey approach to local area profile

2.1 The Local Area Profile Supplementary document establishes that the Council
has serious concerns of the impact from on street gambling premises
particularly those in the most vulnerable and ‘at risk’ areas of the borough. The
Council considers that it is necessary to seek to control the number of facilities
for gambling in areas where its most vulnerable residents may be placed at
increasing risk, and in line with the duty, to aim to permit gambling insofar as it
is reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the licensing objectives. The
document provides an overview of the geographical areas in the borough
identified as currently being of greater risk to gambling related harm.

2.2 All areas shown within the local area profile as being at high overall risk of
Gambling related harm, are generally considered inappropriate for further



Page 196

gambling establishments, which could potentially raise the risk of gambling
related harm to vulnerable people living in those areas. Operators are asked to
consider very carefully whether seeking to locate new premises or relocating
existing premises within these areas would be consistent with the licensing
objectives and the local risks identified.

2.3 This begins with the Gambling Act 2005 and the objective of the protection of
children from harm and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling. Within the Haringey Statement of Gambling Policy we
state that the East of the borough carries higher deprivation and social
economic imbalances and therefore should have special consideration given to
it in relation to the proximity of gambling premises to

« an educational establishment, including colleges and universities, youth
clubs, recreational establishments;

« close to a centre dealing with vulnerable people, including housing, clinics,
recovery centre, food banks;

« situated in an area of high crime;

e situated in an area of deprivation;

« close to the location of services for children such as libraries and leisure
centres;

¢ Places of worship, community facilities or public buildings

« Areas where there is considered to be an over concentration of similar
existing licensed operations.

« close to the location of businesses providing instant access to cash such as
payday loans, pawn shops.



Page 197

2.4 In this context and in response to the changes in the GLA, we have completed
an assessment of the key characteristics of the Borough to identify areas of
higher risk of vulnerability to gambling-related harm. This assessment is
Haringey’s local area profile.

Our approach is based on the possible risk to gambling-related harm and does
not mean that just because an area is seen as being at higher risk that all people
in that area will suffer harm or be at risk of suffering harm.

2.5 This Authority will take specific note of whether an application relates to a
premise that is:

close to an educational establishment, including colleges and universities;

close to a centre dealing with vulnerable people;

situated in an area of high crime;

situated in an area of deprivation;

close to the location of services for children such as libraries and leisure

centres;

close to the location of businesses providing instant access to cash such as

payday loans, pawn shops.

2.6.This Authority will expect applicants for a new licence to submit the completed
assessment with their application. It must identify the risks and state what
control mechanisms are to be employed at the premises to ensure that the
licensing objectives are being met having regard to the local area profiles
produced by this Authority. The assessment must consider at a minimum:

The local area, including but not restricted to the types of premises
and operation in the area surrounding the gambling premises; the
character of the area, for example is it predominantly residential or
commercial, is it a family orientated area; transport links; educational
facilities; centres for vulnerable people; ethnicity, age, economic
makeup of the local community; high crime area; high unemployment
area; pawn broker/pay day loan businesses in the vicinity; footfall in
the vicinity; recorded incidents of attempted underage gambling;
other gambling premises in the vicinity

The gambling operation, including but not restricted to what gambling
products it provides in the premises; the staffing levels within the
premises; the level and requirement for staff training; whether loyalty
or account cards are used or not; the security and crime preventions
arrangements it has in place; how it advertises locally and on the
premises; the marketing material within the premises; the display and
provision of information

The design and layout of the premises, including but not restricted to
whether the staff have obstructed views of gaming machines or
entrances; whether the design is such that children can see gambling
taking place.

The control mechanisms to be put in place to mitigate the risks e.g.
the use of CCTV cameras, the provision of magnetic door locks,
employment of door supervisors, employing a challenge 25 scheme,
increased humber [of trained staff

Commented [WM(1]: This list should be expanded to
include restricting access signage
DB- DONE




Page 198

2.7 Other issues that may be considered such as:
e Matters of faith, including all religious or faith denominations including
proximity to churches, mosques, temples or any other place of worship.

2.8 If an application for a new licence or variation is submitted that is within 400
metres of premises/location where children, young persons and vulnerable
persons are operators are encouraged to provide details of the measures to be
implemented that would overcome the potential risks in the identified areas.

2.9 If the operator does not put forward measures to overcome the risks, or the
Council considers that the operator’s proposed measures do not adequately
mitigate the risk, the council will consider what measures are needed which can
include additional conditions or even refusal of the application if appropriate.
The Authority expects that each shop will have a copy of its local area risk
assessment onsite for authorised officers to view on request.

3 The Profile of The London Borough of Haringey

Map of the London borough of Haringey

Bounds Green

Northumberland Park
Woodside

Alexandra

Tottenham
Hale

©Crown copyright. All rights reserved LBH 100017423 (2006).

3.1 Haringey is one of London’s 32 Boroughs. It is located in the north of the capital
and is more than 11 square miles in area. According to the 2001 Census nearly
half of its 254,900 people come from ethnic minority backgrounds. It is often said
that Haringey is an outer London Borough with inner London challenges.

3.2 As a gateway to central London we are determined to be a well-connected
hub of activity rather than a Dormitory Borough. Our Growth Strategy lays out
ambitious objectives for achieving full employment and establishing Haringey



Page 199

at the epicentre of London’s small and medium sized innovation economy.
Haringey is a vibrant place to live, with many different cultures mixing, and a
fantastic variety of characterful High Streets - from the metropolitan centre at
Wood Green to the boutiques and restaurants of Muswell Hill and Crouch End
- creating a strong sense of local pride.

3.3 There are approximately 100,000 dwellings and approximately 8,200 businesses
employing 64,700 people. The most recent indices of multiple deprivation (IMD)
(2010) show that Haringey is one of the most deprived authorities in the country,
ranking 13" out of 326 authorities, and it is ranked 4 in London, yet it is also a
borough of contrasts, with great prosperity and affluence in some communities.

3.4 Persistent inequalities are manifest in the health and wellbeing of our residents.
The life expectancy gap between the most and least deprived wards is 7 years
for men and 3 years for women. The borough is facing an obesity crisis with 1
in 4 reception aged children, and 1 in 3 10/11 year olds, measured as
overweight or obese. The number of people with long term conditions like
diabetes and heart disease is increasing and there are approximately
4,000 adults with severe mental illnesses — three times more than would be
expected, even given Haringey’s level of deprivation.

3.5 There are dso inequdities in educational achievement, access to
enployment and housing qudlity. The borough has seen twelve consecutive
years of improvement in GCSE performance and A-levels scores, making
Haringey one of the top 3 most improved areas. Yet too many of our young
people still leave school without the skills needed to secure sustainable
employment, blocking their access to one of the world’s most dynamic
economics at their doorstep. It remains our priority to make all of our schools
outstanding and, through our new STEM commission, to ensure our young
people are accessing the skills needed for the jobs of the future.

3.6 The Council’s response to these challenges is to meet them head on with
ambition, innovation and a commitment to work ever more closely with
residents, businesses and public sector partners. Nowhere is our ambition
greater than in our most deprived communities in Tottenham. Working with
central and local Government, developers and major local businesses like
Tottenham Hotspur, the Council has secured £1bn of public and private
investment in Tottenham’s physical environment. Wood Green is another
community that will be the focus of major regeneration that will look to build
more homes, create better connections to Alexandra Palace and maximise the
impact of new transport links provided by Crossrail 2. We are determined that
regeneration will be shaped by the views of residents and are pioneering new
governance structures to embed the residents voice in the key decisions.

3.7 We are also determined that regeneration has a transformative effect on the
health and wellbeing of residents. Regeneration has the potential to promote
health and wellbeing through the built environment in a number of ways,
including designing infrastructure to increase ease of walking and cycling,
increasing the accessibility and perceived safety of green space, and shaping



Page 200

the retail offer in our town centres. The local area profiles will enable us to
better manage the expectations of the betting operator,

4. Local Area Profile/Social Responsibility

4.1 Haringey is concerned with the impact on the vulnerable who are at risk from

betting in the borough. The nature of the risk cuts across a number of themes
such as health impact, mental health, drug and alcohol addiction, bad debt,
crime and anti-social behaviour as well as risk from violence within the home.

4.2 Haringey will take a robust and proportionate approach to licensing issues.

Premises which will impact on the economy of this borough and its community
will be expected to build into operation plans, sufficient measures to minimise the
impact of the premises operation on the residential, and other economic based
activities.

In order to protect its community’s well being and family life, the borough will
require significant risk assessments and control methods to be available with any
application for a premises licence.The east of the borough has particular
heightened risk around anti social behaviour and deprivation, risk assessments
for betting premises in these areas will need to show specific measures to deal
with these issues that will not exacerbate existing problems. This does not mean
that an assessment does not need to be made for the rest of the Borough only
that assessments need to relevant to the risks.

4.3 Although gambling is a legal entertainment activity it can, in some locations have

a negative impact on individuals and the wider community. The Council has tried
to understand how gambling can affect its residents and visitors. The Council has
also sought to identify individuals who live in the local area who are potentially
vulnerable to gambling related harm through work carried out by the ASBAT Team
and information from the Citizen Advice Team.

4.4 In order to protect its community and family life, the borough will require risk

assessments and control methods to be available with any application for a
premises licence.

Appendix 2
Local Licensing Guidance

Commented [BD2]: NEW WORDING ON BOROUGH
PLANS




Page 201

The risk based approach provides a better understanding of, and enables a
proportionate response, to risk. Risk is related to the probability of an event
happening and the likely impact of that event. In this case it is the risk of the
impact on the licensing objectives. This guide will assist gambling operators in
undertaking and preparing their local (premises) risk assessments. This
guidance provides a framework for the local risk assessment process that will
provide a uniform approach across all non-remote gambling sectors. This will
benefit the Council as Licensing Authority under the Gambling Act 2005 (the
Act), as well as responsible authorities and interested parties when considering
new and variation applications.

Gambling operators will be required to undertake a risk assessment for all of
their existing premises. Operators must also undertake a review of those
assessments when certain triggers are met. These are,

e new premises application

¢ significant changes in local circumstances

e Variation of the premises licence

This Authority considers that these local risk assessments are a key component
of the overall assessment and management of the local risks. Each locality has
its own challenges and in order to assist applicants this Authority has produced
maps of the area containing the location of existing gambling premises, and
centres dealing with vulnerable persons. In addition, the Authority has produced
local profiles for each Ward which contains demographic, economic and crime
information. This information will be available on the Council’s website and will
be reviewed and updated.

Haringey is concerned with the impact on the vulnerable who are at risk from
betting in their areas, we have therefore made an assessment of the pattern of
gambling and associated risks to the licensing objectives in wards across the
borough.

The policy is reflective of local issues, local data, local risk and the expectations
that a licensing authority has of operators who either currently offer gambling
facilities or wish to do so in the future. The existence of a clear and robust
statement of policy provides greater scope for licensing authorities to work in
partnership with operators, other local businesses, communities, and
responsible authorities to identify and to proactively mitigate local risks to the
licensing objectives.



Page 202




5. Methodology — Datasets used

Table 1. Special consideration is given in relation to the proximity of gambling premises to

the following locations;

Table 2. Special consideration is given in relation to the proximity of gambling premises
to the following vulnerable groups:

Children (<18) & young No. residents under 18, LBH

people (students in higher  educational establishments

education) (colleges) & student
accommodation

Problem gamblers seeking  Gamblers anonymous

treatment

Living in deprived areas IMD 2015

Financial difficulties / debt  List of food banks, pawnbrokers LBH
& payday loan shops

Substance abuse / misuse List of drug & alcohol treatment Public
services, narcotics & alcohol health
anonymous meetings & needle
exchange services

Poor mental health List of GPs treating patients for Public
schizophrenia, bipolar affective health

disorder, depression & other
psychoses

Local schools All secondary schools in Haringey Corporate
GIS
Youth clubs Youth clubs registered in Haringey ~ LBH
Shops used by families & Shopping centres, supermarkets &  LBH
children shops relevant to children &
families in Haringey
Parks & open spaces Parks, open spaces, play Corporate
areas/adventure playgrounds & GIS
basketball courts in Haringey
Leisure & recreational List of leisure centres, cinemas, LBH
establishments used by theatres, cultural events,
families museums, galleries & community
organisations in Haringey
Area with high level of Suspected & convicted CSE Haringey
organised crime offences, human trafficking, police
modern day slavery & drug
offences in Haringey
Places of worship List of faith premises in Haringey Corporate
GIS

Community facilities &
public buildings

List of community centres, tenant
halls, libraries & other public
buildings in Haringey

Unemployed List of Job centres & economically 2011 Census
active unemployed residents
Homeless List of hostels, supported Public Health

housing, registered care &
temporary accommodation in
Haringey.

Areas with an over-
concentration of similar
existing licensed operation

List of current licensed gambling
establishments in Haringey

Minority ethnic groups

No. of Asian / African / Caribbean
/ Black British & Arab or other
ethnic groups

Nomis

£0¢ abed



Page 204

Map showing crime in betting shops in Haringey for 2017:

All crime at betting shops in 2017
(total of 202)

6. The above map illustrates the wards with the highest crimes relating to betting
shops within Haringey that will require additional consideration from operators
wishing to operate in these areas:

+ Noel Park Ward

*  Woodside Ward

* Bruce Grove Ward

+ Tottenham Hale Ward

*  West Green Ward

+ Tottenham Green Ward

+ Tottenham Hale Ward

* Northumberland Park ward

*  White Hart Lane.

These areas have been chosen due to:
» Higher levels of crime
* Drug dealing and misuse
» Gang activity in the area
* Issues with street drinking and anti-social behaviour
» Issues with street begging
* Homelessness
+ Mental health support accommodation



Page 205




Page 206



Areas in Haringey identified as being at risk to gambling-related harm

Proximity or hotspot maps identify clusters of location and vulnerable persons incidents relative to each other compared to their overall dispersal throughout the

borough (Maps 1, 2 & 3)

Map 1. Licensed gambling premises proximity

Map 2. Locations criteria proximity

Map 3. Vulnerable persons criteria proximity

Licensed gambling premises proximity

Locations criteria proximity

Vulnerable persons proximity

Incluging: P , libraries,
skate-parks, schools and coll kets, take- i

Jubs, licensed
orshiy

foodbank:

erime laalions

'
[a
<
=
>
=
2
=
o
o
(=9
Rt e e i e s e osbonts iy vkl ) o T n
il
Data source: LBH Licensing Data source: See Table 1 Data source: See Table 2
Count or thematic maps total the sum of location and vulnerable person’s incidents by grid-cell. Each cell measures 560m x 560m and there are a total of 118 grids
covering Haringey borough (Maps 4, 5, 6 &7)
Map 4. Licensed gambling premises count Map 5. Locations criteria count Map 6. Vulnerable persons criteria count
Licensed gambling premises Location criteria count Vulnerable persons criteria count
'
[a
<
=
[
=z
=)
o
O

Included: Residents under 1§ id, loyed, minori idents n high
‘persans lving in temporary ibstance mis E for mental health issues,

Data source: LBH Licensing

Data source: See Table 1

Data source: See Table 2 ‘

10z abed



Map 7. Combined locations and vulnerable persons incident count per grid-cell overlaid with current licensed gambling premises (64 in total)

I Licensed gambling premises

Ward

Count

Alexandra

Bounds Green

Bruce Grove

Crouch End

Fortis Green

Harringay

Highgate
Hornsey

Muswell Hill

Noel Park

Northumberland Park

St Ann's

Seven Sisters

Stroud Green

' Alexandra

Licensed gambling premises wthin the 4 grid-cells with the highest counts (81 - 118)

Tottenham Green

NAMEADDRES

Ward

Tottenham Hale

William Hill, 728 High Road, Tottenham, London, N17 0AG.

Northumberland Park

West Green

Paddy Power, 814 High Road, T h London, N17 ODH.

Northumberland Park

White Hart Lane

Northumberland Park

Betfred, Betting Office, 777-781 High Road, h London, N17 8AH.

William Hill, 793-795 High Road, T ham, London, N17 8EP.

Northumberland Park

Woodside

mcwhmwpmmgpo}ownomwo

William Hill, 703 Seven Sisters Road, Tottenham, London, N15 5LA.

Tottenham Green

Combined grid
cell count 560m
x 560m

[ e1-1189)
B 71-s00)
| R
| RO
.41-50(10)
| BRI
.21-30(12)
2000
~ 0-10(60)

@ Licensed gambling
premises (64)

80¢ abed



The Gambling Act 2005 prescribes in its licensing objectives the “protection of children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling”. Data shown in Table 1
and Table 2 below was collated and used to determine risk areas vulnerable to gambling related harm

Table 1. Location criteria data

Description Datasets Geography Source
Suspected & convicted Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) incidents, human trafficking,

Area with high levels of organised crime = modern day slavery & drug offences Ward Haringey police
Areas with an over-concentration of Licensed gambling establishments in Haringey i.e. betting shops & adult gaming
similar existing licensed operation centres (AGC) Building LBH, Licensing
Community facilities & public buildings Community centres, tenant halls, libraries & other public buildings Building Valuations Office
Leisure & recreational establishments Leisure centres, cinemas, theatres, cultural events, museums, galleries & community
used by families organisations Building LBH, Licensing, Planning
Education Secondary schools and further education establishments Building LBH, Environments & Neighbourhood
Recreational grounds Parks, open spaces, play areas/adventure playgrounds Polygon LBH, Environments & Neighbourhood
Places of worship Churches and faith based premises Building LBH, Environments & Neighbourhood
Shops used by families & children Shopping centres, supermarkets and take-away/chicken shops Building LBH, Licensing, Planning
Youth clubs Youth clubs Building LBH, YJS

Table 2. Vulnerable persons criteria data

Description Datasets Geography Source
level
Young people No. residents under 18 LSOA Census 2011
Financial difficulties / debt Food banks, pawnbrokers & payday loan shops Building LBH, Licensing
Homeless Temporary accommodation Building LBH, Housing
Living in deprived areas Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 2015 LSOA Dept. Communities & Local Government
Non- white ethnic groups i.e. Asian / African / Caribbean / Black British & Arab or
Minority ethnic groups other ethnic groups LSOA Census 2011
Poor mental health Employment Support Allowance (ESA) claimants for mental health conditions LSOA Nomis
Problem gamblers seeking treatment No data found for Haringey NA NA
Substance abuse / misuse Drug & alcohol treatment services & needle exchange pharmacies Building LBH, Public health
Unemployed Job Seekers Allowance (JSA) claimants LSOA Nomis

Methodology: Datasets were mapped using their Easting and Northing co-ordinates. Address-point level co-ordinates were created from building address information in datasets where co-
ordinates were not provided. Datasets relating to areas such as parks/open spaces and deprivation data aggregated to LSOA - used their polygon centroid as co-ordinates.

The distance used for measuring proximity and grid-cell size is 560m. This distance is based on the average of distances measured between residents homes and local facilities (post office,
primary school, general store or supermarket and GP surgery) in Haringey as published by the Department for Communities and Local Government

60¢ abed



"

57 Alexandra
2
4
14 . B
Fortis Green tal

17
Muswell Hil

"

Produced by Business Intelligence

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 100019199 (2018)

Crouch End

15 104

White Hart Lane

Northumbertand R

Indices of Deprivation 2015
| 20% + most deprived (87)
10-20% moast deprived (30)
| 5-10% most deprived (18)

- Amongst 5% most deprived (10)
Education Establishment

@  Gambiing Premises

0Tz abed



Schools with the highest number of gambling premises within the 400m radius

School Name Number of Gambling Premises
(80,81) South Harringay Junior and Infant 8

School

(53) Bruce Grove Primary School 7

(72) Noel Park Primary School 6

<

47) 05

TTC abed



Page 212

Total number of Employment Support Allowance (ESA) claimants for Mental Health
May 2014

Total mental health
ESA claimants

* Age UK drop in centre - €0 1o B0

Name of advice service

* cAB B 0 0 5o
20 to 39
) . ﬁ Haringey Law Centre RN
by Business
® Crown copyright. All rights reserved 100019199 (2014) * Haringey Womens Farum

Seven Sisters

" Totsl Clarmants
W 18800 225 (4
W 15140 183 (S)
108 1 150 (5)
Pr Ry Strategy and B 510 107 5
& Cavnm CopTighl. AN Tights resarved 100011198 (2013)




Page 213

Risk factors in Haringey

Haringey has high level of factors that increase the risk to mental health, such as
deprivation, unemployment and homelessness, all of which are more concentrated
in the east of the borough. The proportion of residents living alone (24 %) locally is
greater than in London and England (22% and 18% respectively). Five in every
1,000 residents in Haringey are homeless, a rate which is higher than the London
average (Source: DCLG). Joblessness is higher in the east and 48% of people
claiming allowance have mental health behavioral disorders. Increases in
unemployment, debt, overcrowding and homelessness (driven by changes to the
temporary accommodation subsidy system, combined with high rents) can
potentially further increase the level of mental health problems in Haringey

« Risk factors associated with poor mental health and wellbeing, such as
unemployment, economic deprivation and poor quality housing, are high in
Haringey compared to London and England. These issues are more prevalent
in the east of the borough.

« Haringey has high levels of severe and enduring mental illness compared to
London and England (Source: Community mental health profile 2013 -
external link). The rate of psychotic disorder is more prevalent in the east of
Haringey (Source MH First — QOF).

« Patients from black or black British ethnic groups account for less than fifth
(18.8%, Census 2011) of Haringey population but represent over a quarter
(28%) of hospital admissions for mental health issues and further 44 per cent
of admissions under the Mental Health Act (1983) Section (Source: BEH
Mental Health Trust 2012/13).

« Haringey’s suicide rate is higher than in London and England. On average 26
Haringey residents, of whom the majority are men, commit suicide each year.
Only one in four are known to mental health services and one in twenty to a
GP. (Source: Coroners Suicide Audit data Produced by Public Health
Directorate).

« Nearly one in three (32%) offenders on probation report having a mental
health issue. For one in five (20%) this is compounded by problems with drug
or alcohol misuse. (Source: Community Safety Strategic Assessment: Annual
audit of crime and disorder in Haringey 2012/13).

o Haringey has a large independent supported housing provision for people
with mental health issues. This provision is used by local authorities around
London which places extensive pressures on Haringey services. Most of
these services are placed in east of the borough.



http://www.nepho.org.uk/cmhp/index.php?view=E09000014
http://www.nepho.org.uk/cmhp/index.php?view=E09000014

Page 214

Map showing clients attending Citizens Advice in relation to debt matters. The map below
relates to areas of deprivation across the borough.

Clients
0-33
34 - 59
I s0-94
B o - 156
| RE
@® Bursau
@  Outreach

Deprivation
Rank

- Maost Deprived
|

Least Deprived
® Bureau
@  Outreach




Page 215

9. Local risks and control measures

9.1 There are two specific parts to the risk assessment process, the assessment of
the local risks and the determination of appropriate mitigation to reduce those
risks.

9.2. Operators may be familiar with identifying risks in relation to health and safety
and food hygiene legislation. Risk assessments are also used for security and
crime purposes, for example for money laundering and as part of trade
association best practice, such as the Safe Bet Alliance.

9.3 This local risk assessment process, although similar requires a much broader
range of considerations when identifying local risk. Operators must consider the
local area in which the premises are situated, the gambling operation and the
premises both internally and externally.

9.4 The control measures that operators will put in place to mitigate any risk
associated with the gambling operation will be dependent on the type of
gambling activities provided, how the company operates and the size of the
organisation.

9.5 The final control measures relate to specific physical measure that will address
an identified risk factor. These physical control measures may, for example,
include alarms, CCTV cameras, doors, magnetic locks, time locks on safes, spit
kits, window shutters, fogging systems, UV lights in toilets.

9.6 The control measures identified to mitigate a perceived risk may involve a
combination of systems, design and physical measures. For example to address
the risk factors relating to children gaining access to an over 18 restricted
gambling premises, the operator may identify the following control measures:

e Systems: PASS card or age verification policies, challenge 21 scheme,
staff training and door staff.

e Design: Exterior design which will not attract children into the premises,
the entrance layout will enable staff and security to watch those entering
the premises and challenge them on the grounds of age.

e Physical: Magnetic door locks and ID scans.

10 Licence conditions
As set out in the code provisions, applications for new premises licences and for
variations to existing licences will require a local risk assessment. The control
measures specified in these risk assessments may be incorporated into the new
or varied premises licences through the imposition of appropriate conditions.

11 Specific considerations for Fixed Odds Betting Terminals:
Fixed odds betting terminals (FOBTS) are electronic machines, sited in betting
shops, which contain a variety of games, including roulette. Each machine
accepts bets for amounts up to a pre-set maximum and pays out according to

fixed odds on the simulated outcomes of games.



Page 216

11.1 The Gambling Act 2005 classified FOBTs as B2 gaming machines. Up to four
machines can be sited on betting premises. Betting Operators are required to
show in their risk assessments how they will show responsible management to
customers at risk of harm from this form of gambling. The operator’s approach
to social responsibility focusing particularly on how staff are trained to engage
with customers to monitor their frequency, duration and spend of their
gambling behavior at the FOBT. Operators should demonstrate their escalation
process for interaction with customers.



Page 217

Appendix 6 — Relevant Representations



Page 218

From: Zena Brabazon <>

Sent: 11 May 2021 13:57

To: Licensing <Licensing@haringey.gov.uk>

Cc: Clir Brabazon Zena <Zena.Brabazon@haringey.gov.uk>
Subject: AGC licensing application 513 Green Lanes

Dear Daliah and Licensing

Please see below my representation regarding the premises license application for an
Adult Gaming Centre 513 Green Lanes N4 1AN - 24hrs/day, 7 days a week

Please confirm receipt. )
Thanks
Zena

Zena Brabazon
Cllr, Harringay ward

_Introduction

I am writing to you in my capacity as a Harringay ward councillor to object to the premises
license application for an Adult Gaming Centre at 513 Green Lanes N4 1AN, to open
24hrs/day, 7 days a week.

I am concerned that this application would go against two of the three key Licensing
Obijectives of the Gambling Act 2005:

e Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated
with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime

e Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed, or exploited
by gambling

I set out my reasons below.
Crime and Disorder Issues

Premises with gaming machines provide an obvious target for irate punters who have lost
money (criminal damage cases), while professional criminals or opportunist crime target
both the machines and the cash in transit. Staff and innocent bystanders are also
vulnerable. They also target vulnerable people. Green Lanes is an area with a significant
number of vulnerable residents and the opening of yet another adult gaming centre in the



Page 219

heart of Green Lanes, 24/7 is an issue of serious concern.

It is my understanding that many of the criminal damage cases are simply not reported.
This may be due to gaming centres not wishing to record such occurrences for fear that
their licence may be called in for review. There are links between crime and addiction and
there is little doubt that some customers will be committing acquisitive crime in the local
area to feed their addiction. Harringay ward is already a well-known hot-spot for drug
dealing, including Class A drugs and residents have recently been reporting increased drug
use and dealing in the area. This is being done openly along Ladder Roads which all feed
into Green Lanes. Begging is on the increase as | have personally observed, and have
reported to the police. As a result, all three of our Harringay Met Police Ward priorities
are based around drug dealing in conjunction with other criminal behaviour. | agree with
the Ladder Community Safety Partnership that a 24/7 gambling outlet in the centre of
Green Lanes will act as a magnet for criminal activity.

It is hard to avoid the conclusion that the local community in and around Green Lanes
would be put at an increasing risk of crime if a new gambling outlet were to open in Green
Lanes, offering the opportunity to gamble 24 hours a day, 7 days a week and in my view,
this is unacceptable and avoidable.

Children and Vulnerable Persons Issues

Haringey’s Statement of Gambling Policy 2021-26 makes clear that when determining an
application to grant a Premises Licence the Council will have regard to the location of
services for children and the need to protect vulnerable adults. All of these factors are
relevant here, as shown below.

Vulnerable people

There are approximately 4,000 adults with severe mental illnesses living in Haringey —
three times more than would be expected, even given Haringey’s level of deprivation.
There are three main reasons for these high numbers:

The proximity to the extensive mental health care facilities at St Ann’s Hospital, which
draws in vulnerable adults from a broad area of North London is a significant factor.

A high number of vulnerable adults living in community homes/supported living in the
two wards adjacent to Green Lanes. Harringay ward in particular has one of the highest
numbers of hostels of all 19 wards in the borough. A new facility/supported housing
scheme for homeless women is due to be developed on the Ladder this financial year.

The prevalence of HMOs (Houses in Multiple Occupation) in Harringay ward is another
reason for the high number of vulnerable people living around Green Lanes. Under the
Council’s Selective Licensing Scheme (currently under review but planned for
introduction) this core area of Green Lanes, is a hotspot as identified by the Lower Super
Output Areas. This means that it has disproportionately high numbers of HMOs.

Begging is commonplace on Green Lanes, and as personally observed, on the increase.
Those begging are highly vulnerable. Where substance abuse is a factor, the lives of
vulnerable adults are clearly harmed by addiction. Slot machines are recognised as highly
addictive and this application, if successful, will simply increase the opportunity to feed
that addiction by offering a gambling facility at very late hours when no such venue is
currently open anywhere else in Green Lanes.



Page 220

An adult gaming centre in the centre of Green Lanes open 24/7 is there to encourage
gambling, and will simply provide more temptation, through increased availability, for the
very large number of vulnerable local adults in the area. Academic research confirms this,
and one study (supported by Gamcare) noted how the more marginalised and deprived are
often the most susceptible to problem gambling and debt.

Schools and Children

The site of the proposed betting shop is between North and South Harringay Primary
Schools (Mattison and Falkland Roads respectively). There are also many other facilities
for children nearby, for example in Cavendish Road, Woodlands Park Road and Blackboy
Lane. As they are local schools and nurseries, most of the children will live in Harringay
and St Ann’s wards, in the residential streets of the Ladder and the Gardens. In addition, of
course, there are many young people between 11and 18 living in the area.

I am told that local parents have told the Ladder Community Safety Partnership that they
do not want their children to be over-exposed to ever-increasing numbers of gambling
premises including gaming centres on their way to and from school, or to the shops in
Green Lanes, and they should not be presented as the norm.

Background concerns regarding this application and Green Lanes context

It is unclear to me why this application for a licence to facilitate 24/7 opening is being
made. The applicants have already tried to secure planning approval for the same hours,
but were refused permission (HGY/2020/1925). In their refusal, the Council stated that
there would be an ‘increase in general activity and associated noise and disturbance ...
during anti-social hours, with potential for anti-social behaviour’ if 24/7 opening were to
be allowed.

The applicants tried again with reduced hours of 09.00-23.00 daily, which was granted
earlier this year (HGY/2021/0066). Were the Licensing Committee minded to allow 24/7,
the premises could not lawfully open beyond the planning hours (which have, incidentally,
been upheld on Appeal at another nearby AGC, at 48 Grand Parade). There appears to be
no realistic prospect of 24/7 opening being allowed by Planning.

The proposed AGC is located in the heart of Green Lanes, close to all of the four existing
betting shops, the almost adjacent and soon-to-be-opened AGC at 519 Green Lanes, and
the existing AGC at 48 Grand Parade. Indeed three of these gambling outlets are extremely
close (at 507 Green Lanes and another opposite, at 12 Grand Parade and the new AGC at
519 Green Lanes, noted above).

Whilst clustering of such premises in a small area is not in general a relevant
representation the Council has made clear its concern about the proliferation and
overconcentration of betting outlets. This has emerged as a relevant local issue (e.g.
Development Management DPD p.77). Town Centres, such as Harringay Green Lanes, are
particularly at risk because of this overconcentration. Although a planning document, this
is a relevant context in licensing terms because of the late-night problems which this
application will cause, e.g. more criminal activity, greater risk for vulnerable adults,
increased problem gambling which are highly relevant licensing issues.

It is my view that a new gambling outlet in Green Lanes offering access to slot machines
24/7 will contravene two of the key licensing objectives and have a seriously deleterious



Page 221

impact on the local area and community. Any increased risk of crime, whether violent or
acquisitive, could obviously affect literally anyone. Children will be at an increased risk of
exposure to more gambling; and there are real risks that vulnerable adults will be affected.

I ask you to reject this application for a 24/7 licence and draw your attention to the
decision of 8 September 2020 in respect of the license for the new AGC at 519 Green
Lanes.

Zena Brabazon
Cllr, Harringay ward

E Virus-free. www.avg.com


http://www.avg.com/email-signature?utm_medium=email&utm_source=link&utm_campaign=sig-email&utm_content=emailclient
http://www.avg.com/email-signature?utm_medium=email&utm_source=link&utm_campaign=sig-email&utm_content=emailclient

Page 222

From: Barrett Daliah

To: Barrett Daliah

Subject: FW: 513 Green Lanes, N4 1AN APP RESI REP
Date: 03 July 2021 19:18:42

Sent: 11 May 2021 12:55
To: Licensing <Licensing@haringey.gov.uk>
Subject: 513 Green Lanes, N4 1AN

Dear Haringey Council Licensing team
| live opposite 513 Green Lanes, N4 1AN.

| strongly object to the potential grant of an Adult Gaming Centre premises licence for the
property at 513 Green Lanes, for the following reasons:

1. There are two other betting/gambling shops on this intersection aone (L adbrokes and
Paddy Power). Thereis also an adult casino further down Green Lanes, in addition to
further betting shops. There are already far too many gambling and betting businesses on
Green Lanes, and this will tip the character and atmosphere of this high street further
towards gambling and betting - ruining Green Lanes character as afamily friendly food
and shopping destination.

2. The concentration of gambling and betting shopsin this areais wholly inappropriate,
and frankly offensive. Y ou do not see this kind of concentration in areas such as Angel,
Chelsea, or even Crouch End and Highgate. The placement of these businessesin low-
income areas is predatory and dangerous.

3. The opening hours proposed for this site are long. With the other gambling/betting shops
in the area, | am very concerned about anti-social behaviour during the day and late at
night.

4. There are anumber of schoolsin the area, exposing alarge number of children and
young people to gambling, betting and anti-social behaviour.

5. There are alarge number of vulnerable adultsin the area. Their interests are not served
by granting an application for another gambling/betting premisesin thisarea. | do not
believe that there are any measures that can be put in place by AGC that would mitigate
thisrisk, especially when you take into consideration the concentration of betting and
gambling businessesin the area.

For the reasons explained above, the only reasonable position isto refuse thislicence
application.

Please also note, that as a Haringey resident of over 5 years, | am incredibly disappointed
that the related planning application for this site was approved, and that this licence
application is even being considered. Y es, this site has been vacant for some time - thisis
not, however, areasonable reason to alow the further encroachment of gambling and
betting businesses on our high streets. At atime when these businesses are under intense
scrutiny for the effect they have on vulnerable adults and indeed young people, and are
being strongly criticised in the press for their business practices and predatory behaviour, it
beggars belief that Haringey Council would be receptive to yet another business such as
this on Green Lanes (especially as we have already been called out by namein articles


mailto:Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Daliah.Barrett@haringey.gov.uk

Page 223

such asthis: https.//www.bbc.com/news/magazine-22934305).

Best
Nurul Shamir


https://www.bbc.com/news/magazine-22934305

Page 224

LADDER COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP

c/o

Haringey Council Licensing Team
River Park House,

Level 1 North,

225 High Road,

Wood Green

London, N22 8HQ

6 May 2021

Premises Licence: Betting: Adult Gaming Centre 513 Green Lanes N4 1AN
To open 24hrs/day, 7 days a week

Introduction

I am writing to you on behalf of the local community in my capacity as elected Chair of both
the Ladder Community Safety Partnership (LCSP) and the Harringay Ward Police Panel.
The LCSP is an umbrella organization containing many individual members but also
representatives of Neighbourhood Watches and Residents’ Associations throughout the Ward
including Green Lanes. We are an independent group, although we work in partnership with
many other key stakeholders to improve the quality of life for local people. The Police Panel
obviously works closely with our local officers and sets priorities which aim to keep the area
safe, and free from crime, antisocial behaviour and other nuisances.

Our members — and particularly those who live near the premises (in flats along Green Lanes
and at the eastern end of adjacent Ladder roads) — are very concerned at the prospect of an
AGC opening 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. We believe that, in the specific context of the
local area, granting permission for a 24/7 gambling outlet in Green Lanes, Harringay, would
be against two of the three key Licensing Objectives of the Gambling Act 2005:

S Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with
crime or disorder, or being used to support crime

S Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed, or exploited by
gambling

Evidence for our concerns is given in sections 2 and 3 below

However, before that we would like to note that we do not understand why this application
for a licence to facilitate 24/7 opening is being made. This is because the applicants have



Page 225

already tried to secure planning approval for the same hours, but were refused permission
(HGY/2020/1925). In their refusal, the Council stated that there would be an ‘increase in
general activity and associated noise and disturbance ... during anti-social hours, with
potential for anti-social behaviour’ if 24/7 opening were to be allowed.

The applicants tried again with reduced hours of 09.00-23.00 daily, which was granted earlier
this year (HGY/2021/0066). So even if the Licensing Committee were minded to allow 24/7,
the premises could not lawfully open beyond the planning hours (which have, incidentally,
been upheld on Appeal at another nearby AGC, at 48 Grand Parade). There is therefore no
realistic prospect of 24/7 opening being allowed by Planning.

1. Green Lanes context

The proposed AGC is located in the heart of Green Lanes, and is very close to all of the four
existing betting shops, the almost adjacent and soon-to-be-opened AGC at 519 Green Lanes,
and the existing AGC at 48 Grand Parade. Indeed three of these gambling outlets are
extremely close (at 507 Green Lanes and another opposite, at 12 Grand Parade and the new
AGC at 519 Green Lanes, noted above).

The clustering of such premises in a small area is not in general a relevant representation.
However, LBH has made it clear that it is concerned about the proliferation and
overconcentration of betting outlets, which has emerged as an important local issue (eg
Development Management DPD p.77). Town Centres, such as Harringay Green Lanes, are
particularly at risk because of this overconcentration. Although we have cited a planning
document, it is a relevant context in the licensing terms because of the late-night problems
which this application will cause, eg more criminal activity, greater risk for vulnerable adults,
increased problem gambling. All of these are, of course, relevant licensing issues.

2. Crime and Disorder Issues

The large number of premises with gaming machines provides an obvious target for irate
punters who have lost money (criminal damage cases), while professional criminals or
opportunist crime target both the machines and the cash in transit. Staff and innocent
bystanders are also vulnerable.

It should be remembered that many of the criminal damage cases are simply not reported.
This is because betting outlets do not wish to be associated with too many such occurrences
for fear that their licence may be called in for review.

It is worth noting that criminal damage to machines is very common. A typical offence is
committed out of anger and frustration when a punter loses his money: offenders are almost
invariably male. Links between crime and addiction are extremely well known and there is
little doubt that some customers will be committing acquisitive crime in the local area to feed
their addiction.

In this context of gambling-induced crime, it is worth noting that the Green Lanes area has
for some time been the focus of a campaign to reduce burglary. There has also been a
concerted - and ongoing - effort by the Harringay SNT police to improve security at
vulnerable domestic properties throughout the Ladder roads in order to reduce the likelihood
of burglary.

The Harringay area is already a well-known hot-spot for drug dealing, including Class A. As



Page 226

a result, all three of the Met Police Ward priorities are based around drug dealing in
conjunction with other criminal behaviour. There is a very real concern that a 24/7 gambling
outlet will act as a magnet for criminal activity, especially as this is already the case in similar
locations eg near Turnpike Lane.

It is hard to avoid the conclusion that the local community in and around Green Lanes would
be put at an increasing risk of crime if a new gambling outlet were to open in Green Lanes,
offering the opportunity to gamble 24 hours a day, 7 days a week — something which is not
currently available anywhere else in the vicinity.

3. Children and Vulnerable Persons Issues

Haringey=s >Statement of Gambling Policy 2021-26= makes it clear that when determining
an application to grant a Premises Licence the Council will have regard to the location of
services for children and the need to protect vulnerable adults. All of these factors are
relevant here, as shown below.

(a) Schools and Children

The site of the proposed betting shop is between North and South Harringay Schools
(Mattison and Falkland Roads respectively). There are also many other facilities for children
nearby, for example in Cavendish Rd and Woodlands Park Rd. As they are local schools,
most of the children will live in Harringay and St Ann=s wards, in the residential streets of
the Ladder and the Gardens. In addition, of course, there are many other children between the
ages of 11 and 18 who live in the area..

Local parents have told the LCSP that they do not want their children to be over-exposed to
ever-increasing numbers of gambling premises on their way to and from school, or to the
shops in Green Lanes. Gambling premises, passed several times every day, mentally creates
an impression that gambling is somehow only to be expected as a dominant presence in daily
life. This is not the sort of environment in which parents should be forced to bring up their
children.

(b) Vulnerable adults
There is an unusually high number of vulnerable adults in the area. There are three main
reasons for these high numbers:

(i) the extensive mental health care facilities at St Ann=s Hospital, which draws in
vulnerable adults from a broad area of North London. Moreover there are approximately
4,000 adults with severe mental illnesses living in Haringey — three times more than would be
expected , even given Haringey’s level of deprivation (Ref 1)

(if) an exceptional number of vulnerable adults living in >care in the community= in the two
wards adjacent to Green Lanes. Harringay ward in particular has one of the highest numbers
of hostels of all 19 wards in the borough.

(iii)  There is also an unusually high number of vulnerable adults in the area because of the
huge number of HMOs (Houses in Multiple Occupation). Harringay ward has the largest
number of any ward in the Borough, with St Ann=s not too far behind. For example, under
the Council’s Selective Licensing Scheme (currently under review but planned for



Page 227

introduction) this core area of Green Lanes, is a hotspot as identified by the Lower Super
Output Areas. This means that it has disproportionately high numbers of HMO/private sector
dwellings and is problematic in terms of: poor housing, environmental crime, ASB, and
crime reported to the police.

Too often, family houses have fallen victim to excessive sub-division into large numbers of
small units, which are frequently found to be homes of young single men - many of them
vulnerable adults: recent migrants, asylum seekers, refugees, those who lack the means to live
anywhere else. Such adults may be all too willing to take a gamble, believing that they have
nothing to lose. Academic studies in a number of countries, including Australia, Sweden and
the United States, have shown the rate of problem gambling to be several times higher
among minority or immigrant groups than the rest of the population.

(c) Vulnerable Adults and Problem Gambling

The lives of vulnerable adults are clearly harmed by addiction. Slot machines are recognised
as highly addictive and this application, if successful, will simply increase the opportunity to
feed that addiction by offering a gambling facility at very late hours when no such venue is
currently open anywhere else in Green Lanes.

Evidence for Problem Gambling

GamcCare (funded by the gaming industry) is the leading agency offering help and support to
problem gamblers. Their Annual Reports reveal the steadily increasing numbers of people
seeking help each year. The Gambling Commission estimates that there are a quarter of a
million problem gamblers in Britain, but Gamblers Anonymous thinks it is well over half a
million. Either way it is certainly a significant and growing problem.

GamCare=s Annual Reports reveal that their callers seeking help were largely male, and that
the key age-group was 18-35 years old - the very group which are above-average in numbers
in the two wards either side of Green Lanes, often single, living in accommodation such as
HMOs (see above). This is based on latest census returns which, it is recognised, are an
underestimate in this case, because many such vulnerable adults simply do not fill in their
returns.

Problems of increased availability for vulnerable adults

We are seriously concerned that an outlet with longer hours in Green Lanes will simply
provide more temptation, through increased availability, for the very large number of
vulnerable local adults in the area. There is plenty of academic research which supports this
stance, ie that increased availability leads to more gambling and more problem gambling for
the vulnerable.

One study (supported by Gamcare - Ref 2) noted how >the more marginalised and deprived
are often the most susceptible= (to problem gambling and debt). We also need to wonder who
would wish to gamble in the early hours of the morning, at 3am or 4am. It is surely the case
that a problem gambler or vulnerable adult would be the most likely customer.

Conclusion

In the light of this evidence, the conclusion must be that a new gambling outlet in Green
Lanes offering access to slot machines 24/7will have a seriously adverse impact on two of the
key licensing objectives.

The increased risk of crime, whether violent or acquisitive, could obviously affect literally



Page 228

anyone; children will be at an increased risk of exposure to more gambling; while the large
number of vulnerable adults are far more likely to gamble (or worse still, fall victim to
addiction) given a hugely increased time frame of 24/7.

All of these outcomes would be contrary to the fundamental aim of the borough Licensing
Policy which is quite simply ‘to ensure that licensed premises have a positive impact on their
locality’ (Ref 3).

We therefore urge the Council, as the Licensing Authority, to limit the trading hours of the
AGC to 9am - 11pm daily. This would be the same as the nearby AGC at 48 Grand Parade,
and in line with all of the existing betting shops. In addition, it would also be the same as the
hours recently decided for the new AGC at 519 Green Lanes, by the Licensing Committee at
the meeting on 8 September 2020.

Yours sincerely

lan Sygrave

Chair, on behalf of the LCSP
Chair, on behalf of the Harringay Police Panel

Ref 1: Haringey Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-26, p.7. para 3.2

Ref 2: Gambling and Debt Pathfinder Study 2009, produced jointly by Manchester
Metropolitan University, Gamcare, the Money Advice Trust and the Salvation Army
Ref 3: Haringey Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-26, p.8. para 3.6



Page 229

On 11 May 2021, at 13:41, Max Clowes <> wrote:

To whom it may concern,

| am writing concerning the application by Admiral regarding 513 Green Lanes, N4 1AN. As per the
council’s report on ‘The Gambling Profile of Haringey’[3], ‘although gambling is a legal entertainment
activity it can, in some locations have a negative impact on individuals and the wider community’,
and this licence should be rejected on public safety grounds.

As | understand it, this licensing application relates to planning application HGY/2021/0066. This
proposed development, accompanied by this licence change, would add to the large number of
gambling sites already situated on Green Lanes, as well as be the 3rd at that specific junction. This
would result in Ladbrokes, Paddy Power, and now Admiral gambling centres all within 20 metres of
one another. Given the aforementioned high concentration of gambling centres, the decision to add
another seems clearly linked to the vulnerability of the community.

Green Lanes is a friendly and affordable high street, with a vibrant community with a particularly
large amount of low-income participants. As an example, this site would be adjacent to a successful
£1 store. The areas around Green Lanes are some of the ‘most deprived’ as per Haringey’s recent
State of the Borough report[2]. There are several nearby food banks in the area, and it is surrounded
by a high number of Employment Support Allowance claimants. Low-income is a significantrisk
factor in gambling impact, and Haringey’s own report of on the gambling profile of Haringey states
that special consideration should be given to it in relation to the proximity of the gambling centre
due to these reasons[3].

One other particular point the Haringey report raises is the risk based on proximity of businesses
providing instant access to cash such as payday loans, pawn shops[3], of which Green Lanes has
many. Additionally, the Gambling Commission report on gambling related harm[2] states that ethnic
groups are particularly vulnerable to gambling harm, and Green Lanes is a hub for various ethnic
groups.

Haringey’s gambling report documents the concentration of crime around betting shops[3], with the
nearby Turnpike Lane being one of the largest concentrations in the borough. This site’s proximity to
Turnpike Lane risks extending this crime hot-bed further down along Green Lanes.

Haringey’s gambling report documents density of vulnerable persons[3], and this site falls in a highly
ranked area. Haringey has higher rates of serious mental illness than many other London
boroughs[1] - three times more than would be expected for the level of deprivation[3] - and the
prevalence of these issues is growing year-on-year. It is important to note that this particular site is
near several health care facilities, one being St. Ann’s Hospital, which provides psychiatric care, and
these patients also fall within those most vulnerable. This site is also near several school and
recreational establishments.

Green Lanes is a high footfall area, but the gambling sites on this corner already see observably low
footfall themselves. This development had previously been rejected under a previous application,
HGY/2020/1925, with the only change with this latest application being the change of hours from
24/7 to 9-11pm. Clearly, the 24/7 hours would have been an important aspect in the business
feasibility plan for the site. This modified plan, combined with the low numbers of gamblers,
indicates that the profitability of this site will be wholly dependant on the custom of repeat,
problem-gamblers.

Finally, the UK Gambling Commission states 'Local public health teams recognise gambling-related
harm as a public health issue and its relevance in assessing risk to the wellbeing of their
communities'[2]. It is key that Haringey Council recognise that granting a licence for a betting site at
this location would be inappropriate by it’s own priorities and analysis, and will cause significant
public harm.



Page 230

[1] https://www.haringey.gov.uk/sites/haringeygovuk/files/state_of the_borough_final_master_ver
sion.pdf

[2] https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/PDF/Gambling-related-harm-as-a-public-health-
issue.pdf

(3]
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s104896/The%20Gambling%20Profile%200f%20
Haringey%20appendix%202%20nov%202018.pdf

Yours faithfully,

Max Clowes



Page 231

Appendix 6A — Responsible Authority
Representations



Page 232

| am writing as the Licensing Authority Responsible Authority in making this
representation against the above named application. It is recognised that local
licensing decision making is an administrative and evaluative process requiring a
proportionate balancing exercise, that allows all parties to consider the specific
locality alongside the details of the application.

The Licensing Authority representations are primarily concerned with the three
licensing objectives;

- Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime

- Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way

- Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling.

As a result of the premises licence application being received by Haringey Council
for an Adult Gaming Centre (AGC), the licensing authority have examined the area
of where the AGC will be sited. Green Lanes is a very busy thoroughfare that runs
between Turnpike Lane and Manor House underground station. It has its own
unique mix of problems such as street drinkers, high levels of anti social behaviour,
crime and disorder for many years.

This area consists of numerous social issues arising from an increased presence of
street begging rough sleepers and illegal street gambling. An adult gaming centre
would certainly be a draw these groups as place of shelter, it could potentially be a
magnet to these individuals already finding it difficult to maintain any kind of day to
day social interaction.

It is recognised that the location of the proposed premises is an important
consideration. The unit is based at 513 Green Lanes, Hornsey, London N4 1AN which is
a main thoroughfare for children and young people travelling to and from school or
other activities, as well as for commuters using the nearby underground stations.
Special consideration should be given to the close proximity of the vulnerable people
in the immediate locality.

There are parts of Haringey that already has existing AGCs which of themselves
have seen crime in terms of criminal damage to the machines from frustrated
customers and also staff being attacked by customers who have lost money.



Page 233

Due to Covid-19, the Metropolitan Police currently are unable to provide
geographical mapping datasets for crime within the immediate locale of the applicant
site. We are aware as a Licensing Authority through our regular liaisons with the
Police, businesses and residents the locality that there is a high volume of crime that
happens within close proximity of this location. This can range in scope from low
level Anti-Social Behaviour to extremely serious offences.

| have concerns that there are already a high level of vulnerable people in the vicinity
of 513 Green Lanes, Hornsey, London N4 1AN adults as well as children. A
premises like this could potentially cause more harm to these vulnerable people
where they would not be sufficiently safeguarded.

The location of the betting establishments in this regard provides for an environment
in which gambling activity may be closely and prominently observed. Whilst we do
not suggest that the applicant proposes to advertise in such a way as to make
betting attractive to children, the LSC is asked to consider whether the location of
this particular premises acts to normalise and thereby inadvertently promote
gambling to children and young persons, and other vulnerable persons.

Within the Councils own Local area profile the location is deemed as being at high
overall risk of gambling related harm, and generally considered inappropriate for
further gambling establishments, which could potentially raise the risk of gambling
related harm to vulnerable people.

Living, working and existing in this area. Operators are asked to consider very
carefully whether seeking to locate new premises within this area would be
consistent with the licensing objectives and the local risks identified.

Taking into account these matters the licensing authority take the view that
there are insufficient conditions that could be offered to meet these concerns.
Given these concerns in the locality the LSC is urged to not grant the licence.



Page 234

If the LSC does not agree with this representation then under the licensing
objectives, | would suggest the following;

- Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime

e Reduced operating hours to ensure the premises operates between 8am and
23pm Monday — Sunday including Bank Holidays.

e That no lone working is done from noon until closing time each day.

e A comprehensive CCTV system shall be installed and maintained on the
premises as required by the Metropolitan Police Licensing Team. CCTV
should cover the following:

o All entry and exit points to and from the premises enabling frontal
identification of every person entering under any light conditions

0 The areas of the premises to which the public have access (excluding
toilets)

o Gaming machines and the counter area

e The CCTV shall continue to record activities 24 hour a day for 31 days.

e CCTV shall be made available for the police viewing at any time with
minimum delays when requested.

e The premises shall display notices near the entrance of the venue stating that
CCTV is in operation.

e A monitor shall be placed inside the premises above the front door showing
CCTV images of customers entering exiting the premises.

e There shall be no pre-planned single staffing at any time.

e There will be a minimum of 2 staff present at all times when the premises is
open.

e The Licensee shall implement a policy of banning any customers who engage
in crime or disorder within or outside the premises.

e The licensee will refuse entry to customers who appear to be under the
influence of alcohol or drugs.

e A magnetic locking device, commonly referred to as a Maglock will be
installed and maintained on the main entrance/exit to the premises which will
be operable from the ground floor cashier counter by staff.



Page 235

An incident log shall be kept for the premises and made available on request
to an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police which will record the
following;

All crimes reported to the venue

Any complaints received regarding crime and disorder

Any incidents of disorder

Any faults in the CCTV system; and

Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

The licensee shall ensure that all seating within the premises are either
secured to the floor or are weighted to prevent lifting

The licensee shall install and maintain an intruder alarm on the premises.
The premises shall install and maintain a panic button behind the cashiers
counter.

The licensee will ensure that customer toilets are checked every hour for
evidence of drug taking. Toilet checks are to be documented stating the time
and member of staff who made the checks.

The Licensee shall take all reasonable steps to prevent street drinking of
alcohol directly outside the premises and to ban from the premises those who
do so.

The Licensee shall place a notice visible from the exterior of the premises
stating that customers drinking alcohol outside the premises is not permitted
and those who do so will be banned from the premises.

Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling.

The Licensee shall maintain a bound and paginated ‘Challenge 25 Refusals’
register at the premises. The register shall be produced to the police or
licensing authority forthwith on request.

Prominent signage and notices advertising the Challenge 25 will be displayed
showing the operation of such policy.

Third party testing on age restricted sales systems purchasing shall take at
least twice a year and the results shall be provided to the Licensing Authority
upon request.

A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where
the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card
with the PASS Hologram.



Page 236

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way

e Prominent GamCare documentation will be displayed at the premises.

e The licensee shall: provide training on the specific local risks to the licensing
objectives that have been identified for these premises as part of the staff
induction training programme. periodically provide refresher training to all of
its staff working at these premises on the specific local risks to the licensing
objectives. Participation in this training shall be formally recorded on each
member of staffs training records which, if requested will be presented to the
Licensing Authority as soon as practicable.

e The Licensee shall train staff on specific issues related to the local area and
shall conduct periodic refresher training. Participation in this training shall be
formally recorded and the records produced to the police or licensing authority
upon request.

e New and seasonal staff must attend induction training and receive refresher
training every six months.

e There shall be no cash point or ATM facilities on the premises



Page 237

Haringey

Public Health objection to 513 Green Lanes, N4 1AN
Maria Ahmad and Marlene D’Aguilar
Health in All Policies Officer, Public Health
4t May 2021

Summary

Public Health has concerns under the three licensing objectives:

e Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime
or disorder, or being used to support crime

e Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way

e Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by
gambling

Public Health strongly objects to a New Adult Gaming Centre (AGC) being proposed at Green Lanes.
The proposal is located in a deprived area with a proximity to several schools and a health care
facility. There are already two other AGCs within 3 mins walk between and 2 gambling premises on
the high road. The applicant has no regard to the locality or presence of children. The over-
concentration of gambling premises has a negative impact on the health and wellbeing of our
residents. Therefore, there is a strong need to safeguard the area from over-concentration of
gambling premises and protect our vulnerable communities.

Location

There is 2 Adult Gaming Centre on the high road in proximity to the proposed premises.
Golden Slots, 48 Grand Parade, Tottenham, London, N4 1AG (0.2 miles, 3 min walk)
Future Leisure 519 Green Lanes, Tottenham, London, N4 1AG (less than 1 min walk)

(To note, we have had a recent planning permission for an AGC at 120A-122 Green Lanes)

And 2 other gambling premises on Green Lanes
Ladbrokes Coral Itd, 56-57 Grand Parade, Tottenham, London, N4 1AF (0.3 miles, 5 min walk)

Paddy Power, Betting Office, 507 Green Lanes, Hornsey, London, N4 1AL (less than 1 min walk)



Page 238

There are three schools, one nursery and a children’s centre located within 500-meter radius of the
premises including:

Woodlands Park Nursery and Children’s Centre, Browns Bears Nursery, South Harringay Junior School,
South Harringay Infant School, Saint John Vianney Roman Catholic School

We are concerned the appeal of AGCs gaming machines to young people compared with betting
shops, and the deliberate proximity of these premises to schools.

Deprivation

The Harringay area is one of the most deprived areas in London and the proposal of another Adult
Gaming Centre will make matters worse for the residents in terms of health and wellbeing.

Harringay ranks high in all risk factors associated with gambling-related harm in individuals such as a
Ward with high deprivation indices, increased number of residents on Universal Credit, high
numbers of people who are rough sleeping, a high percentage of residents from minority ethnic
background, families from very low median household income, high unemployment rates, high level
of long-term health condition and disability (which may include mental health issues).

An analysis of the number of gambling premises in Haringey illustrates there are 3.1 betting shops,
adult gaming centres and bingo per 10,000 of the population (figure 2) which is much higher than
the national average of 1.6 per 10,000*. At a Ward level, it shows Harringay Ward has a high number
of gambling premises, with nearly 3 premises per 10,000 of the population.

From figure 1 we can see gambling premises are more prominent and clustered in deprived areas,
where most of our ethnic minorities live.

The applicant has mentioned Talarius Limited, sister company of Luxury Leisure, has long operated
the AGCs at:

Admiral, 9 High Road, Wood Green, N22 6BH
Admiral, 117 High Road, Wood Green, N22 688

Admiral, 475 and 4754 (Gold Room) High Road, London, N17 6QA.

AGCs are being disproportionately located in places where people can least afford to gamble, this is
referred to as “clustering”. There are already sufficient number of AGCs, particularly the high street,
which is maximising the number of gaming machines in the area.

A paper published in the Journal of Gambling Studies by social research institute NatCen in
December 2012 showed that the greatest concentration of gambling machines could be found in
Britain's most deprived areas, ‘with the highest density of machines mirroring the profile of those
most at risk of experiencing harm from gambling’ .

11 According to the gambling commission there were 10,590 betting shops and bingo halls in the UK in March
2018, and according to population estimates by ONS the UK population in 2017 was 66.05 million; this gives a
betting shop/bingo hall per 10,000 people of 1.6 (%)



Page 239

Figure 1. Gambling premises (betting shops, adult gaming centres, bingo only) per 10,000 of
population in Haringey.

Ward Ward Population Number of Betting Premises per 10,000
shops, Adult Gaming
centres and Bingo

Alexandra 11,758 1 0.9

Bounds Green 14,998 3 2

Bruce Grove 14,820 5 3.3

Crouch End 12,315 2 1.6

Fortis Green 6,341 2 3.1

Harringay 14,243 4 2.8

Hornsey 13,003 2 1.5

Muswell Hill 10,636 0 0

Noel Park 12,787 14 10.9

Northumberland Park | 9,224 6 6.5

Seven Sisters 17,744 3 1.6

St. Ann’s 14,434 5 3.5

Tottenham Green 16,516 4 2.4

Tottenham Hale 10,250 5 4.9

West Green 9,652 3 3.1

White Hart Lane 7,882 1 1.3

Woodside 10,724 5 4.7

207,327 65 3.1

Figure 1 — Gambling premises (betting shops, adult gaming centres, bingo only) per 10,000 of
population in Haringey

Problem Gambling and Vulnerable Groups Most Affected

We must recognise that gambling does not place the onus on individual responsibility, but instead it
can be a health-harming activity to anyone because of the addictive nature of products, their ease of
access, and the way they are promoted.

There is strong research that gives a clearer picture of those who are likely to be more vulnerable to
gambling harm?. Amongst the groups where the evidence base for vulnerability is strongest include
those with a history of mental ill-health, substance abuse or gambling addiction; people with
learning disabilities/difficulties; immigrants; homeless people; the unemployed or those on a low
income. This could include area-based vulnerability, such as demographics and areas of deprivation
(London Council A ‘whole council’ approach to gambling, 2018)3.

2 Gambling Commission (2016) Guidance to licensing authorities: 5th edition (September 2015, Parts 17, 18 &
19 updated September 2016). Retrieved 28 March 2019 from
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/PDF/GLAS.pdf

3 Gambling and Public Health.pdf (londoncouncils.gov.uk)



https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/PDF/GLA5.pdf
https://www.londoncouncils.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Gambling%20and%20Public%20Health.pdf

Page 240

Mental Health

The proposed premises is in proximity to mental health care facilities at St Ann’s hospital and the
drug outreach team, which means there is a high level of people with mental health and substance
misuse problems concentrated in the area.

Haringey has one of the highest levels of mental health ilinesses in London. 29 per 1,000 living in
Haringey are on Employment and Support Allowance (ESA) claimants for mental and behavioural
disorders. This is higher than the London (22.5 per 1,000) and England (27.3 per 1,000) averages
(PHE, 2019).

The estimated prevalence of common mental disorders in Haringey for ages 16 and over is 22.3%,
which is higher in London (19.3%) and England (16.9%) (PHE, 2017). The COVID-19 pandemic has had
different and disproportionate impacts on people, especially a significant negative impact on the
mental health of residents, there has been an 8.1% increase in mental distress (more for vulnerable
and marginalised groups, including children and young people).

Access to gambling venues increases gambling activity and problem gambling. Problem and
pathological gambling are linked to poor health, low level and severe mental health problems and a
co-dependence on alcohol.

People Rough Sleeping

Haringey has also seen an increase in the number of people who are rough sleeping with a range of
overlapping and multiple disadvantages, such as addiction, poor physical and mental health, contact
with institutions as children or adults and offending histories and experiences of trauma. There were
a high number of Streetlink referrals (alerts raised by members of the public) made about people
sleeping rough in the N4 postcode and it was a key area of activity for the outreach team.

Gambling problems are more prevalent in the population facing homelessness than the general
population, 11.4% of the homeless population is found to have a problem gambling. 61.5% of
participants with some level of gambling risk had problems before homelessness, 15.4% reported
experiencing problems after homelessness (Sharman, et al. 2016)%.

Another research reinforces the assertion that problem gambling is a significant issue within the
homeless population and is more commonly a cause than a consequence of homelessness (Sharman,
Dreyer & Clark 2012).

Substance Abuse

There is frequently a link with alcohol or drugs as a way of coping with anxiety or depression caused
by gambling problems (Griffiths, Parke & Wood, 2002). Availability of opportunities to gamble and
the incidence of problem gambling within a community are known to be linked (Griffiths, 2003a;

4 Sharman, S., Dreyer, J., Clark, L., and Bowden-Jones, H. (2016) Homeless and gambling: a
complex relationship. Available at: http://eprints.lincoln.ac.uk/24974/1/CRS_Poster.pdf



Page 241

Abbott & Volberg, in press). As a result, the proposal use of the premise will attract a high level of
residents who are highly dependent on alcohol and drugs.

Ducketts Common is a key location known to have an open drug market, this is 0.5 miles away from
the proposed premises. The hotspots for arrests for drug offenses in Haringey extend from Green
Lanes / Bowes Road, southwards to Turnpike Lane (Metropolitan Police recorded crime data, 2018).

Unemployment or Low Income Groups

Jobs at Risk as a Result of COVID (by Workplace)

AL risk jobs (a5 a result of COVID-19) by workplace

Covid-19 and Communities = : ‘

At risk jobs (as a result of COVID-19) by workplace

Analysis by Oxford Consultants for Social Inclusion concluded that up to 1/3 of all jobs are at risk due
to COVID-19, based on Furlough data published from the ONS at the end of April. The map for Haringey
shows the most at risk area being Harringay Ladder South (35.7%).

Harringay Ward has high levels of employment and income deprivation in the borough (Figure 2 and
3). This is in line with London (7.3%). In Harringay, 263.2 claimants per 10,000 residents claim benefit
principally for the reason of being unemployed. This is above both the Haringey and London levels
(251.8 per 10,000 residents and 201.7 per 10,000 residents respectively). The rate of claimants in
Haringey is almost 25% higher than the London rate.

During COVID, Haringey experienced the largest increase in unemployment claimant for benefits
among the 11 Central London Boroughs and has now become the 6" highest in the UK. Of those who
were in work in February 6% (660 households) had lost their job by May 2019.

Academics at the University of Oxford tracked the links between gambling spend and problems
experienced by 6.5 million Lloyds Banking Group customers over seven years (not exclusive to
remote gambling). The top 1% of gamblers spent 58% of their income and one in ten spent 8% on
gambling. People who bet even relatively small sums were more likely to suffer financial hardship
and unemployment, while heavier gamblers died earlier. Once someone spent 3.6% of monthly
outgoings on gambling, they were one third more likely to miss a mortgage payment, 22% more



Page 242

likely to use an unplanned overdraft, and 19% more likely to take a payday loan. The researchers
also traced gambling spend over a seven-year period, identifying increased rates of unemployment,
disability and “substantially increased mortality” at the highest levels of gambling.

Figure 3. Pre-COVID income deprivation

Haringey LSOA's by Income Deprivation Decile

Northumberland|Rarkd
Bounds[Green)

:

- 4 LS
Stroud| Deprivation Decile
k Green) Least Deprived Decile

Produced by Business Intelligence
@© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 100019199 (2019)

{Tottenham(Green|

Most Deprived Decile

Gambling as a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or disorder, or being used to
support crime

Much of the focus on gambling-related crime tends to be upon problem gamblers. Criminal
behaviour is most commonly associated with problem gamblers as problem gamblers spend more
than their disposable income and often have to resort to criminal activity as a way of getting money
to carry on gambling and repay associated debt problems?®.

The rate of crime in Haringey is more than 18% above the London rate. The high level of crime
impacts upon the quality of life of local residents and those using the area.

5 http://irep.ntu.ac.uk/id/eprint/3692/1/205959 8217%20Griffiths%20Publisher.pdf



Page 243

Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling

There are 3 schools, one nursery and a children’s centre nearby and the proposal is located along a
busy section of Green Lanes. The area has a good extensive transport links such as bus stops located
close to the premises and Harringay Green Lanes overground station, which is used by children and
young people travelling to and from school or other activities. The increase gambling premises outlets
are located close to transport hubs. Children and young people passing the concentration of gambling
businesses normalises the harmful culture of gambling amongst children and is seen as a ‘high street
activity’. According to a recent study, 70% Young People (11-24 year olds) noticed gambling adverts in
betting shops on the high street, window displays as well as promotions on shop floors and near tills®.
We do not want AGCs to replicate the business model of betting shops on advertising exposure.

Between late 2019 to February 2020 children and parents focus groups were conducted as part of the
Schools Superzone Project, https://www.haringey.gov.uk/social-care-and-health/health/public-
health/schools-superzones). The parents commented on the large volume of gambling shops in close
proximity to each other and one parent expressed concern about the influence this would have on
children and their development, with concerns raised about the possibility of enabling gambling
addictions in the future.

Given the evidence we have presented we do not believe the applicant is able to mitigate the harms
sufficiently due to the nature of their business and the already oversaturated gambling premises
within the area.

We must seek to address the needs of our local community and ensure the voice of our residents are
considered in planning, particularly if residents highlight that a new proposal may negatively impact
their wellbeing or harm their local community.

Linking with the Borough Plan Priorities

“A Haringey where strong families, strong networks and strong communities nurture all residents to
live well and achieve their potential”.

The location of the proposed premises targets the poorer communities and it becomes harder for the
health inequalities gap to close. If the planning application is to be granted it will not align with the
Borough Plan (https://www.haringey.gov.uk/sites/haringeygovuk/files/borough_plan_2019-23.pdf)
to reduce health inequalities, create healthy spaces and neighbourhoods for children and give children
the best startin life and will not demonstrate our preventative efforts to support families and enhance
mental wellbeing.

If this licensing application is not rejected, we suggest that consideration be given to:

e No gambling advertising and sponsorship especially on the shop frontage (if any) to protect
young people from exposure to gambling. Some space must be dedicated to responsible
gambling messages.

e At least two staff working at the premises at all times. Appropriate staffing levels are key to
the detection and mitigation of harmful play.

6 The effect of gambling marketing and advertising on children, young people and vulnerable adults -
Final Report - Ipsos MORI



https://www.haringey.gov.uk/social-care-and-health/health/public-health/schools-superzones
https://www.haringey.gov.uk/social-care-and-health/health/public-health/schools-superzones
https://www.ipsos.com/sites/default/files/ct/publication/documents/2020-03/gambling-marketing-advertising-effect-young-people-final-report.pdf
https://www.ipsos.com/sites/default/files/ct/publication/documents/2020-03/gambling-marketing-advertising-effect-young-people-final-report.pdf

Page 244

e  First Aid Training given to all staff

e The applicant shall take reasonable steps to prevent nuisance directly outside the premises.

Gambling literate customers with access to advice and assistance are less likely to have be harmed
or exploited by gambling. Gambling should be pursued for entertainment, not the expectation of big
wins, or chasing losses. As such, we also expect premises as a minimum to:

e Provide leaflets aimed at customers and their families/friends, which will include how to
identify signs of problem gambling and pathways to advice and assistance e.g. helpline
number, online counselling facility, local counselling provider.

e Players who have been on the premises for a significant amount of time or who staff have
observed have lost significant sums of money, should be approached in an attempt to
understand if they are losing more money than they can afford to lose.

e Display the odds of each gaming machine prominently on the machine.

e Offer players time or monetary limits to help them manage their gambling.



Page 245

METROPOLITAN
i o pOLl'CE

Working together for a safer London

POLICE REPRESENTATION

Name and address of premises:

Type of Application: New Premises Licence ADMIRAL
Adult Gaming Centre at 513 Green Lanes, Haringey, London, N4 1AN

If this application were granted in full or part, | would recommend the following alterations be
made to the licence conditions. | also suggest that additional conditions be attached to the
licence, as set out below, to further promote the licensing objectives.

I wish to make representation on the following:

Prevention of crime and disorder

A digital CCTV system to be installed in the premises.
Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance doors from the inside.

Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of the heads and shoulders of all
people entering the premises i.e. capable of identification.

Cameras must be sited to cover all areas to which the public have access including any
outside smoking area.

Cameras must record whilst members of the public are frequenting the premises.
Provide a linked record of the date, time of any image.

Provide good quality images - colour during opening times.

Have a monitor to review images and recorded quality.

Be regularly maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention.
Member of staff trained in operating CCTV at venue during times open to the public.
Digital images must be kept for 31 days. The equipment must have a suitable export
method, e.g. CD/DVD writer so that Police can make an evidential copy of the data they

require. Copies must be available within a reasonable time to Police on request.

2) Log Book An incident log shall be kept at the premises, it will be in a hardback durable



Page 246

format handwritten at the time of the incident or as near to as is reasonable and made
available on request to the Police, which will record the following:

(a) all crimes reported to the venue

(b) all ejections of patrons

(c) any complaints received

(d) any incidents of disorder

(e) any faults in the CCTV system

(g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

If these conditions were accepted in full | would withdraw my representation.

Officer: Matt Fitzpatrick
Licensing Officer Haringey Police

Matthew.Fitzpatrick@Met.Police.UK Date: 28/04/2021



Page 247

From: Elizabeth Speed

To: Roye Chanel

Cc: Tracey Rose; Licensing; Matthew.Fitzpatrick@Met.Police.UK

Subject: FW: METROPOLITAN POLICE REPRESENTATION: Application for a New Gambling AGC Premises Licence -
Admiral, 513 Green Lanes, Hornsey, London N4 1AN (WK/494780) PART 1

Date: 29 April 2021 17:50:02

Attachments: Reps Admiral Adult Gaming Centre.docx

Importance: High

Dear Chanel

Further to your email below, | confirm that we agree to the conditions requested in the attached
Representation, which | trust is now accordingly withdrawn.

Should you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me.
Yours sincerely,

Elizabeth Speed

Group General Counsel
Novomatic UK

Mobile +44 (0) 7808 571 588

espeed@novomatic.co.uk

From: Roye Chanel <Chanel.Roye@haringey.gov.uk> On Behalf Of Licensing

Sent: 28 April 2021 16:20

To: Elizabeth Speed <espeed@novomatic.co.uk>

Subject: METROPOLITAN POLICE REPRESENTATION: Application for a New Gambling AGC
Premises Licence - Admiral, 513 Green Lanes, Hornsey, London N4 1AN (WK/494780) PART 1
Importance: High

Dear Sir/Madam,

Please find attached a representation from The Metropolitan Police.
Please advise your course of action.

Kind regards
Chanel Roye - Licensing Administrator
Please do not send applications by post or visit our office.

2]

Licensing Authority |
1st Floor | River Park House | 225 High Road | Wood Green | London | N22 8HQ

Tel: 020 8489 5544

If you need to report something please log it here: Report It or use our Online Service: Contact
Frontline Why wait when you can do it online?

twitter@haringeycouncil
facebook.com/haringeycouncil

Please consider the environment before printing this email.

From: Matt.Fitzpatrick@met.police.uk <Matt.Fitzpatrick@met.police.uk> On Behalf Of

NAMailbox-.Licensing@met.police.uk

Sent: 28 April 2021 08:31

To: Licensing <Licensing.licensing@haringey.gov.uk>

Subject: RE: Application for a New Gambling AGC Premises Licence - Admiral, 513 Green Lanes,



mailto:Chanel.Roye@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Tracey.Rose@Luxury-Leisure.co.uk
mailto:Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk
mailto:Matthew.Fitzpatrick@Met.Police.UK
mailto:espeed@novomatic.co.uk
https://our.haringey.gov.uk/reports/add
https://eforms.secure.haringey.gov.uk/ufs/EMAIL_CONTACT.eb?SERVICE_ID=OT
https://eforms.secure.haringey.gov.uk/ufs/EMAIL_CONTACT.eb?SERVICE_ID=OT
https://www.haringey.gov.uk/contact-haringey-council
mailto:Matt.Fitzpatrick@met.police.uk
mailto:Matt.Fitzpatrick@met.police.uk
mailto:NAMailbox-.Licensing@met.police.uk
mailto:Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk

[image: ]

	   				



POLICE REPRESENTATION 





Name and address of premises: 



         

Type of Application:	New Premises Licence ADMIRAL 

 Adult Gaming Centre at 513 Green Lanes, Haringey, London, N4 1AN		





If this application were granted in full or part, I would recommend the following alterations be made to the licence conditions.  I also suggest that additional conditions be attached to the licence, as set out below, to further promote the licensing objectives.  





I wish to make representation on the following:



Prevention of crime and disorder





A digital CCTV system to be installed in the premises.



Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance doors from the inside.



Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of the heads and shoulders of all people entering the premises i.e. capable of identification.



Cameras must be sited to cover all areas to which the public have access including any outside smoking area.



Cameras must record whilst members of the public are frequenting the premises.



Provide a linked record of the date, time of any image.



Provide good quality images - colour during opening times.



Have a monitor to review images and recorded quality.



Be regularly maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention.



Member of staff trained in operating CCTV at venue during times open to the public.



Digital images must be kept for 31 days. The equipment must have a suitable export method, e.g. CD/DVD writer so that Police can make an evidential copy of the data they require. Copies must be available within a reasonable time to Police on request.  



2) Log Book An incident log shall be kept at the premises, it will be in a hardback durable format handwritten at the time of the incident or as near to as is reasonable and made available on request to the Police, which will record the following:

(a) all crimes reported to the venue

(b) all ejections of patrons

(c) any complaints received

(d) any incidents of disorder

(e) any faults in the CCTV system

[bookmark: _GoBack](g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.





If these conditions were accepted in full I would withdraw my representation.



Officer:	  Matt Fitzpatrick                     	  	

              Licensing Officer Haringey Police



Matthew.Fitzpatrick@Met.Police.UK                                   Date: 28/04/2021







image1.png

METROPOLITAN
POLICE

gether for a safer Londol







Page 248

Hornsey, London N4 1AN (WK/494780) PART 1
Hi Chanel

Please see our reps

Kind Regards

Matt

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential, may be subject to legal
privilege and are intended only for the person(s) or organisation(s) to whom this email is
addressed. Any unauthorised use, retention, distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly
prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please notify the system administrator
at Haringey Council immediately and delete this e-mail from your system. Although this e-
mail and any attachments are believed to be free of any virus or other defect which might
affect any computer or system into which they are received and opened, it is the
responsibility of the recipient to ensure they are virus free and no responsibility is accepted
for any loss or damage from receipt or use thereof. All communications sent to or from
external third party organisations may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in
accordance with relevant legislation.

----------------------------------------- CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE ------------=-=-=--=-=-m----
------------- This email is intended only to be read or used by the addressee. The
information contained in this email message may be confidential information. If you are
not the intended recipient, any use, interference with, distribution, disclosure or copying of
this material is unauthorised and prohibited. Confidentiality attached to this
communication is not waived or lost by reason of the mistaken delivery to you. If you have
received this message in error, please delete it and notify us by return email or telephone
+44 (0) 1914978200. Any email attachment may contain software viruses which could
damage your own computer system. Whilst reasonable precaution has been taken to
minimise this risk, we cannot accept liability for any damage which you sustain as a result
of software viruses. You should therefore carry out your own virus checks before opening
any attachments



	Agenda
	6 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE FOR AN ADULT GAMING CENTRE AT ADMIRAL, 513 GREEN LANES, LONDON, N4
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 1
	1) Green Lanes covering letter to council
	2) AGC Application form
	3) AGC Plan
	Sheets and Views
	License Plan


	4) Risk Map March 21
	5) Public Notice
	6) Risk Assessment March 2021
	7) Luxury Leisure Social Responsability Consolidated Policy Folder V3 March 2020

	Appendix 2
	Appendix 2
	summary-of-machine-provisions-by-premises APP2

	Appendix 3
	Appendix 3
	App 3 GAMBLING COMMISSION GUIDANCE
	1 - Introduction
	2 - Conditions and authorisations by virtue of the Act
	S.172 – number of gaming machines
	S.173 – betting on virtual events
	S.174 – gambling in addition to casino games
	S.176 – access by children and young persons to casinos
	S.177 – giving of credit
	S.178 – door supervision
	S.179 – pool betting
	S.182 – access by children and young persons to tracks
	S.183 – Christmas day
	3 - Conditions attached through regulations made by the Secretary of State or Scottish Ministers – all premises
	Mandatory conditions
	Default conditions
	4 - Conditions that may not be attached to premises licences by licensing authorities


	Appendix 4
	Appendix 4
	1) LCCP-sector-summary-for-arcades APP4
	Gaming machine general: Adult gaming centre licences
	If using an electronic version of this document, please click on the headings to move to the relevant section or provision.

	Part I: Statutory conditions attached by virtue of the Act
	Part 1: Suite of general condition to operating licences under Section 75 of the Gambling Act 2005 (the Act)
	1   Qualified persons and personal licences
	1.1 Qualified persons
	1.2  Personal licences
	4    Protection of customer funds
	4.2  Disclosure to customers
	5     Payment
	5.1  Cash and cash equivalents, payment methods and services
	6    Provision of credit by licensees and the use of credit
	cards
	6.1  Provision of credit
	7    General ‘fair and open’ provisions
	7.1  Fair and transparent terms and practices
	12   Anti-money laundering
	12.1 Prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing
	14    Access to premises
	14.1  Access to premises
	15    Information requirements
	15.1  Reporting suspicion of offences
	15.2  Reporting key events and other reportable events
	15.3  General and regulatory returns

	16   Responsible placement of digital adverts
	16.1   Responsible placement of digital adverts
	Part III: Code of practice
	Introduction
	Code provisions
	1   General
	2  Financial requirements
	2.1 Anti-money laundering
	3  Protection of children and other vulnerable persons
	3.1 Combatting problem gambling
	3.2  Access to gambling by children and young persons
	Social responsibility code provision 3.2.3
	3.3    Gambling management tools and responsible gambling management information
	3.4  Customer interaction
	3.5  Self-exclusion
	3.6 Employment of children and young persons
	3.8     Money lending between customers
	4    ‘Fair and open’ provisions
	4.1   Fair terms
	5    Marketing
	5.1  Rewards and bonuses
	6    Complaints and disputes
	6.1  Complaints and disputes
	7  Gambling licensees’ staff
	7.1 Gambling licensees’ staff
	8   Information requirements
	8.1  Information requirements
	10   Assessing local risk
	10.1   Assessing local risk

	2) SECTOR GUIDANCE GA05
	1 - Introduction
	2 - Protection of children and young persons
	3 - Self-exclusion
	4 - Gaming machines
	5 - AGC premises licence conditions
	Mandatory conditions


	Appendix 5
	Appendix 5
	1) Haringey Statement of Gambling Policy 2019 web
	Part A Statement of Gambling Policy
	1. Introduction
	2. Consultation
	3. Objectives
	4. Declaration
	5. Responsible Authorities
	6. Interested parties
	7. Exchange of information
	8. Gambling Prevalence and Problem Gambling
	9. Gambling in Haringey

	Part B Promotion of the licensing objectives
	10.  Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime
	11. Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way
	12. Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling
	13   Protection of vulnerable people

	Part C Types of Gambling Premises licences
	15    Definition of “premises”
	17     Local Area Profile and Risk Assessments
	18.    Duplication with other regulatory regimes
	19     Conditions
	20.    Door supervision
	21.    Adult gaming centres
	22.   Licensed family entertainment centres (FECs)
	23.    Casinos
	24.    Bingo premises
	25.    Betting premises
	26.    Tracks
	28.     Travelling fairs
	29.    Provisional statements

	Part D - Permits, notices and lottery registrations.
	30.   Unlicensed family entertainment centre gaming machine permits (UFECs)
	31    Gaming machine permits in premises licensed for the sale of alcohol
	32.   Prize gaming permits
	33.  Club gaming and club machine permits
	34.  Temporary use notices
	35.   Occasional use notices (for tracks)
	36.  Small society lottery registrations
	38.  Legislation, Policies and Strategies
	39.  Decision Making
	40   Reviews
	41.  Diversity and Equality
	42.  Human Rights
	Definitions

	Part E
	37. Enforcement


	2) Local Area Profile - Gambling web

	Appendix 6
	Appendix 6
	1) Representation 1
	2) Representation 2
	3) Representation 3
	4) Representation 4

	Appendix 6A
	Appendix 6A
	1) Licensing Authority
	2) Public Health
	3) Police
	4) Police - conditions agreed





